
Town of Pilot Mountain  
Town Hall 124 West Main Street Pilot Mountain, NC 27041 

Monday, May 08, 2023, 7:00 PM 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
Call to Order/Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance 

Adoption of Agenda 

Public Comment 

Anyone may speak on any issue. Before speaking, please state your name and address. Please limit comments to 

three minutes.  

Consent Agenda 

1. Approval of Minutes 

Board & Committee Reports 

Unfinished Business 

2. Marketing/Branding Contract Award 

New Business 

3. Acceptance of DWI Grant/Loan 

4. WWTP Phase 2 Capital Project Ordinance 

5. Main Street Coordinating Committee 

6. Armfield Center Fitness Equipment 

Administrative Reports 

7. Town Manager & Staff Reports 

Mayor and Commissioners Comments 

Closed Session 

 Adjourn 
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Town of Pilot Mountain 
Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Monday, April 17, 2023 
7:00 PM 

 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Evan Cockerham, Commissioner Scott Needham, Mayor Pro-Tem Donna 
Kiger, Commissioner Dwight Atkins and Commissioner Rachel Collins. 

 
Staff Present:  Town Manager, Michael Boaz and Town Clerk, Holly Utt  
 

 
Call to order 7:00 PM 
Mayor Cockerham called the special meeting to order at 7:00 PM. After a moment of silence, 
Commissioner Needham led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) Grant Special Meeting 
Mayor Cockerham opened the meeting for public comments. 
 
Kara Richardson was present to express her support for the town to apply for the PARTF grant to help 
with Armfield Center repairs and updates, particularly the pool and warm water spa.   
 
Kevin Shinault was present to address the Board.  He stated that this grant would be a positive impact for 
the town.  He asked that they use some of the money, if granted, to put up a guardrail on the Highway 52 
Bypass above the baseball field and also update the fitness equipment.   
 
Tanner Price was present to express support for the PARTF grant.  He stated that physical fitness and 
having a community base would be perfect for Pilot Mountain and he would love to see the town get the 
grant.   
 
Gerald Minzey stated that the grant would propel the community further and be a great investment for 
the future and generations to come.   
 
Mayor Cockerham closed the special meeting.   
 
 
Mayor Cockerham called the regular meeting to order.   
 
Adoption of Agenda  
Commissioner Collins made a motion to adopt the agenda as presented and it was unanimous. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Commissioner Kiger made a motion to approve the consent agenda with the as presented and it was 
unanimous.   
 
Public Comment 
Sally Lucia, 1119 Brown Mountain Road, was present to address the Board.  She asked the Board if they 
had a solution for the dog barking problem that she addressed at the last meeting.  She stated that it was 
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an ongoing problem and there was nothing more than she can personally do.  She stated that the dogs 
barking during the day were disturbing her tenant and she would probably not renew her lease.  
Commissioner Atkins asked if she had spoken with the neighbor about the dogs barking.  She stated that 
she had not, but Officer Horn spoke to them on her behalf about the dogs barking.  Mr. Boaz explained 
that there was an ordinance that addresses that as a nuisance.  He will get with Officer Horn and they will 
address the issue.   
 
Board & Committee Reports 
ABC Board 
February 2022 sales were $195,408 
February 2023 sales were $183,940, a decrease of 7.61% 
 
March 2022 sales were $203,882 
March 2023 sales were $210,876, an increase of .82% 
 
Outdoor Expo/Old Crow Medicine Show Event Update 
Christy Craig stated that there was still time for volunteers to sign up.  Informational details will be 
released later this week, such as parking and concert rules.  Mayor Cockerham reminded everyone to 
bring their own blanket or lawn chair and food and drink would be available on-site.   
 
New Business 
Chamber of Commerce Presentation  
Tonda Phillips, Chairman of the Public Policy Committee for the Chamber of Commerce.  The committee 
wishes to connect local leaders to the business community through consistent communication and 
interaction.  They hope to report quarterly to each municipality.  They will continue to sponsor lecture 
series to bring state and local leaders to the communities.   
 
Parks and Recreation Master Plans 
Mr. Boaz explained that there were two master plans; the Comprehensive Plan and a Site Specific Master 
Plan for the Armfield Civic Center.  McGill and Associates will be available at a future meeting for a more 
formal presentation.  Commissioner Needham made a motion to adopt the Comprehensive Plan and it 
was unanimous.  Commissioner Needham made a motion to adopt the Armfield Site Specific Master Plan 
and it was unanimous. 
 
PARTF Grant Application 
Mr. Boaz explained that this resolution would authorize staff and McGill to submit application on the 
town’s behalf to the Parks and Recreation Trust Fund.  There is a preliminary scope of projects including 
pool renovation, gym floor repairs, rehabilitation of fitness rooms, creation of exterior pickle ball courts, 
creation of a cornhole area and other site improvements.  Commissioner Atkins made a motion to approve 
Resolution R2023-03, authorizing application for NC Parks and Recreation Trust Fund Grant and it was 
unanimous.   
 
Social District Amendment 
Mr. Boaz explained that this amendment would address two things; the days of the week from Thursday- 
Saturday to Tuesday – Sunday and changing the times to hours of operation of businesses.  Commissioner 
Atkins stated that in the beginning they created the social district to steer away from being allowed on 
Sunday.  He was concerned about how the community would feel by expanding it from 3 days to 6 days.  
Commissioner Kiger mentioned that the brunch bill had been in effect for quite some time and places 
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could serve alcohol on Sunday after 10am.  Commissioner Atkins stated that he understood that his main 
concern is the community.  Chief Jackson stated they had not had any circumstances arise since the Social 
District has started.  Commissioner Needham made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2022-03, Social District 
Amendment and it was unanimous.   
 
Capital Improvement Plan Update 
Mr. Boaz explained that as part of the PARTF grant application we would need to have a parks and 
recreation improvement in the CIP.  Commissioner Kiger made a motion to approve the addition of parks 
and recreation to the current CIP and it was unanimous.   
 
 
Administrative Reports 
Town Manager & Staff Reports 

 There will be a special meeting on Thursday, May 4th at 6:00 to interview two potential firms for 
the marketing/branding study. 

 He has been working on the 2023-2024 budget and that will be discussed more at the May 
meeting.   

 There were funds left over from the Streambank Restoration Project to be able to rehab the entire 
sewer line from Carson Street to Key Street.  This is all being completed with grant funding.  The 
project will be completed by the end of May. 

 He will be out of town the last week of May.   

 

Mayor Cockerham asked if there were any updates on the mowing or additional staff for the Public Works 
Department.  Mr. Boaz stated that one new person has been hired which had been in the current budget.  
Right now the Public Works Department is managing the mowing.  The draft budget has some additional 
personnel included for mowing but as of right now they are taking care of the mowing.   

 

Mayor and Commissioners Comments  

Commissioner Needham:  He is very excited about the Outdoor Expo this weekend.  He encouraged 
people to sign up and volunteer for the event.           
 
Commissioner Collins:  She stated that after hearing rumors about running Access Books out of town, she 
just wanted to let it be known that it was not truthful and it had nothing to do with the Social District and 
anyone that had questions or concerns about it could contact any Board member.   
 
Commissioner Atkins:  He thanked Christy and Jenny for putting together the upcoming Expo event.  He 
also thanked Mr. Boaz for getting close to 20 million in grants for the infrastructure.   
 
Commissioner Kiger:  Thanked Mr. Boaz for going after the grant funding in order to have all these 
projects in motion.  She also thanked Mayor Cockerham, Jenny and the other volunteers that cleaned up 
around town hall.  She is looking forward to the Expo event this weekend. 
 
Mayor Cockerham:  He stated that he was proud of the town and everyone that participates to make our 
community better.  He recognized the Public Works Department for all the work they are doing.  He also 
recognized Christy and Jenny and the volunteers for the work they have put into the upcoming event.  
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This is not a money making event for the town, it’s geared more towards raising the profile for the town.  
There is so much to offer here in our little town.     
 
 
Other Business 
No other business to discuss 
 
Adjourn or Recess  
Commissioner Kiger made a motion to adjourn and it was unanimous.  

 
Respectfully Submitted:                                                           Attest: 
 
 
_____________________                                                     _________________________  
Holly Utt                                                                                      Evan Cockerham 
Town Clerk                                                                                  Mayor  
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
 

Marketing/Branding Contract Award 

Background Information: 

The Board saw presentations from both finalists at its special meeting on May 4.  After seeing the presentations, there appear 
to be a couple of key differences between the two proposals.  First, the Haven proposal includes an implementation plan and 
follow up once the project is rolled out that the Arnett-Muldrow proposal does not.  On the other hand, the Arnett-Muldrow 
proposal includes the creation of iconography for 5 of our events or departments.   
 
The Arnett-Muldrow proposal is $19,000 while the Haven proposal is $36,000.  Neither of these proposals includes the cost of a 
website refresh from CivicPlus, which is estimated to be about $7500.  This would leave both proposals under the $49,999 
grant amount.  We would plan to use any remaining funds to help roll out the new brand including business cards, letterhead, 
vehicle decals, etc.   
 
Jenny has reached out to Haven to see if they are negotiable on inclusion of additional iconography.  Nevertheless, staff is 
recommending that the Board approve the Haven proposal for a couple of reasons.  First, the Haven proposal includes an 
implementation plan that is not included in the Arnett-Muldrow plan.  I think this is important as it will help insure that we roll 
out the marketing plan and new brand in the right way.  Second, based on the presentation I feel like Haven will provide more 
personalized service.   

 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the proposal from Haven.      

Possible Board of Commissioner Actions 

 Approve Haven proposal 
 Approve Arnett-Muldrow proposal 
 Approve neither proposal 
 Table for further discussion 

Attachments 

 Haven Proposal 
 Arnett Muldrow Proposal 
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PILOT MOUNTAIN BRANDING
PRESENTED BY:  HAVEN CREATIVE, LLC
PROPOSAL CONTACT: JENI BUKOLT

Prepared for: Proposal issued: Proposal valid until:
Feb. 17, 2023 April 5, 2023Town of Pilot 

Mountain

8163 Kensington Drive, Suite C 
PMB #418
Waxhaw, NC 28173
Phone: 704.885.1857
E-mail: jeni@havencreativeagency.com
Web: www.havencreativeagency.com
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hello!

W E  A R E  H A V E N
A COMMUNITY BRANDING AGENCY

HAVEN is an award-winning community branding agency that routinely partners 
with government entities and nonprofits. We use our proprietary process, 
the Maven Method® to develop, design and deploy strategic branding and 
communications campaigns that raise awareness and inspire action. 

Stakeholder acceptance is vital to the success of a branding initiative and HAVEN is 
acutely aware of the complexities involved in a public branding project. Our proven 
process ensures stakeholder input is gathered and that their input is valued. The 
HAVEN “Mavens” excel at unifying organizational teams to bring conceptual ideas 
to life. Hence our motto, “community powered by creativity.” 

HAVEN has worked with government entities and nonprofits across the country. In 
North Carolina specifically, the HAVEN team provides services for Gaston County, 
Union County, Town of Waxhaw, City of Hickory, Town of Matthews, Town of 
Weddington, Town of Maiden, and the City of Charlotte. 

Creating community is part of the HAVEN ethos. We seek to impact one million 
lives through our branding, marketing, and communication services. We have 
reached over 650,00 lives impacted to date. We measure this by including the 
number of people in each community they work with. Since we routinely work with 
medium sized communities, you can see we have been busy! 

We are a limited liability corporation founded in December 2012 and incorporated 
in the state of North Carolina in 2015. We became a NCHUB in 2020 and part of 
the Charlotte MWSBE in 2021.

The proposal contact will be Jeni Bukolt, Founder of HAVEN. 

Our Affiliations: 
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With over 20 years of experience 
in video production, marketing and 
design, Jeni has helped hundreds of 
government and business leaders create 
purpose driven design and messaging 
to grow their business, create innovative 
teams, thriving economic centers and 
unstoppable brands. 

Expertise:
•	 Naming & Brand Strategy
•	 Creative Art Direction
•	 Video Production & Storytelling
•	 Company Culture Development 

Joanna provides exceptional auditing, 
analysis and reporting support. Joanna’s 
experience lies in gathering community 
input through interviews and surveys. 
She uses the stories she uncovers 
through her research to compile strategic 
branding recommendations. Joanna will 
manage competitor research, surveys and 
interviews. 

Expertise:
•	 Marketing Audit / Competitor 

Analysis
•	 Copywriting
•	 Community Outreach

we are the haven mavens

[ our chance to humbly brag ]
HAVEN AWARDS + RECOGNITIONS
FIRST PLACE 
Best Small Business
Union County Chamber of Commerce (2021) 

FIRST PLACE 
Annual Report | North Carolina City & Council 
Communicators | Gaston County, NC (2021) 

FIRST PLACE 
Logo/theme art | National Association for Government 
Communicators (NAGC) | Town of Waxhaw, NC (2018) 

FIRST PLACE 
Excellence In Communications | North Carolina City & 
Council Communicators (NC3C) | Digital Newsletter 
(2018) 

FIRST PLACE 
Excellence In Communications (NC3C) | Waxhaw 
Volunteer Fire Department Recruitment Video

SECOND PLACE 
Excellence In Communications (NC3C) | Waxhaw 101: 
Citizen Engagement Program (2019)  

JENI BUKOLT
FOUNDER + CREATIVE DIRECTOR

JOANNA HARDMAN
PROJECT COORDINATOR

GEMMA PISANO
PROJECT MANAGER

Gemma has a passion for working with 
small towns, uncovering their unique story 
and finding innovative ways to help them 
reach their goals. She has experience 
developing place branding strategies and 
has a knack for bringing her ideas to life 
through stunning visual designs. As your 
project manager, Gemma will lead bi-
weekly meetings and be your main point 
of contact throughout the project.

Expertise:
•	 Graphic Design
•	 Place Branding Strategy
•	 Project Management
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Jessica oversees the development and 
implementation of marketing campaigns 
and services for our clients. She is 
passionate about client services and 
treats each client’s project and budget 
as if it is her own. Jessica also manages 
internal resource allocation to ensure 
projects are delivered on time.

Expertise:
•	 Client Services
•	 Advertising & Media Marketing 

Strategy
•	 Marketing Automation & Reporting

Sam has a love for words and a passion 
for creativity. As an Account Manager, 
Sam utilizes her experience in marketing 
and public relations to craft unforgettable 
stories and campaigns.

Expertise:
•	 Copywriting
•	 Public Relations
•	 Content Creation

[ our philosophy ]
MAKING MAVENS 

HAVEN believes inspired partnerships create purpose 
driven results. Our relationship with our clients is a 
reflection of that. 
 
Sharing knowledge and building high performing teams 
is part of HAVEN’S ethos to “make mavens of our peers 
and partners” and HAVEN’S commitment to making 
mavens extends to the communities we serve.
 
HAVEN uses a portion of our proceeds to give back to 
the community at the end of each project. 

JESSICA BLACKSHAW
CLIENT SERVICES DIRECTOR

IAN REDMAN
SENIOR ACCOUNT MANAGER

Ian is a natural-born problem solver with 
a background in community politics 
and nonprofit communications. As 
Senior Account Manager for HAVEN, 
he guides key clients through strategic 
communications and marketing 
challenges big and small. His skills in 
writing and editing help all HAVEN clients 
tell compelling stories to their target 
audiences.

Expertise:
•	 Strategic Communications
•	 Marketing Strategy 
•	 Creative Campaign Development

SAM BERBRICK
ACCOUNT MANAGER
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July 2020

HAVEN collaborated with Gaston 
County communications and 
Economic Development teams to 
produce a logo that would be used 
to show Gaston County was “open 
for business.” The logo is meant to 
represent the G for Gaston. It also 
represents a location icon turned on 
its side. Inside the icon, the buildings 
and the golden horizon depict that 
Gaston is primed for economic 
opportunity.  

The logo was well received and 
prompted all County departments 
to adopt the logo with icons 
representative of their team within 
the curve of the G. 

Project Reference: 
Adam Gaub, Communications Director
(704) 866-3141
Adam.Gaub@gastongov.com
www.gastongov.com

Gaston County Re-brand

“HAVEN has been a lifesaver for us 
this year. The work on Gaston SAVES 
has transformed expectations for 
what county communications can look 
like, and while not all of the feed-
back was positive, the metrics have 
pointed to just how successful this 
has been in connecting residents with 
potentially lifesaving information.”

-Adam Gaub
Communications Director
Gaston County

CASE STUDY
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Through these conversations, 
HAVEN developed the story that 
paints the landscape of what makes 
the city a great place to live:

Set in the scenic countryside just 
30 minutes south of the quad 
cities, Aledo is an idyllic retreat 
from routine. The line showcases 
the city as a place to unwind, 
reconnect with friends and explore 
the unbeaten path. Individuals can 
discover the history of the eclectic 
architecture on Main, connect with 
friends in Central Park at annual 
festivals or explore off-road trails 
on your UTV. You can find it all in 
Aledo.

The city now uses the new City 
Seal and logo on all official 
communications going forward. 
The Seal features green and navy 
to call back to Aledo green and 

Mercer County High School navy; 
it also includes a rhubarb leaf as a 
nod to the iconic Rhubarb Festival. 
Released alongside the new 
logo and Seal, the tagline for the 
city, “Find it All in Aledo,” is the 
synopsis of this story that highlights 
Aledo as a place for everyone.

The City of Aledo has started using 
the new logo and brand story in 
all communication with residents. 
It has launched three new official 
social media accounts to better 
communicate with residents. 
Additionally, Aledo has started 
sending a monthly newsletter - 
Aledo’s Monthly Memo to those 
interested in news and events 
happening in the city. 

While local community events 
attracted visitors from the Quad 
Cities region and enjoyed the 
small-town feel, those visitors 
didn’t think of Aledo, Illinois as a 
place to live or work. The City of 
Aledo needed a way to change 
that perception.

HAVEN used feedback from a 
comprehensive brand audit, 
which included - an internal 
survey, stakeholder survey, 25 
one-hour stakeholder interviews 
and a community-wide survey to 
identify value propositions and 
core values representative of the 
City of Aledo. The community’s 
participation in the interviews and 
surveys was vital to capture the 
essence of what truly makes the 
City of Aledo special. 

All marketing communications 
and economic development 
actions will align with the 
brand story’s essence and 
pillars: Agriculture, Adventure, 
Architecture and Advancement.

BRANDING TO ATTRACT 
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

CITY OF
ALEDO, IL

CASE STUDY

THE CHALLENGE

THE SOLUTION

THE RESULT

Project Reference:  Jarod Dale, Town Clerk | (309) 582-7241 x206 | cityclerk@aledoil.gov | www.aledoil.gov
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of Maiden. Through this process, 
our team found several key themes 
that honored Maiden’s history of 
fellowship, entrepreneurship, and 
sportsmanship.

Once we identified these themes, we 
crafted the story of Maiden as a place 
where the peace of the mountains 
matched the ambition of nearby 
large cities and highlighted the 
entrepreneurial spirit of its people. 
We then worked with town staff to 
create a visual identity that celebrated 
the story of Maiden. Their new logo 
featured a three-line element that 
calls back to their brand story and 
pillars and is one of the only three-
color municipal logos in the region.

After the visual identity was created 
and Maiden approved their new 
branding, our team helped them 
chart a 12-month brand launch and 
identify the important next steps for 
implementing this new branding.

Maiden unveiled their new branding 
to the community in December 
2022 with a public presentation, a 
promotional video and social media 

communications. This narrative and 
visual identity support Maiden in 
sharing its unique values as a place to 
live and do business. With a cohesive 
narrative, Maiden can celebrate 
current businesses and attract new 
businesses, from small businesses 
downtown to major industry and 
technology companies. 
 
The initial launch of the branding 
was successfully received by the 
community. The launch video racked 
up 1,100 views in the first month and 
brand adoption continues today.

The Town of Maiden saw an 
opportunity to prepare for 
projected population growth and 
wanted to put its best foot forward 
as it competed for economic 
opportunities. With its sights on 
winning major economic deals 
from industry-leading technology 
companies, Maiden realized it 
needed a brand identity that 
matched its unique character and 
modern ambitions to win potential 
partners. A historic town with a 
close-knit community and a resilient 
spirit, Maiden had the foundational 
elements in place but needed a 
way to pull it all together into one 
cohesive story and visual identity.

Maiden hired HAVEN Creative 
in 2022 to help them develop, 
design, and deploy a new 
brand identity showcasing 
their community’s unique 
characteristics. Using the Maven 
Method, HAVEN spent several 
months speaking with residents, 
town staff, and community leaders 
about the history and character 

BRANDING TO NURTURE 
GROWTH

TOWN OF 
MAIDEN, NC

CASE STUDY

THE CHALLENGE

THE SOLUTION

THE RESULT

Market
Research

Brand 
Positioning 
& Strategy

Copywriting Graphic 
Design

Brand 
Guidelines

Brand 
Collateral

Positioning & 
Messaging

[ tools we used ]

Showcasing Brand Pillars in the Logo
Fellowship
Entrepreneurship
Sportsmanship

Project Reference:  Anna Hughey, Assistant to Town Manager | (828) 428-5000 | adellinger@maidennc.gov | maidennc.gov
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WINNER:
1st Place

Excellence in 
Communications 

Award
Digital External 

Newsletter

The Town of Waxhaw is located 30 
minutes south of Charlotte and is 
known as a rural retreat from the city. 
With a population of over 18,500 
people and growing, the Town 
of Waxhaw was challenged with 
maintaining its quality of life and 
small town charm while also meeting 
the needs of the growing community. 

The town was constantly receiving 
negative media attention, which 
typically stemmed from the lack of 
trust between residents and town 
officials.

Maintaining Waxhaw’s historic charm 
was a priority for HAVEN when 
developing a full rebrand, which 
included color story, redesigned 
town seal, and new logos for both 
the town and all major events. 
From community surveys and work 
sessions, a rustic refined design 
aesthetic was chosen to represent 
the existing downtown aesthetic.

HAVEN also designed and 
produced a monthly digital 
newsletter. With the growing 
needs of the community, HAVEN 
was then tasked to oversee all 
marketing and communications 
for the town. Having a consistent 
brand image and messaging has 
helped rebuild trust between 
residents and town officials.

Since the rebrand in 2016, the 
town has grown from 10,000 to 
18,000 residents. Local breweries, 
retail, and apartments have 
boomed in the downtown area, 

and all of these results combined 
earned the Town of Waxhaw the 
“Great Main Street” award in 
2018 from the American Planning 
Association. In 2019, Waxhaw was 
named the #1 Suburb in Charlotte, 
NC.

Media inquiries went from 108 
inquires, all negative in Fall of 
2017, to 10 inquiries, all positive in 
2018. All departments, including 
the Police Department, adopted 
the branding. The event logo 
redesigns for the town won an 
NAGC Award, and our monthly 
digital newsletter won an 
Excellence in Communications 
Award.

BRANDING TO KEEP
PACE WITH PROGRESS

TOWN OF 
WAXHAW, NC

WAXHAW REBRAND

Brand Story, Color Story, Fonts, Marketing Templates

Market Audit & Community-wide surveys

Brand Pillars and Archetype

Comprehensive Brand Summary

Brand Implementation Plan

Website Redesign

P O L I C E

Est. 1889

CASE STUDY

THE CHALLENGE

THE GOAL

THE RESULT

Project Reference:  Melody Shuler, Town Clerk | (704) 843-2195 | mshuler@waxhaw.com | www.waxhaw.com
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OUR APPROACH TO PILOT MOUNTAIN

MONITOR THE MARKET:
RESEARCH - DATA COLLECTION PHASE04

Research and community input is key to the successful development of a 
community brand. We will conduct more than a dozen pieces of research 
to identify what differentiates Pilot Mountain from other communities. By 
examining the community (stakeholders), consumers (visitors, regional and 
state tourism and economic development officials) and the competition 
(neighboring counties), we will discover:

•	 What makes Pilot Mountain unique in the eyes of residents, visitors and 
businesses

•	 Iconic elements to inspire creative design, colors, fonts and more
•	 Key messaging to support the development of the brand story

Our process includes stakeholder interviews, community engagement 
sessions, and several online surveys.

DEFINE THE DIFFERENCE:
RESEARCH - ANALYZING THE DATA05

Based on the results of data collection in the “Monitor the Market” phase, 
we will begin to build the brand positioning platform. The brand platform 
includes defining key messages, target audience and brand pillars (key 
differentiators) that make Pilot Mountain stand out from its competition. We 
will also test these messages as we work to see how they connect with the 
intended audiences.

HAVEN will serve as the lead for community feedback groups comprised of residents and business owners to 
determine existing attitudes, perceptions, opportunities and challenges to enhance Pilot Mountain’s image.

We will lean heavily on our community branding principles and years of experience facilitating branding and 
economic development projects for government entities. Our team will follow HAVEN’s proprietary process, 
the Maven Method®️, to develop, design and deploy measurable branding and website results.

If we are selected as the vendor to brand Pilot Mountain, our initial meeting will take care of steps 1-3 in our 
Maven Method® process that includes the internal and client kick-off meetings. We will also take into account 
current planning and Economic Development initiatives that can assist in building a cohesive brand story and 
awareness. Our project breakdown begins at step 4: Monitor the Market.

THE MAVEN METHOD®
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INVENT THE IDENTITY:
CREATIVE & DEVELOPMENT OF BRAND06

Once we have brand positioning defined, we will develop the creative 
elements for the Pilot Mountain Community brand book. We will present 
at least 3 to 5 concepts for the logos. The intent is to then pick 1 logo to 
move through editing phase. Our scope includes up to 3 rounds of edits. 
This stage includes:
 
•	 Creative presentation
•	 Logo design and refinement
•	 Color story, graphic design style and standards guide for Pilot 

Mountain
•	 Marketing collateral templates to support the roll out of the brand

SHARE THE STORY:
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN07

We will develop an action plan for implementation of the brand in sufficient 
detail to provide the Town of Pilot Mountain staff and government 
officials clarity on how the brand will roll out to the public in phases. This 
implementation plan will include: 

•	 A website refresh following the newly established town brand standards
•	 A 12 month action plan to help the Town of Pilot Mountain roll-out the 

new banding to the community
•	 An internal training session to ensure the team is well versed in brand 

standards
•	 An implementation timetable for various brand identity updates

REPORT THE RESULT: 
EVALUATION PLAN08

We will provide a progress report six months post brand launch to report 
on the success of the branding based on the SMART goals that we set 
with the Town of Pilot Mountain key stakeholders. 

COMMUNICATION IS KEY
HAVEN would meet bi-weekly with Pilot Mountain’s Project Lead to ensure 
the brand initiatives are moving along smoothly. OUR APPROACH TO PILOT MOUNTAIN
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[ a compilation of creative deliverables ]

Branding is more than a logo or a tagline – it’s based on perception. It’s 
the communication of values, characteristics, and unique attributes of your 
community -- it’s a complete story. Do you have all of the chapters you need to 
tell your story? Our brand books do!

Our brand books start with key messaging, followed by logo design and usage 
guides, fonts, color story, design style guide and marketing templates. The book 
is delivered in a print ready PDFs that can be shared with everyone on your team 
to ensure consistency throughout your organization. 

From messaging to design, 
the brand book includes all 
of the chapters you need 
to tell a cohesive story and 
have a successful brand 
launch.

THE BRAND BOOK
PILOT MOUNTAIN DELIVERABLES
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Colors + 
Fonts

Design 
Templates

Design Style 
Guide

Brand 
Story 

Logo 
Design

The final brand book in-
cludes three logo designs, 
social media icons and us-
age guidelines to ensure the 
logo is properly represented 
in print, on the web and in 
video.

Our brand books include 
a design style guide 
that provides inspiration 
and direction for how to 
incorporate the brand into 
interior and exterior decor, 
uniforms, social media, 
signage and more.  

The brand book includes 
a marketing narrative that 
captures the vision, feel, 
and community of your city. 
This copy would be used 
in marketing materials and 
influence copy on the town’s 
website.

We will provide branded 
templates: social media 
banner art and profile image, 
business card, letterhead, 
envelopes, email signature 
design and power point 
presentation templates. 
The logo files can also be 
used on water towers and 
wayfinding signage.    

The color story and branded 
typography (fonts), inspired by 
the brand story and key themes 
derived from the brand audit, 
unifies the community’s website, 
signage, social media graphics, 
staff uniforms and more. 

1

4 5

2 3
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[ a space for your new brand to shine ]

We will lean heavily on our community branding principles and years of experience 
implementing branding programs and facilitating website build projects for governments. 
We’ll partner with internal stakeholders to establish clear expectations for essential 
communications, and participation in the planning process to gather data, develop the art 
direction and execute a rebrand of the website, we’ll follow our Maven Method® process.

[ develop ] Using the marketing plan as our guide, we will audit Pilot Mountain’s website to 
modify current website with the new branding. We will design website art direction and page 
architecture that will be passed to the website developer. We’ll collaborate with our dedicated 
web development team to ensure the website is on-brand, on message and functioning 
properly before going live.

[ design ] Our team will create art direction (website layout design guidelines) that the 
developer will follow to ensure the visuals are cohesive to the newly established Pilot 
Mountain brand standards. While the developer works on coding and building the back end 
of the website, we will present a Visual Proposal using mock-ups for your review. Throughout 
the process, we will collaborate extensively with internal stakeholder teams to ensure creative 
deliverables are in line with the Town of Pilot Mountain’s website goals.

[ deploy ] Once all pages of the new website have been approved, we will support the 
internal team with the official “launch” of the website and branding to the public. We’ll train 
internal stakeholders on the new website and present the brand book with stakeholders to 
ensure a smooth deployment.

THE WEBSITE
PILOT MOUNTAIN DELIVERABLES
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[ a 12-month brand roll out strategy ]

Upon completion of the brand book, HAVEN will leverage information gathered during the 
develop phase including community surveys, stakeholder interviews, and competitor research 
to develop a 12-month marketing plan that prioritizes attracting new residents, recruiting new 
businesses and promoting Pilot Mountain as a tourist destination. The marketing plan will set 3 to 
5 marketing goals and key objectives and establish measurable metrics of success. To achieve each 
goal, the marketing plan will describe the best tactics to reach Pilot Mountain’s target audiences.

Included in the plan will be a set of tiered recommendations with multiple budget options to 
explore paid media opportunities alongside lower cost owned media and earned media strategies. 

Along with resident, business and tourism marketing, the final deliverable will include a 12-month 
brand roll out plan to improve community perception, increase brand awareness and adoption, and 
update existing branding to meet the new standards. Twelve months after brand launch, HAVEN 
will conduct a follow-up community assessment to determine changes in the perception and 
attitudes towards Pilot Mountain. 

Marketing 
Tactics

Rollout
Plan

Target 
Audiences

Goals &
KPIs

Keeping Pilot Mountain’s 
Comprehensive Plan in 
mind, the marketing plan 
will set 3 to 5 marketing 
goals and key objectives 
and establish measurable 
metrics of success. 

HAVEN  will identify and 
analyze Pilot Mountain’s 
target audiences, including 
their demographic profiles, 
pain points and decision-
making processes.

HAVEN will deliver a 12-month 
brand roll out plan to improve 
community perception, 
increase brand awareness and 
adoption, and update existing 
branding to meet the new 
standards.

To achieve each marketing 
goal, the marketing plan will 
describe the best tactics to 
reach Pilot Mountain’s target 
audiences.

1

4

2

3

THE MARKETING PLAN
PILOT MOUNTAIN DELIVERABLES

are crucial to measuring the 
success of a brand, or any 
project for that matter. Finding 
measurable results for a creative 
project can be challenging, 
whichis why we include you, 
our client, in the goal-setting 
process.

KPIS
[ KEY PREFORMANCE INDICATORS ]
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PROJECT PRICING DETAIL

PHASE 1 - DEVELOP (MARKET AUDIT)
$8,625.00

PHASE 2 - DESIGN (LOGOS, MESSAGING, TEMPLATES, WEBSITE DESIGN)

PHASE 3 - DEPLOY (MARKETING PLAN, WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT & LAUNCH)

PHASE 4 -  FINAL REPORTING & ANALYSIS

SUB-TOTAL:

TAX: (NC 6.75%)

TOTAL:

$15,125.00

$9,100.00

$1,275.00

$34,125.00

$2,303.44

$36,428.44

Steps 4 & 5 as outlined on page 10

Step 6  as outlined on page 11

Step 7 as outlined on page 11 and page 14-15 *Printing of branded materials is 
not included (pricing based on size and quantities needed), but will be billed at 
cost with prior approval from client. 

Step 8 as outlined on page 11

SUMMARY:
The Pilot Mountain Community Branding Project will take approximately 6 months to complete 
depending on client approval times. Final deliverables will include a comprehensive brand identity 
(logo, tagline, and color story) for the Town of Pilot Mountain along with 5 branded templates 
(business card, letterhead, power point presentation and 2 other templates of client’s choice) along 
with a 12 month action plan for launching the brand and a website redesign. Upon final payment 
to HAVEN, the Town of Pilot Mountain will own all creative assets. HAVEN requests 30% of the 
project total upfront to begin the development phase. Invoices will then be broken out in even 
monthly payments until the project is complete.

OUR GUARANTEE: A client will never receive an invoice 
without the chance to review and approve a change in scope form. 
If for some reason that happens, the cost of the change is on us.
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February 14, 2023 
 
Jenny Kindy 
Main Street Coordinator 
jkindy@pilotmountainnc.org 
336-312-3024 
 
RE: Request for Proposal: Marketing Plan & Strategy for the Town of Pilot Mountain 
 
Dear Ms. Kindy and Members of the Selection Committee: 
 
Arnett Muldrow & Associates, Ltd. is pleased to submit this proposal for the Marketing Plan & Strategy 
for the Town of Pilot Mountain. Based in Greenville, our firm provides community branding, downtown 
revitalization, and master planning to communities across the United States.  
 
Our firm pioneered the concept of community branding nearly two decades ago and have now provided 
branding and marketing services for over 600 communities in 42 states and 5 countries, including 48 in 
North Carolina. As marketing professionals as well as city planners, we understand the challenges a 
community faces when projecting a brand identity, and we base our recommendations on a foundation 
of sound planning principles and the capacity of local governments. 
 
The proposal that follows highlights our approach as well as our strengths that make us uniquely 
qualified to develop a unified brand for the community. We are eager to answer questions and sincerely 
look forward to the opportunity of working with you to tell the Town of Pilot Mountain’s unique story.  
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
Aaron Arnett, AICP 
Principal 
Arnett Muldrow & Associates, Ltd.  
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1. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 

 
For more than two decades, Arnett Muldrow has created community identities for small towns, 
downtowns, regional tourism entities, and economic development organizations. During this time, we 
have not only honed our creative design expertise, but we have done it in context with maximizing the 
capabilities a local government has to communicate to its citizens, visitors, and investors. This includes 
an intensive community engagement and visioning process that gets to the root of what makes a 
community special. 
 
Our process creates extensive brand systems that are rich in meaning, easily implemented, and 
supported by community buy-in. Unlike a traditional advertising agency, our approach to community 
marketing and image-building is built on our experience as community development professionals. This 
background has taught us to pay special attention to local stakeholders, as they must feel a connection 
to the identity system, become its champions, and help implement over time. Ultimately, the process is 
a community-driven creative effort that results in a unified brand identity and market position that will 
allow the Town and its partners to be part of a comprehensive brand.  
 
Arnett Muldrow understands that the Town of Pilot Mountain seeks a unique brand identity and a clear 
marketing message. This brand must be authentic and must communicate to its citizenry, position it as 
a place to live, bring in visitors, and target economic investment. The market position must build off the 
sense of pride that locals have toward your rural setting and agrarian roots, but also speak to your vibrant 
downtown, shopping and dining assets, athletic facilities, and your infrastructure that’s ready for 
development, as well as your focus on controlling that growth through efforts such as the 
Comprehensive Plan adopted in 2022.  
 
The project deliverables must provide a platform where Town staff, departments, and partners can be 
part of a connected system with consistent application of the brand. To that end, we focus our branding 
projects on implementation. and include a Style Guide, Implementation Checklist, Brand Partner Sheet, 
and Implementation Scorecard, along with a toolkit of brand deliverables from logos, brand extension, 
and marketing collateral. 
 
The pages that follow detail Arnett Muldrow’s unique expertise, experience, and approach to the 
branding project for the Town of Pilot Mountain.  
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2. QUALIFICATIONS 
 

 
Arnett Muldrow & Associates specializes in community identity, downtown revitalization, economic 
development, and wayfinding. We have worked on branding and marketing projects in well over 600 
communities across the United States. This includes numerous brands for communities, Main Street, 
and economic development agencies across North Carolina.  
 
We are extremely proud of our community and place branding experience and would like to highlight 
our differentiators that we feel make us the right choice for the Town of Pilot Mountain: 
 

• First and foremost, our roots are in Urban Planning and Economic Development. Our branding 
was born out of our planning work in small communities just like Pilot Mountain.  

• We are not an advertising agency or corporate design firm. While we would stack our creativity 
up against anyone, our designers and planners understand exactly what a community needs to 
communicate to its citizens, visitors, and future investors.  

• We only work for local governments and economic development non-profits. We do not have 
private sector clients and don’t brand products. The “products” we brand are the places people 
love, the communities they call home, and the districts that bring them all together. 

• Because of this, we are the only branding firm that fully understands the capacity local 
governments have in terms of staffing, ability to implement, and budgets. 

• We are a small firm of six professionals that pride ourselves in flexibility and efficiency. We could 
charge fee ranges similar to larger advertising agencies, but we understand that a community 
has limited funding and its tax dollars must be available for implementation. 

• We do not charge royalties or licensing fees for our work. We feel that the brands we create come 
from a personal community conversation, and our role is simply to create an identity platform for 
that vision and market position. Since the process is rooted in community ownership, we give 
the rights to all creative work to the client. 

• Our process is designed to engage local creative minds, not only for them to contribute, but 
more importantly for them to help the community through implementation. We do not charge 
retainers, nor do we look for ongoing contracts for what can be better done with local talent.  

• We also intend to be resources for our communities after the fact, whether it be as simple as a 
quick design of a new banner, or strategies for future implementation. We learn something from 
every community and every project. Perhaps the greatest thing we can provide our clients is 
something we’ve learned from another place, or simply connecting them to the right peers. 

• Finally, Arnett Muldrow knows small towns, and we know the Pilot Mountain region. We’ve 
worked for numerous small towns in close proximity to Pilot Mountain including Mt. Airy, North 
Wilkesboro, Eden, and Reidsville.  We also are currently working just to the north in Stuart and 
Hillsville Virginia.   
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3. FIRM PROFILE 
 
Arnett Muldrow & Associates is based out of Greenville, SC and has been creating community brands 
since forming in 2002. Our experience spans the United States, and we have completed numerous 
projects throughout the State of North Carolina including downtown plans, economic assessments, 
community brands, and wayfinding plans. This includes branding projects in all areas of the state – from 
the bucolic Graham County in Western North Carolina, to Eden on your northern border, to growing 
communities such as Dunn, Wake Forest, Statesville, and Salisbury, to Kinston and Edenton on your 
Eastern coast. 
 
Arnett Muldrow was established in South Carolina and is structured as an S-Corporation. Today, we have 
six employees including three partners. We have locations in Greenville, SC and Milford, DE. Our home 
office is the Greenville location below: 
 
Arnett Muldrow & Associates, LTD 
PO Box 4151, Greenville, SC 29609 
www.arnettmuldrow.com 
864.915.7101 
 
Team members on the Town of Pilot Mountain Marketing Plan and Strategy are shown below. Full 
resumes are provided at the end of the proposal. 
 

Aaron Arnett, AICP 
Principle.  Project Manager 
Aaron will manage the project and will be the primary point of contact.  Aaron co-
founded Arnett Muldrow in 2002. His expertise lies in a variety of planning areas 
including economic development, strategic planning, downtown revitalization, and 
tourism planning.  Aaron began his career as a city planner in Salisbury, North Carolina.  
Aaron graduated from Clemson with a BA in Architecture and Master’s of City and 
Regional Planning.   Aaron also grew up in Winston-Salem, just to the south of Pilot 

Mountain. 
 

 
Shawn Terpack 
Art Director. Community Identity Development 
Shawn has been building his design skills for over 20 years. From his early days as the 
Advertising Design Director of an international textile manufacturer, to being the 
Creative Designer for the Greenville News, Shawn has a vast understanding of design, 
branding and marketing. Since joining Arnett Muldrow as Art Director in 2014, he has 
helped communities across the nation tell their unique stories through branding.  
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4. REFERENCES 
 

The following three references represent recent branding work we have completed. In addition, the 
appendix provides project summaries of some of the various brands we have developed over the years. 
Each project contains a narrative of the outcome, samples of the work, as well as reference information.  
 
Bedford, VA Brand Development Eden, NC Brand Development 
Mary Zirkle, Economic Development Director Randy Hunt, Main Street Executive Director 
Town of Bedford, VA Town of Eden, NC 
215 East Main St, Suite 110, Bedford VA 24523 308 E Stadium Dr. Eden NC 27288 
mzirkle@bedfordva.gov  rhunt@edennc.us  
540.587.6006 336.613.2859 
   
Wenatchee, WA Brand Development  
Linda Haglund, Executive Director  
Downtown Wenatchee Association  
103 Palouse St. Suite 35, Wenatchee WA 98801  
linda@wendowntown.org    
509.662.0059 
  

 

 

  
Brand System for Town of Bedford, VA. Arnett Muldrow created all artwork including graphic identity, brand extension logos, 
advertising template, brochure cover, custom banners, and much more. 
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5. PROJECT APPROACH 
 

Task 1:  Information Gathering & Background Review 
Arnett Muldrow will review all existing marketing and communication efforts for the Town of Pilot 
Mountain and its partner organizations. This would include town histories, promotional publications, 
event information, economic development and tourism publications, website information, newsletters, 
social media, and any other related material. It would also include any marketing materials, existing logo 
graphics, and messaging for the Town and its departments. 
 
Task 2:  Coordination with Previous Planning Efforts 
Community visioning and stakeholder engagement occur in virtually every plan that a local government 
facilitates. We must be able to build on this public input, while also communicating to stakeholders and 
citizens that the branding project is not a replication of these previous studies. In fact, each of these 
efforts has strategies that can be enhanced through communication and marketing tools created in the 
branding project. It will therefore be important to coordinate the branding project with data and input 
gathered from previous efforts such as Town’s Comprehensive Plan, etc. 
 
Task 3: Branding Survey 
Part of this coordination will be reviewing community engagement efforts and findings from these plans 
and ensuring that public input in the branding project is not redundant. By the same token, this plan 
will require its own public engagement for Arnett Muldrow to understand the community and inform 
the creative process. This would begin with an online survey on Survey Monkey to gauge citizens 
perceptions on the image of the Town of Pilot Mountain, its assets, places, etc. The survey will be 
designed specifically to draw out community values and opportunities to tell the Town’s story. The survey 
would be scheduled to begin at the project kickoff. 
 
Task 4: Project Kickoff  
Arnett Muldrow’s initial visit to the Town of Pilot Mountain will be a two-day reconnaissance trip that will 
include the following tasks: 
 

1. Advisory Committee Meeting: A preliminary meeting will be held with members of an advisory 
committee to discuss project goals, potential deliverables, and the community engagement 
process. This small committee of five to seven people would provide us guidance throughout the 
process. It would be made up of representatives from Town staff, key departments, and any other 
organization that currently promotes the town. Ideally, the committee would people who will 
ultimately be responsible for the implementation of the brand strategies. The committee’s main 
responsibility will be providing creative input, but also communicating the brand messaging and 
graphics to its partners upon completion of the project. 

 
One-on-one Stakeholder Meetings: We would like to have between five and ten one-on-one 
meetings with key stakeholders as determined by the advisory committee. These individuals 
should be those who can give Arnett Muldrow a good overview of Pilot Mountain and its assets. 
We often talk to community leaders, town staff, business owners, and representatives from 
community partners that may also promote and market the Town. 
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2. Coordination Meeting: We will rely on the staff to set the appointment times with the 
interviewees. These initial interviews will help us understand the dynamics of the community, 
while also setting the stage for the broader creative input to come in the branding resource visit. 
The kickoff visit will end with a brief meeting with staff to discuss the branding resource visit and 
its planning. 

 
Task 5:  Reconnaissance & Photography  
Also during our initial trip, we will conduct photography of the Town and its assets. All of the photos will 
become the property of the client and can be used to assist in the ongoing implementation of the 
marketing strategy. This library of photos can be used in creating brochures, advertisements and 
reference materials that prove to be long-term assets. Since our time on-the-ground is inherently 
limited, we will also look to the client to provide additional photography from events, attractions, or 
seasonal imagery that can be used in the brand strategy. 
 
Task 6:  Brand Workshop  
Modeled after a community design workshop, the branding resource visit will allow us to develop an 
effective conceptual branding program. We will continue to engage the community through themed 
roundtable discussions, while also developing the brand message and initial creative system. The 
resource visit for the Town of Pilot Mountain will involve a three-day process. 

The first half of the workshop would concentrate on a series of themed focus groups with community 
stakeholders. We will work with the committee during the kickoff to determine the topics of the focus 
groups, but they could potentially include: 

• Town officials, department heads, and staff 
• Downtown champions  
• Cultural agencies and destinations 
• Event planners 
• Business owners 
• Tourism representatives 
• Local Youth 

The second half of the workshop would be dedicated to draft brand development including the creation 
of market positioning, graphic identity, additional photography, and building out of the draft system. 

Community branding is not just the creation of a simple logo. Rather, it is a market position, graphic 
identity, tag line, and style set that presents the overall vision and values within the place. Ultimately it 
will be the foundation of a seamless system to market and promote the community. Elements of the 
brand system include: 

• Brand Position Statement – This narrative connects the values and assets within the community 
and lays the foundation for the identity of the place, including the key messages and targets that 
will be addressed in the marketing strategies. 

• Graphic Identity – This is the overall style set of the brand identity including typeface, color 
palette, and icon. The identity will be represented in graphic form, and the design elements that 
make up the logo will be used as the graphic foundation for the rest of the system. 

• Tag Line - This is the phrase that presents the brand statement narrative as a concise description 
of the community’s identity and market position. 
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At the end of the third day, all of Arnett Muldrow’s recommendations would be rolled out in a thorough 
presentation to the Client. This presentation should include the advisory committee, and potentially 
open to the public that have been engaged during the process. It will include all of our graphic 
marketing recommendations as well. While tailored to the needs of the individual community, these 
often include: 
 

• Extension brand style to other logos for events, town destinations, partner organizations, etc. 
• Graphic recommendations for collateral such as banners, brochure templates, event posters, and 

concepts for incorporation into the Town’s current toolset. 
• Conceptual design graphics for the current town website that incorporates the new brand. We 

will coordinate with the existing town webmaster, CivicPlus, to provide guidance on brand 
incorporation. Our firm would not create a new website for the Town.  If needed, we can bring in 
a frequent partner to facilitate a new website design, although that is not included in this 
proposal. 

• Concepts for incorporating the brand into wayfinding signage and gateways. 
• Organizational tools such as letterhead, business cards, PowerPoint templates, and stationery. 
• Recommendations for print and online advertising, social media, and other methods of 

communication. 

The draft brand system will provide the Town with a solid direction, and we will use this meeting to garner 
initial feedback for further refinement.  
 
Task 7:  Refinement of Brand Materials 
After the presentation of the creative work, we will allow a period of two weeks for the Client to review all 
materials and provide input. We will provide a recorded video presentation to be shared with committee 
members. After all input has been collected, we will finalize the brand system. 
 
Task 8:  Implementation Strategy   
Upon completion of all creative work, the marketing and branding recommendations will include an 
implementation package comprised of a brand style guide, brand partner guide, and implementation 
checklist that will provide guidance on brand management, usage, partner engagement, etc. 
 
Task 9:  Brand Resource Delivery and Reveal   
We will return to the Town of Pilot Mountain to present all final materials to the client and public. This 
can include an implementation meeting with the advisory committee to answer any questions and 
discuss overall implementation strategy. 

 
Project Deliverables: 
While the ultimate deliverables may include additional items determined during initial meetings with 
the committee and partner organizations, the entire brand package will contain: 

• Marketing messaging for the Town of Pilot Mountain focusing on destination, economic 
development, and community pride 

• Brand narrative and tagline 
• Governmental and Marketing Logos for the Town of Pilot Mountain 
• Brand extension with unique but connected logos for departments, events and other amenities 

as desired by client 
• Graphic marketing recommendations depending on the project needs. These often include: 
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• Customer banner designs 
• Print collateral cover designs (brochure, visitor guide, etc.) 
• Organizational collateral designs (business cards, letterhead, PPT template, etc.) 
• Digital media concepts for incorporation into Town website, social media, etc. 
• Advertising concepts and ad template 
• Graphic merchandising recommendations (t-shirts, water bottles, promotional, etc.) 
• Wayfinding concepts including a sign typology that meets MUTCD & NCDOT standards. 

• BrandTouch Style Guide including defined color palette, typeface, and usage strategy 
• BrandTouch Partner Sheet 
• BrandTouch Implementation Checklist  
• BrandScore Implementation scoresheet  
• All related photography  
• Resource package with all deliverables in a variety of digital file formats  
• Brand presentation  
• Release granting intellectual ownership of all designs to the Client 
• Regular meetings with Town staff upon each visit, and monthly report briefs. 

 
 
 

6. PROPOSED BUDGET & TIMELINE 

Tasks one through nine of the project can be completed for a not to exceed cost of $19,018, inclusive of 
expenses. The project would take approximately four to six months to complete. The potential timeframe 
shown below assumes a mid-March start, but final timetable will depend on local scheduling. 
 
We feel that our approach and deliverables are comprehensive and would be happy to negotiate a scope 
that meets any additional needs or budget of the client. 
 
 

Tasks Potential Completion Date Est. Hours Fee + Exp Optimal Timeframe 
Task 1 Information Gathering & Background Review 6 $700 Mid March 
Task 2 Coordination with Previous Planning Efforts 4 $500 Mid March 
Task 3 Branding Survey 5 $490 Early April 
Task 4 Project Kickoff 16 $2,000 Mid April 
Task 5 Reconnaissance & Photography 16 $2,000 Mid April 
Task 6 Brand Workshop 54 $6,600 May 
Task 7 Refinement of Brand Materials 18 $1,900 June 
Task 8 Implementation Strategy/Report 18 $1,900 July 
Task 9 Brand Resource Delivery and Reveal 6 $800 August 
 TOTAL FEE & EXPENSE  $19,018  

 
Any work to be performed outside of this scope of services of this contract shall be compensated at the 
hourly rates shown below, with expenses to be billed as they are incurred.  No work to be performed 
outside of this scope of services will be done without a written agreement between the Planner and 
Client. 
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Aaron Arnett, Principal  $150/hr 
Shawn Terpack, Art Director $110/hr 
 
Please accept this scope of services and cost proposal as an official submittal by Arnett Muldrow & 
Associates in response to the RFP for the Town of Pilot Mountain Marketing Plan & Strategy. 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
 

Acceptance of DWI Grant/Loan 

Background Information: 

This resolution would accept the DWI funding for the 2nd phase of the WWTP rehab.    

 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the resolution.     

Possible Board of Commissioner Actions 

 Approve resolution 
 Deny approval of resolution 
 Table for further discussion 

Attachments 

 R2023-04 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TOWN ACCEPTANCE OF 
WWTP REHABILITATION LOAN FUNDS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loan and Grant Act of 1987 has authorized 

the making of loans and grants to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of 

construction of wastewater treatment works, wastewater collection systems, and water supply 

systems, water conservation projects, and;   

 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered a Viable Utility Reserve 

Grant in the amount of $8,078,000, and a SRF loan of $1,922,000 with $500,000 in principal forgiveness, 

for the purpose of constructing improvements to the Town’s Wastewater Treatment Plant, and;  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Pilot Mountain intends to construct said project in accordance with the approved 

plans and specifications.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLOVED by the Board of Commissioners that: 
 

1. That the Town of Pilot Mountain does hereby accept the VUR Grant of $8,078,000, and the 
SRF loan of $1,922,000 with $500,000 in principal forgiveness. 

 
2. That the Town of Pilot Mountain does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina 

Department of Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the 
Award Offer will be adhered to.  
 

3. That, James Michael Boaz, Town Manager/Finance Officer and successors so titled, is hereby 
authorized and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may 
request in connection with such application or the project; to make assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required by the Division of Water 
Infrastructure. 
 

4. That the Town of Pilot Mountain has substantially complied or will substantially comply with 
all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project 
and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Pilot Mountain this the 4th day of 
May 2023. 

                   Attest: 

 
________________________________________________  ___________________________________________________ 
Evan Cockerham, Mayor      Holly Utt, Town Clerk 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN 

COUNTY OF SURRY RESOLUTION NO. 2023-04 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
 

WWTP Phase 2 Capital Project Ordinance 

Background Information: 

This capital project ordinance would authorize expenditures for Phase 2 of the WWTP rehab.  This project is funded by $8.5 
million in grants and $1.5 million in 0% interest loans.   

 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the CP ordinance.     

Possible Board of Commissioner Actions 

 Approve ordinance 
 Deny approval of ordinance 
 Table for further discussion 

Attachments 

 WWTP Phase 2 Capital Project Ordinance 
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PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT REHABILITATION PROJECT-PHASE 2 

 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Pilot Mountain Board of Commissioners, that pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes 

Section 13.2 of Chapter 159, the following capital project ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 

Section 1: The project authorized is the “Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project-Phase 2”. 
  

Section 2: The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the project within the budget contained herein. 
 

Section 3: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project. 
  

 

 NC Department of Environmental Quality Grant/Loan                               $10,000,000.00 

 Transfer from Capital Reserve              $38,500.00 

                                Total:                              $10,038,500.00 

 
Section 4:  The following amounts are the anticipated expenditures for the project:  

 

 Architectural & Engineering Fees     $1,265,000.00 

 Construction Costs     $7,800,000.00 

 Grant/Loan Fee          $ 38,500.00 

 Administration         $155,000.00 

 Contingency         $780,000.00 

       Total:                                  $10,038,500.00 
 

Section 5:  The Town Manager is hereby directed to maintain within the Grant Project Fund sufficient specific 

detailed accounting records to provide the accounting to the grantor agency required by the grant 

agreement state regulations. 
 

Section 6:  The Town Manager is directed to report quarterly on the financial status of each project element in Section 

4 and on the total revenues received or claimed. 
 

Section 7:  Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be made available to the Town Manager for direction in 

carrying out this project. 

 

Adopted this the 4th day of May, 2023. 

 

SEAL: 

 

 _________________________________ 
 Evan J. Cockerham, Mayor      
        

 

ATTEST:  

 

__________________________________ 
 Holly Utt, Town Clerk 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
 

Main Street Coordinating Committee 

Background Information: 

Julie Henne has resigned from the Main Street Board.  We have an application from Stephanie Barlow for that Board.  The 
Mayor has recommended her appointment.  

 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of this appointment.      

Possible Board of Commissioner Actions 

 Approve appointment 

Attachments 

 Barlow Application 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
 

Armfield Center Fitness Equipment 

Background Information: 

Much of the current equipment in the cardio and weight training rooms at the ACC is beyond the end of its useful life.  Many of 
the machines are old enough that we cannot get parts for them and they are starting to break down.  Randy has gotten several 
complaints about the machines being down.  I asked Randy to get quotes on replacing this equipment.  He worked with Fitness 
Smith, a company that specializes in this type of equipment and which works with Mt. Airy and Elkin, to prepare three quotes 
for us.   
 
The first quote deals with the equipment in the current cardio room and what we have taken to calling the HIT or High 
Intensity Training room.  The second is for equipment in the weight training room.  The final quote is for replacing the spin 
bikes and other equipment upstairs in what is referred to as the yoga room.  The total package for all three rooms would be 
$249,220 and if we financed it for 5 years it would be $59,364 per year.  The total for just the weight and cardio rooms would 
be $188,014.70 or $44,784.84 per year.  I have included a chart in your packet that breaks down the different options.   
 
Randy and I recommend that we at least replace the equipment in the cardio, HIT, and weight rooms.  I have worked this cost 
into next year’s budget.  I think we can look at the other equipment at a later date.   

 

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval the cardio, HIT, and weight proposal.      

Possible Board of Commissioner Actions 

 Approve cardio, HIT, weight proposal 
 Approve some other proposal 
 Do Nothing 
 Table for more information 

Attachments 

 Cardio/HIT Proposal 
 Weight Proposal 
 Spin bikes proposal 
 Financing proposals  
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ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER

CARDIO & HIIT

Prepared for:
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John Pitt
Territory Manager

Mobile: 704.661.6543
Email: Jpitt@�tnessmith.com

Arm�eld Center

110VAC 20AMP 60 HERTZ NEMA 5-20R

110 VAC 50-60 HERTZ

Coaxial RF TV output. 75 ohm

RJ45 Ethernet Lan. CAT6

Required Wall Blocking or Floor Mounting

03.02.23

LEGEND

Cardio
1. Incline Treadmill
2. Treadmill
3. Lateral Trainer
4. Recumbent Stepper
5. Recumbent Bike
6. Gauntlet
7. Elliptical
8. HIIT Bike
9. Assault Treadmill

Functional/Free Weight
10. Freestanding Functional Rig
11. Plyo Box
12. TireFlip
13. GHD
14. Wall Mounted Mat Rack
15. Gym Mat
16. Ab Bench
17. Ab Coaster
18. Vertical Dumbbell Rack
19. Multi-Adjust Bench

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Note: Fitnessmith will not be providing any of 
the ethernet or coaxial cables, nor outlet 
converters, unless otherwise speci�ed within 
the proposal. Please make sure the circuits 
are correctly con�gured before installation. 

9

13

10

11
12

14

1617

18

19

15
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O: (561) 529-5590 | F: (561) 997-8788 | W: www.fitnessmith.com

Cardio

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

STAR TRAC S-TRC TREADMILL W/ LCD (BLACK) $8,499.00 $4,269.33 5 $21,346.65

TRUE XC400 ELLIPTICAL BASE $5,400.00 $3,240.00 3 $9,720.00

TRUE EMERGE CONSOLE (ELLIPTICAL/SPECTRUM) $699.00 $440.00 3 $1,320.00

STAIRMASTER 10G SERIES GAUNTLET W/ LCD $13,299.00 $7,878.67 2 $15,757.34

STAR TRAC S-RBx RECUMBENT BIKE $4,049.00 $2,248.00 1 $2,248.00

OCTANE XR6000S BASE ONLY  (SEATED ELLIPTICAL W/ SWIVEL) $6,499.00 $3,833.33 1 $3,833.33

OCTANE XR6000 STD CONSOLE $1,500.00 $933.33 1 $933.33

Cardio for HIIT Room

OCTANE  AIRDYNE X W/ CONSOLE, BLACK FAN $1,799.00 $1,066.67 1 $1,066.67

INTENSITY HEALTH RUNNER CURVED TREADMILL (IN10CT)  MOTORLESS
TREADMILL (NO MAGNETIC RESISTANCE)

$3,490.00 $2,653.33 1 $2,653.33

STAIRMASTER HIIT ROWER $2,099.00 $1,218.67 1 $1,218.67

Subtotal $60,097.32

Strength

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

Torque Functional Rig for HIIT Room

TORQUE X-CREATE 2 MODULE 13' BRIDGE (BLACK SATIN) ***CUSTOM SET
UP***

$5,846.00 $3,897.33 1 $3,897.33

TORQUE 8FT UPRIGHT MODULE EXTENSION (BLACK SATIN) $980.00 $653.33 2 $1,306.66

TORQUE 4 FT (1.2 M) ACCESSORY STORAGE MODULE- WITH MATS $2,106.00 $1,404.00 2 $2,808.00

TORQUE 4FT STALL BARS (STORM GREY) $630.00 $420.00 1 $420.00

TORQUE 4FT (1.2M) BALL TARGET WALL PAD $344.00 $233.33 2 $466.66

TORQUE 4FT UNIVERSAL BALL AND HANGING STORAGE MODULE $410.00 $273.33 1 $273.33

TORQUE 8 FT UPRIGHT VERTICAL WEIGHT STORAGE (SINGLE) (STORM
GREY)

$520.00 $346.67 1 $346.67

TORQUE HORIZONTAL MOUNT GROUND ROTATIONAL TRAINER (STORM
GREY)

$200.00 $133.33 1 $133.33

TORQUE BALL TARGET (STORM GREY) $356.00 $237.33 1 $237.33
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Strength

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

TORQUE TOP BOOM EXTENSION (STORM GREY) $158.00 $105.33 1 $105.33

TORQUE 3 DIMENSIONAL SWIVEL (STORM GREY) $118.00 $78.67 1 $78.67

TORQUE HEAVY BAG - 100LBS $720.00 $480.00 1 $480.00

TORQUE BALL & HANGING STORAGE EXTENSION ACCESSORY PACKAGE - [(2
OF EACH) LOOP BANDS 5-35, 10-60, 25-80, 50-120 LBS] [(2 OF EACH) LIGHT,
MEDIUM, HEAVY, X-HEAVY POWER TUBE - DOUBLE HANDLES] [(2) HANING
MATS - 59"X72"X24"] [(1) STABILITY BALL - 55 CM]

$748.00 $498.67 1 $498.67

TORQUE 6 FT SLAMBLL PACKAGE INTERNATIONAL - 10 - 45 LB $684.00 $456.00 1 $456.00

TORQUE 6 FT WALL BALL PACKAGE INTERNATIONAL - 10 - 45 LB $656.00 $437.33 1 $437.33

TORQUE 4 FOOT (1.2M) TORPEDO BAG PACKAGE  INTERNATIONAL (10, 20,
30, & 40LB)

$646.00 $430.67 1 $430.67

TORQUE 4 FT KETTLEBELL PACKAGE 1 INTERNATIONAL 4, 6, 8, 12, 16, 20KG
(1 OF EACH)

$534.00 $356.00 1 $356.00

TORQUE 4 FT KETTLEBELL PACKAGE 1 INTERNATIONAL 4, 6, 8, 12, 16, 20KG
(1 OF EACH)

$534.00 $356.00 1 $356.00

TORQUE ROLLER, HIGH DENSITY FOAM TORQUE - 6 X 36 INCHES $56.00 $37.33 4 $149.32

TORQUE STABILITY BALL - 65 CM $36.00 $24.00 1 $24.00

TORQUE TRIPLE PLYO, 20-24-30 INTERNATIONAL $742.00 $494.67 1 $494.67

TORQUE VSFIB FLAT-INCLINE BENCH W/ VERTICAL STORAGE (STORM GREY) $788.00 $525.33 3 $1,575.99

TORQUE GLUTE HAM DEVELOPER $1,900.00 $1,266.67 1 $1,266.67

THE ABS COMPANY TIRE FLIP 180 XL PRO . VENDOR SKU: ABS110037  THE
TIRE FLIP HAS A STARTNG RESISTANCE OF 150 LBS AND ALLOWS THE
ADDITION OF UP TO 100 ADDITIONAL POUNDS OF FREE WEIGHT: TRAINING
RANGES FROM 150-250 LBS  TIREFLIP180XL, BATTLEROPE ST, 2 SETS 1

$2,746.00 $2,514.67 1 $2,514.67

THE "TROY BLACK WINGBAR" 7' LONG. 28MM BAR SHAFT. MEDIUM
KNURLING. BRIGHT ZINC PATED.  BLACK OXIDE FINISH. 213,300 P.S.I.
16.50â€? OF LOADABLE SLEEVE LENGTH. DOUBLE SNAP RING. BRONZE OIL
IMPREGNATED BUSHING.

$545.05 $363.37 1 $363.37

TROY 6' OLYMPIC WOMEN'S BAR, 25MM SHAFT, 6' 6" LONG 15KG $310.20 $206.80 1 $206.80

TROY 2.5 LB PREMIUM GRADE RUBBER ENCASED INTER-LOCKING PLATE, NO
GRIP- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$8.06 $5.37 4 $21.48

TROY 5 LB PREMIUM GRADE RUBBER ENCASED OLYMPIC INTER-LOCKING
PLATE, NO GRIP- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$16.40 $10.93 4 $43.72
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Strength

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

TROY 10 LB PREMIUM GRADE RUBBER OLYMPIC INTER-LOCKING ENCASED
PLATE, NO GRIP- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$32.82 $21.88 4 $87.52

TROY VTX 45 LB OLYMPIC 2" SOLID BUMPER PLATE WITH STEEL INSERT, RED $166.96 $111.31 4 $445.24

TROY VTX 25 LB OLYMPIC 2" SOLID BUMPER PLATE WITH STEEL INSERT,
YELLOW 51 MM

$95.26 $63.51 2 $127.02

TROY VTX 10 LB OLYMPIC 2" SOLID COLORED BUMPER PLATE WITH STEEL
INSERT, GREEN 25.5 MM

$56.80 $37.87 2 $75.74

TROY 2' MUSCLE CLAMP COLLAR(PAIR) $57.96 $38.64 2 $77.28

Subtotal $20,561.47

Accessories

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

TROY VERTPAC:  2 SIDED VERTICAL RACK WITH 5 LB -30LB 8-SIDED RUBBER
ENCASED DUMBBELLS (SD-R) comes with GADR-6 rack (6 pair)

$727.52 $520.00 1 $520.00

AEROMAT WORKOUT MAT ADJUSTABLE HANGING RACK $36.99 $29.00 1 $29.00

AEROMAT ELITE WORKOUT MAT W/EYELETS, 1/2"X24"X56" CHARCOAL $29.99 $27.00 1 $27.00

Subtotal $576.00

Services

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

SHIPPING CHARGES - EQUIPMENT $8,975.00 $8,975.00 1 $8,975.00

INSTALLATION:  INSIDE DELIVERY, ASSEMBLY, TESTING,  TRASH REMOVAL:
(FEE IS FOR FIRST FLOOR DOUBLE DOOR ACCESS ONLY) SITE SURVEY
REQUIRED FOR GUARANTEED PRICE.  FITNESSMITH WILL NOT WALL
MOUNT ANY EQUIPMENT, RACKS, OR RIGS.

$9,805.00 $9,805.00 1 $9,805.00

THIS PROPOSAL IS PREPARED BASED ON CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS
AND MANUFACTURER PRICING.  PRICES MAY BE SUBJECT TO CHANGE
BASED ON RISING COST OF GOODS, UNKNOWN SURCHARGES, OR
ESCALATING SHIPPING AND INSTALLATION FEES.

$0.00 $0.00 1 $0.00

COLOR: $0.00 $0.00 1 $0.00

Subtotal $18,780.00
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Total savings: $56,189.96
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CARDIO & HIIT

Prepared for: Prepared by: Details:

ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER
Randy Ingram
872 W 52 Bypass
Pilot Mountain, NC  27041
ringram@pilotmountainnc.org
(336) 368-2012

Fitnessmith
John Pitt

Fax (561) 997-8788
jpitt@fitnessmith.com

Proposal #: 018033

Version: 1

Delivered: 03/27/2023
Expires: 04/23/2023

Proposal Summary

Description Amount

Cardio $60,097.32

Strength $20,561.47

Accessories $576.00

Services $18,780.00

Subtotal $100,014.79

Estimated Tax $7,001.03

Total $107,015.82

Tax is subject to change at time of Invoice.
Payment is 50% down at time of order, 40% prior to delivery and 10% upon install.
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AGREEMENT:
  

The product quotation, purchase orders, shipping documents and these terms and conditions of sale constitutes a continuing sale Agreement
between Centurion Partners Health and Fitness, a Florida Limited Liability Company doing business as Fitnessmith (hereafter referred to as
(“Fitnessmith”) and Buyer, as set forth at the end of this Product Quotation Agreement, for the purchase of any product and services to be
provided by Fitnessmith to Buyer. Fitnessmith sales representatives do not have the authority to change or modify the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.
  

PURCHASE ORDER:
  

Buyer may provide Buyer’s standard form of purchase order to place orders for product and service, but any terms and conditions on such
standard form which are in addition to or inconsistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement will be deemed stricken from such order.
If Buyer does not deliver written objection to the terms hereof which are different than those appearing on the Buyer’s purchase order, Buyer
agrees to all of Fitnessmith’s terms and conditions. All purchase orders shall be made or confirmed in writing and are subject to acceptance by
Fitnessmith. The Buyer shall be responsible for all costs and fees incurred by Fitnessmith for refused shipments, including freight and insurance
costs. Orders cancelled less than thirty (30) days from originally scheduled shipment date will be subject to a cancellation fee of 25% of the
value of the purchase order.
  

PRICES:
  

The prices to be paid by Buyer for all products and services purchased hereunder shall be Fitnessmith’s standard prices in effect on the date of
Fitnessmith’s receipt of Buyer’s purchase order, less any applicable deductions which may be in effect from time to time. Fitnessmith reserves
the right to change its standard prices and to publish a new price list from time to time and at any time, without prior notice to Buyer. Should any
new price result in an increase in the price of any product or services, the increased price shall apply to any Buyer order placed after the
effective date of the new price. For orders that are placed for delivery more than ninety (90) days into the future, Fitnessmith reserves the right
to review and adjust the agreed upon pricing within thirty (30) days of fulfilling the purchase order. In this case, the Buyer has the option of
canceling the order with no penalties, if the cancellation is in writing and within ten (10) days of the notification of the price increase. Buyer is
solely responsible for any prices it charges to its customer. Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way restrict the Buyer’s freedom to sell
products at prices determined in accordance with its own judgment. Buyer shall be responsible for all sales, use, or other taxes (other than
taxes on Fitnessmith’s income or ownership of property), applicable to Buyer’s purchase of products and/or services. Buyer shall pay such
taxes when invoiced by Fitnessmith or shall supply appropriate tax exemption or resale certificates. Buyer is also responsible for any domestic
or foreign forwarding agent or brokerage fees, duties, or other fees and any export licenses which may be necessary to export the products.
Seller reserves the right to correct any clerical or mathematical errors at any time.
  

CUSTOM PRODUCT:
  

Fitnessmith requires a non-refundable 50% down payment for all custom products. A purchase order for custom product contractually obligates
the Buyer to take delivery. Custom orders are non-cancelable and may not be rescheduled without the prior approval of a corporate officer of
Fitnessmith, which may be withheld at the sole and absolute discretion of Fitnessmith. All custom orders have an up charge to be determined by
Fitnessmith. All build to order strength orders cancelled less than thirty (30) days from the original scheduled delivery will be subject to a 25%
cancellation fee.
  

SHIPMENTS:
  

F.O.B. shipping point shall be Fitnessmith warehouse unless otherwise specified. Risk of loss with respect to Fitnessmith products shall pass to
Buyer at the time of delivery of the products to the carrier for shipment. The Buyer assumes all risk involved in the transportation and handling
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of the equipment or goods once it has left the Fitnessmith warehouse, including, but not limited to, damage during shipment. The Buyer is
advised that inspection should be made of any equipment or goods before accepting delivery. Acceptance of delivery constitutes acceptance of
goods. The Buyer must file its own claim for any type of damages directly with the carrier in the event of any loss or damage during
transportation, and must make payment for any equipment of goods purchased from Fitnessmith regardless of any dispute the Buyer may have
with any carrier or agents. Fitnessmith will attempt in good faith to ship on or before any scheduled shipment date. Buyer acknowledges that
Fitnessmith may, from time to time, be subject to manufacturer production or shipping delays. In such event, Buyer agrees that Fitnessmith may,
in its sole discretion, allocate distribution of Fitnessmith’s products among its customers, notwithstanding the effect such allocation may have on
Buyer’s outstanding orders, and Fitnessmith will not be liable for any damage, however described or arising, for a good faith failure to fill any
order or for delay in meeting a scheduled shipment date. Fitnessmith may provide reasonable notice to Buyer regarding any material delay in
shipment. Fitnessmith may make partial shipments of Buyer’s orders. Such partial shipments shall be separately invoiced and paid for when
received, without regard to subsequent shipments. Delay in shipment or delivery of any particular installation shall not alone relieve Buyer of its
obligation to accept subsequent installations. Fitnessmith may provide reasonable notice to Buyer in the event of material delays in connection
with partial shipment of an order. Fitnessmith will use its best efforts to deliver as specified, but in no event will Fitnessmith be liable for any
damage, consequential or otherwise, arising from any failure of Fitnessmith to meet any delivery date.
  

RETURNS:
  

Any Custom Products and/or Customer modified Standard Products ordered from Fitnessmith are non-cancelable and/or non-returnable. Credit
may be issued only on those items that are stock items of standard manufacture and in new, salable condition in the original packaging. Any
such return shall be at the expense and risk of the Buyer and subject to a 25% restocking charge of the original purchase price.
  

WARRANTY:
  

EACH FITNESSMITH PRODUCT WILL CARRY ITS OWN LIMITED WARRANTY AS SET FORTH BY THE MANUFACTURE.

  

SUCH WARRANTY WILL BE BUYER’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
BY FITNESSMITH, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

  

INSTALLATION:
  

At the time the order is placed, the Buyer will provide Fitnessmith with an installation date. Fitnessmith will make reasonable commercial efforts
to install the product on or before the installation date. Product held more than 10 days after the installation date at the Buyer’s request will be
subject to a storage fee. Product held more than 30 days past the installation date at the Buyer’s request will be subject to a 15% restocking fee
as well as a storage fee. With the exception of Grand Openings, partial installations require the installed product to be paid per the terms of the
invoice.
  

PROPER USAGE:
  

It is imperative that equipment is used properly as to avoid injury. Buyer agrees that equipment will not be used in any way other than as
designed or intended by the manufacturer, specifically including, but not limited to the following:   1) Keep hands and feet clear of moving parts
at all times. 2) Read all machine instructional placards and warnings and direct any questions to a qualified fitness professional prior to use. 3)
All strength equipment MUST be secured (bolted and tightened) to a solid, level surface to ensure stabilization and eliminate rocking or tipping.
As it pertains to treadmills, Buyer agrees that it is aware of electrical requirements relating to dedicated circuit and plug configurations;
additional information can be found in the owner’s manual.
  

PAYMENT:
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Payment is 50% down at time of order, 40% prior to delivery and 10% upon install. All invoices not paid when due shall bear interest at 1.5%
per month or the highest rate allowed by law until paid in full. Fitnessmith reserves the right to exercise any of its lawful remedies if Buyer does
not make payment when due. Without limiting the provisions of the immediately preceding sentence, Buyer’s failure to pay any invoice for the
products and/or services when due shall entitle Fitnessmith to delay installation of orders placed by Buyer and, at Fitnessmith’s option, to
cancel any pending orders placed by Buyer. Fitnessmith shall have the right to offset and deduct from any amounts due Buyer all sums owing
from Buyer to Fitnessmith. To secure the payment and performance of all obligations due and owed by Buyer to Fitnessmith hereunder, Buyer
hereby grants Fitnessmith a Uniform Commercial Code purchase money security interest in products purchased from Fitnessmith hereunder
and proceeds there from. This Agreement constitutes a security agreement between Buyer, as debtor, and Fitnessmith, as secured party, under
the Uniform Commercial Code, and Fitnessmith has the rights and remedies of a secured party hereunder. Buyer hereby appoints Fitnessmith
as its attorney in fact to execute such financing statements as may be required, from time to time, to perfect the security interest granted herein.
Fitnessmith may, upon default from Buyer, require Buyer to assemble the products and make them legally available to Fitnessmith for
repossession, including reasonable access to the facilities of Buyer, and Fitnessmith shall be entitled to all reasonable expenses of
repossession, including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in connection therewith. There will be a $35.00 service charge for each returned
check.
  

TERMINATION:
  

Buyer may not terminate this Agreement except by giving Fitnessmith thirty (30) days prior written notice. Upon termination, Buyer will be
obligated to pay Fitnessmith immediately any and all outstanding balances as of the date of termination.
  

MISCELLANEOUS:
  

Delivery dates set forth in any sales order or any confirmation thereof shall be determined to be estimates only. Fitnessmith shall not be liable
for delays in performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement if such failure is caused by the occurrence of any contingency beyond
its reasonable control, including but not limited to acts of God, strikes and other industrial disturbances, failure of raw material vendors,
terrorism, failure of transport, accidents, wars, riots, insurrections, or orders of government agencies. Performance shall be resumed as soon as
possible after cessation of such cause. No failure or delay on the part of either party in exercising any right or remedy hereunder will operate as
waiver thereof, nor will any or a single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof of any other
right or remedy. No provision of this Agreement may be waived except in a writing signed by the party granting such waiver. Except as specified
herein, all notices, communications and reports required or permitted pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing, and the same shall be
given and shall be deemed to be have been delivered and received on the date served, if personally delivered and three (3) days after mailing,
if placed in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified mail addressed to the parties at the address set forth below or at such other
addresses as may be specified hereafter in writing in accordance with this Section. Severability. In the event that any one or more of the
provisions or parts of any provision, contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any
aspect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the same shall not invalidate or otherwise affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, or part of any provision, had never been contained herein. Applicable
Law; Personal Jurisdiction; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the
laws of the State of Florida. All parties to this Agreement agree to submit to personal jurisdiction in the County of Palm Beach, State of Florida,
United States of America. Any dispute that arises under or relates to this Agreement (whether contract, tort or both) shall be resolved in the
applicable Federal or state court in the County of Boynton Beach, State of Florida, United States of America. Section Headings. The section
headings contained herein are for convenience only and are not intended to affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. This
Agreement does not constitute Buyer to be a partner, employee, agent, franchisee of or in joint venture with Fitnessmith nor does this
Agreement authorize Buyer to represent or act for Fitnessmith in any manner. Buyer will have no right or authority to assume or create any
obligation of any kind, express or implied, on behalf of Fitnessmith nor may Buyer bind Fitnessmith in any way whatsoever. Buyer
acknowledges that is has not paid Fitnessmith any sum of money or any other consideration as a franchise fee or as a condition to signing this
Agreement. In the event of any voluntary proceedings in bankruptcy or insolvency by or against Buyer, or in the event of the appointment, with or
without Buyer’s consent, of an assignee for the benefit of creditors or a receiver, Fitnessmith shall be entitled to cancel any unfilled part of
Buyer’s purchase without any liability whatsoever. Entire Agreement. The entire agreement between the parties is set forth herein and
supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. There are no representations,
warranties, covenants, agreements or collateral understanding, oral or otherwise, expressed or implied, affecting this Agreement which are not
expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall not be supplemented or modified by any course of dealing or trade usage. Attorney’s Fees. If
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any party institutes any action or proceeding, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to be
reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses incurred thereby, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees (including
pre-judgment and post- judgment) and costs.
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Acceptance (If signing below, ALL Quote pages must be returned to Fitnessmith to constitute a valid Purchase Order.)

I have read and agree to the Terms and Conditions. Please accept this signed quotation as a purchase order and acceptance of the price, 
terms, and conditions above.

Company Name: ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER

Signature Date

Print Name Title
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ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER

STRENGTH ROOM

Prepared for:

54



John Pitt
Territory Manager

Mobile: 704.661.6543
Email: Jpitt@�tnessmith.com

Arm�eld Center
Weight Room

110VAC 20AMP 60 HERTZ NEMA 5-20R

110 VAC 50-60 HERTZ

Coaxial RF TV output. 75 ohm

RJ45 Ethernet Lan. CAT6

Required Wall Blocking or Floor Mounting

03.02.23

LEGEND

Strength
1. Chest Press
2. Pec Fly/Rear Delt
3. Chin Dip Assist
4. Ab Crunch
5. Leg Extension
6. Leg Curl
7. Leg Press
8. Multi-Station

Functional/Free Weight
9. Glute Drive
10. Plate Loaded Leg Press
11. Half Racks with Accessory Storage
12. Smith Machine
13. Decline Bench
14. Multi-Adjust Bench
15. Dumbbell Rack
16. Preacher Bench
17. Barbell Rack

1

2

3

4

5
6 7

8

Note: Fitnessmith will not be providing any of 
the ethernet or coaxial cables, nor outlet 
converters, unless otherwise speci�ed within 
the proposal. Please make sure the circuits 
are correctly con�gured before installation. 

9

13

10

11

12

14

16

17

15

55
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Strength

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

HOIST ROC-IT SELECTORIZED CHIN DIP ASSIST $6,299.00 $4,199.33 1 $4,199.33

HOIST COMMERCIAL MULTI JUNGLE 6 STATION SINGLE POD W STNAD
ALONE HILO PULLEY (CMJ-6000-1 4 STATION, CMS-6175 X 1 WITH CMJ-OPT-
01 BOOM X 1)

$10,750.00 $7,883.33 1 $7,883.33

HOIST COMMERCIAL FREEWEIGHT  7-DEGREE SMITH $4,499.00 $3,299.27 1 $3,299.27

HOIST COMMERCIAL FREEWEIGHT  PREACHER CURL $999.00 $732.60 1 $732.60

HOIST GLUTE THRUST $2,999.00 $2,399.20 1 $2,399.20

DYNAMIC FITNESS TITAN G2 HALF RACK 8' $2,059.00 $1,838.67 2 $3,677.34

DYNAMIC FITNESS ULTRA PRO REMOVABLE LANDMINE (REQUIRES 709250
RECEPTACLE)

$96.00 $85.33 1 $85.33

DYNAMIC ULTRA PRO RECEPTACLE (UPPER AND LOWER) (SINGLE) $75.00 $66.67 1 $66.67

DYNAMIC CONNECTOR SINGLE BAR 71" $499.42 $158.04 1 $158.04

DYNAMIC ANNEX BUMPER PLATER STORAGE 71" $499.42 $332.95 1 $332.95

DYNAMIC ANNEX DUMBBELL/KETTLEBELL SHELF 71" $1,162.96 $387.65 1 $387.65

DYNAMIC ANNEX MEDICINE BALL SHELF 71" $240.00 $223.04 1 $223.04

DYNAMIC TITAN ADJUSTABLE LADDER BENCH $910.00 $813.33 4 $3,253.32

DYNAMIC ULTRA PRO DECLINE UTILITY BENCH $1,314.00 $1,173.33 1 $1,173.33

TROYPAC- TWO 2-TIER SADDLE RACK W 20 PAIR TSD-R RUBBER 12 SIDED
DUMBBELLS,  5-100LB

$9,475.46 $6,316.97 1 $6,316.97

TROY CLUB PAC - TROY HORIZONTAL BARBELL RACK WITH 20-100LBS CURL
URETHANE BARBELLS

$5,507.14 $3,671.43 1 $3,671.43

Subtotal $37,859.80

Accessories

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

TROY VTX 10 LB OLYMPIC 2" SOLID COLORED BUMPER PLATE WITH STEEL
INSERT, GREEN 25.5 MM

$56.80 $37.87 4 $151.48

TROY VTX 25 LB OLYMPIC 2" SOLID BUMPER PLATE WITH STEEL INSERT,
YELLOW 51 MM

$95.26 $63.51 4 $254.04

TROY VTX 45 LB OLYMPIC 2" SOLID BUMPER PLATE WITH STEEL INSERT, RED $166.96 $111.31 6 $667.86
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Accessories

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

TROY 2.5 LB PREMIUM GRADE RUBBER ENCASED INTER-LOCKING PLATE, NO
GRIP- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$8.06 $5.37 10 $53.70

TROY 5 LB PREMIUM GRADE RUBBER ENCASED OLYMPIC INTER-LOCKING
PLATE, NO GRIP- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$16.40 $10.93 14 $153.02

TROY 10 LB PREMIUM GRADE RUBBER OLYMPIC INTER-LOCKING ENCASED
PLATE, NO GRIP- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$32.82 $21.88 22 $481.36

TROY 25 LB PREMIUM  GRADE RUBBER ENCASED OLYMPIC INTER-LOCKING
GRIP PLATE- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$82.00 $54.67 18 $984.06

TROY 45 LB PREMIUM GRADE RUBBER ENCASED OLYMPIC INTER-LOCKING
GRIP PLATE- 10 YEAR WARRANTY

$147.60 $98.40 30 $2,952.00

THE "TROY BLACK WINGBAR" 7' LONG. 28MM BAR SHAFT. MEDIUM
KNURLING. BRIGHT ZINC PATED.  BLACK OXIDE FINISH. 213,300 P.S.I.
16.50â€? OF LOADABLE SLEEVE LENGTH. DOUBLE SNAP RING. BRONZE OIL
IMPREGNATED BUSHING.

$545.05 $363.37 3 $1,090.11

TROY 6' OLYMPIC WOMEN'S BAR, 25MM SHAFT, 6' 6" LONG 15KG $310.20 $206.80 1 $206.80

TROY INTERNATONAL STYLE 5' EZ CURL 30 MM BAR, BLACK $202.20 $134.80 1 $134.80

TROY 2' MUSCLE CLAMP COLLAR(PAIR) $57.96 $38.64 5 $193.20

TROY 10 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $24.90 $16.60 1 $16.60

TROY 15 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $37.36 $24.91 1 $24.91

TROY 20 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $49.80 $33.20 1 $33.20

TROY 25 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $62.26 $41.51 1 $41.51

TROY 30 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $74.70 $49.80 1 $49.80

TROY 35 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $87.16 $58.11 1 $58.11

TROY 40 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $99.60 $66.40 1 $66.40

TROY 45 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $112.06 $74.71 1 $74.71

TROY 50 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $124.50 $83.00 1 $83.00

TROY 55 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $136.96 $91.31 1 $91.31

TROY 60 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $149.40 $99.60 1 $99.60

TROY 70 LB BLACK CAST KETTLEBELL $174.30 $116.20 1 $116.20

Subtotal $8,077.78
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Services

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

SHIPPING CHARGES - EQUIPMENT $5,053.00 $5,053.00 1 $5,053.00

INSTALLATION:  INSIDE DELIVERY, ASSEMBLY, TESTING,  TRASH REMOVAL:
(FEE IS FOR FIRST FLOOR DOUBLE DOOR ACCESS ONLY) SITE SURVEY
REQUIRED FOR GUARANTEED PRICE.  FITNESSMITH WILL NOT WALL
MOUNT ANY EQUIPMENT, RACKS, OR RIGS.

$5,750.00 $5,750.00 1 $5,750.00

THIS PROPOSAL IS PREPARED BASED ON CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS
AND MANUFACTURER PRICING.  PRICES MAY BE SUBJECT TO CHANGE
BASED ON RISING COST OF GOODS, UNKNOWN SURCHARGES, OR
ESCALATING SHIPPING AND INSTALLATION FEES.

$0.00 $0.00 1 $0.00

COLOR: $0.00 $0.00 1 $0.00

Subtotal $10,803.00

Total savings: $18,352.41
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STRENGTH ROOM

Prepared for: Prepared by: Details:

ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER
Randy Ingram
872 W 52 Bypass
Pilot Mountain, NC  27041
ringram@pilotmountainnc.org
(336) 368-2012

Fitnessmith
John Pitt

Fax (561) 997-8788
jpitt@fitnessmith.com

Proposal #: 018071

Version: 1

Delivered: 03/28/2023
Expires: 04/27/2023

Proposal Summary

Description Amount

Strength $37,859.80

Accessories $8,077.78

Services $10,803.00

Subtotal $56,740.58

Estimated Tax $3,971.82

Total $60,712.40

Tax is subject to change at time of Invoice.
Payment is 50% down at time of order, 40% prior to delivery and 10% upon install.
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AGREEMENT:
  

The product quotation, purchase orders, shipping documents and these terms and conditions of sale constitutes a continuing sale Agreement
between Centurion Partners Health and Fitness, a Florida Limited Liability Company doing business as Fitnessmith (hereafter referred to as
(“Fitnessmith”) and Buyer, as set  forth at  the end of  this Product Quotation Agreement,  for  the purchase of any product and services  to be
provided by Fitnessmith to Buyer. Fitnessmith sales representatives do not have the authority to change or modify the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.
  

PURCHASE ORDER:
  

Buyer may provide Buyer’s standard form of purchase order  to place orders for product and service, but any terms and conditions on such
standard form which are in addition to or inconsistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement will be deemed stricken from such order.
If Buyer does not deliver written objection to the terms hereof which are different than those appearing on the Buyer’s purchase order, Buyer
agrees to all of Fitnessmith’s terms and conditions. All purchase orders shall be made or confirmed in writing and are subject to acceptance by
Fitnessmith. The Buyer shall be responsible for all costs and fees incurred by Fitnessmith for refused shipments, including freight and insurance
costs. Orders cancelled  less than thirty (30) days from originally scheduled shipment date will be subject  to a cancellation fee of 25% of  the
value of the purchase order.
  

PRICES:
  

The prices to be paid by Buyer for all products and services purchased hereunder shall be Fitnessmith’s standard prices in effect on the date of
Fitnessmith’s receipt of Buyer’s purchase order, less any applicable deductions which may be in effect from time to time. Fitnessmith reserves
the right to change its standard prices and to publish a new price list from time to time and at any time, without prior notice to Buyer. Should any
new price  result  in an  increase  in  the price of  any product or services,  the  increased price shall apply  to  any Buyer order placed after  the
effective date of the new price. For orders that are placed for delivery more than ninety (90) days into the future, Fitnessmith reserves the right
to review and adjust  the agreed upon pricing within thirty (30) days of  fulfilling the purchase order.  In  this case,  the Buyer has the option of
canceling the order with no penalties, if the cancellation is in writing and within ten (10) days of the notification of the price increase. Buyer is
solely  responsible  for any prices  it  charges  to  its customer. Nothing  in  this Agreement  shall  in any way  restrict  the Buyer’s  freedom  to  sell
products at prices determined  in accordance with  its own  judgment. Buyer shall be responsible  for all  sales, use, or other  taxes (other  than
taxes on Fitnessmith’s  income or ownership of  property), applicable  to Buyer’s purchase of  products and/or services. Buyer shall pay  such
taxes when invoiced by Fitnessmith or shall supply appropriate tax exemption or resale certificates. Buyer is also responsible for any domestic
or foreign forwarding agent or brokerage fees, duties, or other fees and any export licenses which may be necessary to export the products.
Seller reserves the right to correct any clerical or mathematical errors at any time.
  

CUSTOM PRODUCT:
  

Fitnessmith requires a non-refundable 50% down payment for all custom products. A purchase order for custom product contractually obligates
the Buyer to take delivery. Custom orders are non-cancelable and may not be rescheduled without the prior approval of a corporate officer of
Fitnessmith, which may be withheld at the sole and absolute discretion of Fitnessmith. All custom orders have an up charge to be determined by
Fitnessmith. All build to order strength orders cancelled less than thirty (30) days from the original scheduled delivery will be subject to a 25%
cancellation fee.
  

SHIPMENTS:
  

F.O.B. shipping point shall be Fitnessmith warehouse unless otherwise specified. Risk of loss with respect to Fitnessmith products shall pass to
Buyer at the time of delivery of the products to the carrier for shipment. The Buyer assumes all risk involved in the transportation and handling
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of  the equipment or goods once  it has  left  the Fitnessmith warehouse,  including, but not  limited  to, damage during shipment. The Buyer  is
advised that inspection should be made of any equipment or goods before accepting delivery. Acceptance of delivery constitutes acceptance of
goods.  The  Buyer  must  file  its  own  claim  for  any  type  of  damages  directly  with  the  carrier  in  the  event  of  any  loss  or  damage  during
transportation, and must make payment for any equipment of goods purchased from Fitnessmith regardless of any dispute the Buyer may have
with any carrier or agents. Fitnessmith will attempt in good faith to ship on or before any scheduled shipment date. Buyer acknowledges that
Fitnessmith may, from time to time, be subject to manufacturer production or shipping delays. In such event, Buyer agrees that Fitnessmith may,
in its sole discretion, allocate distribution of Fitnessmith’s products among its customers, notwithstanding the effect such allocation may have on
Buyer’s outstanding orders, and Fitnessmith will not be liable for any damage, however described or arising, for a good faith failure to fill any
order or for delay in meeting a scheduled shipment date. Fitnessmith may provide reasonable notice to Buyer regarding any material delay in
shipment. Fitnessmith may make partial shipments of Buyer’s orders. Such partial shipments shall be separately  invoiced and paid for when
received, without regard to subsequent shipments. Delay in shipment or delivery of any particular installation shall not alone relieve Buyer of its
obligation to accept subsequent installations. Fitnessmith may provide reasonable notice to Buyer in the event of material delays in connection
with partial shipment of an order. Fitnessmith will use  its best efforts to deliver as specified, but  in no event will Fitnessmith be  liable for any
damage, consequential or otherwise, arising from any failure of Fitnessmith to meet any delivery date.
  

RETURNS:
  

Any Custom Products and/or Customer modified Standard Products ordered from Fitnessmith are non-cancelable and/or non-returnable. Credit
may be issued only on those items that are stock items of standard manufacture and in new, salable condition in the original packaging. Any
such return shall be at the expense and risk of the Buyer and subject to a 25% restocking charge of the original purchase price.
  

WARRANTY:
  

EACH FITNESSMITH PRODUCT WILL CARRY ITS OWN LIMITED WARRANTY AS SET FORTH BY THE MANUFACTURE.

  

SUCH WARRANTY WILL BE BUYER’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
BY FITNESSMITH, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

  

INSTALLATION:
  

At the time the order is placed, the Buyer will provide Fitnessmith with an installation date. Fitnessmith will make reasonable commercial efforts
to install the product on or before the installation date. Product held more than 10 days after the installation date at the Buyer’s request will be
subject to a storage fee. Product held more than 30 days past the installation date at the Buyer’s request will be subject to a 15% restocking fee
as well as a storage fee. With the exception of Grand Openings, partial installations require the installed product to be paid per the terms of the
invoice.
  

PROPER USAGE:
  

It  is  imperative  that  equipment  is used properly  as  to avoid  injury. Buyer agrees  that  equipment will not  be used  in any way other  than  as
designed or intended by the manufacturer, specifically including, but not limited to the following:   1) Keep hands and feet clear of moving parts
at all times. 2) Read all machine instructional placards and warnings and direct any questions to a qualified fitness professional prior to use. 3)
All strength equipment MUST be secured (bolted and tightened) to a solid, level surface to ensure stabilization and eliminate rocking or tipping.
As  it  pertains  to  treadmills,  Buyer  agrees  that  it  is  aware  of  electrical  requirements  relating  to  dedicated  circuit  and  plug  configurations;
additional information can be found in the owner’s manual.
  

PAYMENT:
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Payment is 50% down at time of order, 40% prior to delivery and 10% upon install. All invoices not paid when due shall bear interest at 1.5%
per month or the highest rate allowed by law until paid in full. Fitnessmith reserves the right to exercise any of its lawful remedies if Buyer does
not make payment when due. Without limiting the provisions of the immediately preceding sentence, Buyer’s failure to pay any invoice for the
products and/or  services when  due  shall  entitle  Fitnessmith  to  delay  installation of  orders  placed  by Buyer  and,  at  Fitnessmith’s  option,  to
cancel any pending orders placed by Buyer. Fitnessmith shall have the right to offset and deduct from any amounts due Buyer all sums owing
from Buyer to Fitnessmith. To secure the payment and performance of all obligations due and owed by Buyer to Fitnessmith hereunder, Buyer
hereby grants Fitnessmith a Uniform Commercial Code purchase money security  interest  in products purchased from Fitnessmith hereunder
and proceeds there from. This Agreement constitutes a security agreement between Buyer, as debtor, and Fitnessmith, as secured party, under
the Uniform Commercial Code, and Fitnessmith has the rights and remedies of a secured party hereunder. Buyer hereby appoints Fitnessmith
as its attorney in fact to execute such financing statements as may be required, from time to time, to perfect the security interest granted herein.
Fitnessmith  may,  upon  default  from  Buyer,  require  Buyer  to  assemble  the  products  and  make  them  legally  available  to  Fitnessmith  for
repossession,  including  reasonable  access  to  the  facilities  of  Buyer,  and  Fitnessmith  shall  be  entitled  to  all  reasonable  expenses  of
repossession, including reasonable attorney’s  fees incurred  in connection therewith. There will be a $35.00 service charge for each returned
check.
  

TERMINATION:
  

Buyer may  not  terminate  this Agreement  except  by  giving Fitnessmith  thirty  (30)  days  prior written  notice. Upon  termination, Buyer will  be
obligated to pay Fitnessmith immediately any and all outstanding balances as of the date of termination.
  

MISCELLANEOUS:
  

Delivery dates set forth in any sales order or any confirmation thereof shall be determined to be estimates only. Fitnessmith shall not be liable
for delays in performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement if such failure is caused by the occurrence of any contingency beyond
its  reasonable  control,  including  but  not  limited  to  acts  of  God,  strikes  and  other  industrial  disturbances,  failure  of  raw  material  vendors,
terrorism, failure of transport, accidents, wars, riots, insurrections, or orders of government agencies. Performance shall be resumed as soon as
possible after cessation of such cause. No failure or delay on the part of either party in exercising any right or remedy hereunder will operate as
waiver thereof, nor will any or a single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof of any other
right or remedy. No provision of this Agreement may be waived except in a writing signed by the party granting such waiver. Except as specified
herein, all notices, communications and  reports required or permitted pursuant  to  this Agreement shall be  in writing, and  the same shall be
given and shall be deemed to be have been delivered and received on the date served, if personally delivered and three (3) days after mailing,
if placed  in  the United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified mail addressed  to the parties at  the address set  forth below or at such other
addresses as may  be  specified  hereafter  in writing  in  accordance with  this Section. Severability.  In  the event  that  any  one  or more  of  the
provisions or parts of any  provision, contained  in  this Agreement  shall  for any  reason  be held  to be  invalid,  illegal or unenforceable  in  any
aspect by a court of competent  jurisdiction,  the same shall not  invalidate or otherwise affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, or part of any provision, had never been contained herein. Applicable
Law; Personal Jurisdiction; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the
laws of the State of Florida. All parties to this Agreement agree to submit to personal jurisdiction in the County of Palm Beach, State of Florida,
United States of America. Any dispute that arises under or relates to this Agreement (whether contract,  tort or both) shall be resolved  in  the
applicable Federal or state court in  the County of Boynton Beach, State of Florida, United States of America. Section Headings. The section
headings  contained  herein  are  for  convenience  only  and  are  not  intended  to  affect  the  meaning  or  interpretation  of  this  Agreement.  This
Agreement  does  not  constitute  Buyer  to  be  a  partner,  employee,  agent,  franchisee  of  or  in  joint  venture  with  Fitnessmith  nor  does  this
Agreement authorize Buyer  to represent or act  for Fitnessmith  in any manner. Buyer will have no right or authority  to assume or create any
obligation  of  any  kind,  express  or  implied,  on  behalf  of  Fitnessmith  nor  may  Buyer  bind  Fitnessmith  in  any  way  whatsoever.  Buyer
acknowledges that is has not paid Fitnessmith any sum of money or any other consideration as a franchise fee or as a condition to signing this
Agreement. In the event of any voluntary proceedings in bankruptcy or insolvency by or against Buyer, or in the event of the appointment, with or
without Buyer’s consent, of an assignee  for  the benefit of  creditors or a  receiver, Fitnessmith shall be entitled  to cancel any unfilled part of
Buyer’s  purchase  without  any  liability  whatsoever.  Entire  Agreement.  The  entire  agreement  between  the  parties  is  set  forth  herein  and
supersedes  all  prior  discussions  and  agreements  between  the  parties  relating  to  the  subject  matter  hereof.  There  are  no  representations,
warranties, covenants, agreements or collateral understanding, oral or otherwise, expressed or implied, affecting this Agreement which are not
expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall not be supplemented or modified by any course of dealing or trade usage. Attorney’s Fees. If
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any party  institutes any action or proceeding,  the prevailing party shall be entitled,  in addition  to such other relief as may be granted,  to be
reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses incurred thereby,  including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees (including
pre-judgment and post- judgment) and costs.
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Acceptance (If signing below, ALL Quote pages must be returned to Fitnessmith to constitute a valid Purchase Order.)

I have read and agree to the Terms and Conditions. Please accept this signed quotation as a purchase order and acceptance of the price, 
terms, and conditions above.

Company Name: ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER

Signature Date

Print Name Title
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Cardio *Optional

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

SCHWINN Zs SPIN BIKE $4,049.00 $2,374.36 12 $28,492.32

STAGES SC3.20 INDOOR CYCLE - (BIKE, POWER METER, CONSOLE) $3,445.00 $2,198.72 12* $26,384.64

*Optional Amount $26,384.64

Subtotal $28,492.32

Strength

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

FITBENCH STUDIO INCL: 10,15,20,25LB DUMBBELLS, 18LB KETTLEBELLS,
12LB SLAM BALL,, L,M,H FITBANDS

$2,699.00 $2,076.15 12 $24,913.80

Subtotal $24,913.80

Services

Description List Price Customer Price Qty Ext. Price

SHIPPING CHARGES - EQUIPMENT $3,000.00 $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00

INSTALLATION:  INSIDE DELIVERY, ASSEMBLY, TESTING,  TRASH REMOVAL:
(FEE IS FOR FIRST FLOOR DOUBLE DOOR ACCESS ONLY) SITE SURVEY
REQUIRED FOR GUARANTEED PRICE.  FITNESSMITH WILL NOT WALL
MOUNT ANY EQUIPMENT, RACKS, OR RIGS.

$4,800.00 $4,800.00 1 $4,800.00

THIS PROPOSAL IS PREPARED BASED ON CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS
AND MANUFACTURER PRICING.  PRICES MAY BE SUBJECT TO CHANGE
BASED ON RISING COST OF GOODS, UNKNOWN SURCHARGES, OR
ESCALATING SHIPPING AND INSTALLATION FEES.

$0.00 $0.00 1 $0.00

COLOR: $0.00 $0.00 1 $0.00

Subtotal $7,800.00

Total savings: $27,569.88
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MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM

Prepared for: Prepared by: Details:

ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER
Randy Ingram
872 W 52 Bypass
Pilot Mountain, NC  27041
ringram@pilotmountainnc.org
(336) 368-2012

Fitnessmith
John Pitt

Fax (561) 997-8788
jpitt@fitnessmith.com

Proposal #: 018292

Version: 1

Delivered: 04/17/2023
Expires: 05/14/2023

Proposal Summary

Description Amount

Cardio $28,492.32

Strength $24,913.80

Services $7,800.00

Total $61,206.12

*Optional Expenses

Description Amount

Cardio $26,384.64

Optional Subtotal $26,384.64

Tax is subject to change at time of Invoice.
Payment is 50% down at time of order, 40% prior to delivery and 10% upon install.
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AGREEMENT:
  

The product quotation, purchase orders, shipping documents and these terms and conditions of sale constitutes a continuing sale Agreement
between Centurion Partners Health and Fitness, a Florida Limited Liability Company doing business as Fitnessmith (hereafter referred to as
(“Fitnessmith”) and Buyer, as set  forth at  the end of  this Product Quotation Agreement,  for  the purchase of any product and services  to be
provided by Fitnessmith to Buyer. Fitnessmith sales representatives do not have the authority to change or modify the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.
  

PURCHASE ORDER:
  

Buyer may provide Buyer’s standard form of purchase order  to place orders for product and service, but any terms and conditions on such
standard form which are in addition to or inconsistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement will be deemed stricken from such order.
If Buyer does not deliver written objection to the terms hereof which are different than those appearing on the Buyer’s purchase order, Buyer
agrees to all of Fitnessmith’s terms and conditions. All purchase orders shall be made or confirmed in writing and are subject to acceptance by
Fitnessmith. The Buyer shall be responsible for all costs and fees incurred by Fitnessmith for refused shipments, including freight and insurance
costs. Orders cancelled  less than thirty (30) days from originally scheduled shipment date will be subject  to a cancellation fee of 25% of  the
value of the purchase order.
  

PRICES:
  

The prices to be paid by Buyer for all products and services purchased hereunder shall be Fitnessmith’s standard prices in effect on the date of
Fitnessmith’s receipt of Buyer’s purchase order, less any applicable deductions which may be in effect from time to time. Fitnessmith reserves
the right to change its standard prices and to publish a new price list from time to time and at any time, without prior notice to Buyer. Should any
new price  result  in an  increase  in  the price of  any product or services,  the  increased price shall apply  to  any Buyer order placed after  the
effective date of the new price. For orders that are placed for delivery more than ninety (90) days into the future, Fitnessmith reserves the right
to review and adjust  the agreed upon pricing within thirty (30) days of  fulfilling the purchase order.  In  this case,  the Buyer has the option of
canceling the order with no penalties, if the cancellation is in writing and within ten (10) days of the notification of the price increase. Buyer is
solely  responsible  for any prices  it  charges  to  its customer. Nothing  in  this Agreement  shall  in any way  restrict  the Buyer’s  freedom  to  sell
products at prices determined  in accordance with  its own  judgment. Buyer shall be responsible  for all  sales, use, or other  taxes (other  than
taxes on Fitnessmith’s  income or ownership of  property), applicable  to Buyer’s purchase of  products and/or services. Buyer shall pay  such
taxes when invoiced by Fitnessmith or shall supply appropriate tax exemption or resale certificates. Buyer is also responsible for any domestic
or foreign forwarding agent or brokerage fees, duties, or other fees and any export licenses which may be necessary to export the products.
Seller reserves the right to correct any clerical or mathematical errors at any time.
  

CUSTOM PRODUCT:
  

Fitnessmith requires a non-refundable 50% down payment for all custom products. A purchase order for custom product contractually obligates
the Buyer to take delivery. Custom orders are non-cancelable and may not be rescheduled without the prior approval of a corporate officer of
Fitnessmith, which may be withheld at the sole and absolute discretion of Fitnessmith. All custom orders have an up charge to be determined by
Fitnessmith. All build to order strength orders cancelled less than thirty (30) days from the original scheduled delivery will be subject to a 25%
cancellation fee.
  

SHIPMENTS:
  

F.O.B. shipping point shall be Fitnessmith warehouse unless otherwise specified. Risk of loss with respect to Fitnessmith products shall pass to
Buyer at the time of delivery of the products to the carrier for shipment. The Buyer assumes all risk involved in the transportation and handling
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of  the equipment or goods once  it has  left  the Fitnessmith warehouse,  including, but not  limited  to, damage during shipment. The Buyer  is
advised that inspection should be made of any equipment or goods before accepting delivery. Acceptance of delivery constitutes acceptance of
goods.  The  Buyer  must  file  its  own  claim  for  any  type  of  damages  directly  with  the  carrier  in  the  event  of  any  loss  or  damage  during
transportation, and must make payment for any equipment of goods purchased from Fitnessmith regardless of any dispute the Buyer may have
with any carrier or agents. Fitnessmith will attempt in good faith to ship on or before any scheduled shipment date. Buyer acknowledges that
Fitnessmith may, from time to time, be subject to manufacturer production or shipping delays. In such event, Buyer agrees that Fitnessmith may,
in its sole discretion, allocate distribution of Fitnessmith’s products among its customers, notwithstanding the effect such allocation may have on
Buyer’s outstanding orders, and Fitnessmith will not be liable for any damage, however described or arising, for a good faith failure to fill any
order or for delay in meeting a scheduled shipment date. Fitnessmith may provide reasonable notice to Buyer regarding any material delay in
shipment. Fitnessmith may make partial shipments of Buyer’s orders. Such partial shipments shall be separately  invoiced and paid for when
received, without regard to subsequent shipments. Delay in shipment or delivery of any particular installation shall not alone relieve Buyer of its
obligation to accept subsequent installations. Fitnessmith may provide reasonable notice to Buyer in the event of material delays in connection
with partial shipment of an order. Fitnessmith will use  its best efforts to deliver as specified, but  in no event will Fitnessmith be  liable for any
damage, consequential or otherwise, arising from any failure of Fitnessmith to meet any delivery date.
  

RETURNS:
  

Any Custom Products and/or Customer modified Standard Products ordered from Fitnessmith are non-cancelable and/or non-returnable. Credit
may be issued only on those items that are stock items of standard manufacture and in new, salable condition in the original packaging. Any
such return shall be at the expense and risk of the Buyer and subject to a 25% restocking charge of the original purchase price.
  

WARRANTY:
  

EACH FITNESSMITH PRODUCT WILL CARRY ITS OWN LIMITED WARRANTY AS SET FORTH BY THE MANUFACTURE.

  

SUCH WARRANTY WILL BE BUYER’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
BY FITNESSMITH, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.

  

INSTALLATION:
  

At the time the order is placed, the Buyer will provide Fitnessmith with an installation date. Fitnessmith will make reasonable commercial efforts
to install the product on or before the installation date. Product held more than 10 days after the installation date at the Buyer’s request will be
subject to a storage fee. Product held more than 30 days past the installation date at the Buyer’s request will be subject to a 15% restocking fee
as well as a storage fee. With the exception of Grand Openings, partial installations require the installed product to be paid per the terms of the
invoice.
  

PROPER USAGE:
  

It  is  imperative  that  equipment  is used properly  as  to avoid  injury. Buyer agrees  that  equipment will not  be used  in any way other  than  as
designed or intended by the manufacturer, specifically including, but not limited to the following:   1) Keep hands and feet clear of moving parts
at all times. 2) Read all machine instructional placards and warnings and direct any questions to a qualified fitness professional prior to use. 3)
All strength equipment MUST be secured (bolted and tightened) to a solid, level surface to ensure stabilization and eliminate rocking or tipping.
As  it  pertains  to  treadmills,  Buyer  agrees  that  it  is  aware  of  electrical  requirements  relating  to  dedicated  circuit  and  plug  configurations;
additional information can be found in the owner’s manual.
  

PAYMENT:
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Payment is 50% down at time of order, 40% prior to delivery and 10% upon install. All invoices not paid when due shall bear interest at 1.5%
per month or the highest rate allowed by law until paid in full. Fitnessmith reserves the right to exercise any of its lawful remedies if Buyer does
not make payment when due. Without limiting the provisions of the immediately preceding sentence, Buyer’s failure to pay any invoice for the
products and/or  services when  due  shall  entitle  Fitnessmith  to  delay  installation of  orders  placed  by Buyer  and,  at  Fitnessmith’s  option,  to
cancel any pending orders placed by Buyer. Fitnessmith shall have the right to offset and deduct from any amounts due Buyer all sums owing
from Buyer to Fitnessmith. To secure the payment and performance of all obligations due and owed by Buyer to Fitnessmith hereunder, Buyer
hereby grants Fitnessmith a Uniform Commercial Code purchase money security  interest  in products purchased from Fitnessmith hereunder
and proceeds there from. This Agreement constitutes a security agreement between Buyer, as debtor, and Fitnessmith, as secured party, under
the Uniform Commercial Code, and Fitnessmith has the rights and remedies of a secured party hereunder. Buyer hereby appoints Fitnessmith
as its attorney in fact to execute such financing statements as may be required, from time to time, to perfect the security interest granted herein.
Fitnessmith  may,  upon  default  from  Buyer,  require  Buyer  to  assemble  the  products  and  make  them  legally  available  to  Fitnessmith  for
repossession,  including  reasonable  access  to  the  facilities  of  Buyer,  and  Fitnessmith  shall  be  entitled  to  all  reasonable  expenses  of
repossession, including reasonable attorney’s  fees incurred  in connection therewith. There will be a $35.00 service charge for each returned
check.
  

TERMINATION:
  

Buyer may  not  terminate  this Agreement  except  by  giving Fitnessmith  thirty  (30)  days  prior written  notice. Upon  termination, Buyer will  be
obligated to pay Fitnessmith immediately any and all outstanding balances as of the date of termination.
  

MISCELLANEOUS:
  

Delivery dates set forth in any sales order or any confirmation thereof shall be determined to be estimates only. Fitnessmith shall not be liable
for delays in performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement if such failure is caused by the occurrence of any contingency beyond
its  reasonable  control,  including  but  not  limited  to  acts  of  God,  strikes  and  other  industrial  disturbances,  failure  of  raw  material  vendors,
terrorism, failure of transport, accidents, wars, riots, insurrections, or orders of government agencies. Performance shall be resumed as soon as
possible after cessation of such cause. No failure or delay on the part of either party in exercising any right or remedy hereunder will operate as
waiver thereof, nor will any or a single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof of any other
right or remedy. No provision of this Agreement may be waived except in a writing signed by the party granting such waiver. Except as specified
herein, all notices, communications and  reports required or permitted pursuant  to  this Agreement shall be  in writing, and  the same shall be
given and shall be deemed to be have been delivered and received on the date served, if personally delivered and three (3) days after mailing,
if placed  in  the United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified mail addressed  to the parties at  the address set  forth below or at such other
addresses as may  be  specified  hereafter  in writing  in  accordance with  this Section. Severability.  In  the event  that  any  one  or more  of  the
provisions or parts of any  provision, contained  in  this Agreement  shall  for any  reason  be held  to be  invalid,  illegal or unenforceable  in  any
aspect by a court of competent  jurisdiction,  the same shall not  invalidate or otherwise affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, or part of any provision, had never been contained herein. Applicable
Law; Personal Jurisdiction; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the
laws of the State of Florida. All parties to this Agreement agree to submit to personal jurisdiction in the County of Palm Beach, State of Florida,
United States of America. Any dispute that arises under or relates to this Agreement (whether contract,  tort or both) shall be resolved  in  the
applicable Federal or state court in  the County of Boynton Beach, State of Florida, United States of America. Section Headings. The section
headings  contained  herein  are  for  convenience  only  and  are  not  intended  to  affect  the  meaning  or  interpretation  of  this  Agreement.  This
Agreement  does  not  constitute  Buyer  to  be  a  partner,  employee,  agent,  franchisee  of  or  in  joint  venture  with  Fitnessmith  nor  does  this
Agreement authorize Buyer  to represent or act  for Fitnessmith  in any manner. Buyer will have no right or authority  to assume or create any
obligation  of  any  kind,  express  or  implied,  on  behalf  of  Fitnessmith  nor  may  Buyer  bind  Fitnessmith  in  any  way  whatsoever.  Buyer
acknowledges that is has not paid Fitnessmith any sum of money or any other consideration as a franchise fee or as a condition to signing this
Agreement. In the event of any voluntary proceedings in bankruptcy or insolvency by or against Buyer, or in the event of the appointment, with or
without Buyer’s consent, of an assignee  for  the benefit of  creditors or a  receiver, Fitnessmith shall be entitled  to cancel any unfilled part of
Buyer’s  purchase  without  any  liability  whatsoever.  Entire  Agreement.  The  entire  agreement  between  the  parties  is  set  forth  herein  and
supersedes  all  prior  discussions  and  agreements  between  the  parties  relating  to  the  subject  matter  hereof.  There  are  no  representations,
warranties, covenants, agreements or collateral understanding, oral or otherwise, expressed or implied, affecting this Agreement which are not
expressly set forth herein. This Agreement shall not be supplemented or modified by any course of dealing or trade usage. Attorney’s Fees. If
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any party  institutes any action or proceeding,  the prevailing party shall be entitled,  in addition  to such other relief as may be granted,  to be
reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses incurred thereby,  including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees (including
pre-judgment and post- judgment) and costs.
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Acceptance (If signing below, ALL Quote pages must be returned to Fitnessmith to constitute a valid Purchase Order.)

I have read and agree to the Terms and Conditions. Please accept this signed quotation as a purchase order and acceptance of the price, 
terms, and conditions above.

Company Name: ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER

Signature Date

Print Name Title
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corehealthandfitness.com

SAY NO TO  
STYROFOAM

CUSTOMIZATION

Creating positive impact through 

thoughtful action. In order to reduce 

our packaging’s negative influence on 

marine life and waterways, we have 

replaced expanded polystyrene (EPS) 

with 100% recycled corrugate, which 

can be recycled again to also use less 

raw material. Look for ways to reduce 

your disposal fees and environmental 

impact with recycling!

We know what it takes to build 
an authentic, meaningful brand 
experience. Our customization 
program is the perfect way to  
leverage all that hard work into 
creating an amazing group cycle 
experience. Whether your goal is 
creating a tranquil place to unwind 
or a high-energy disco ball clad club 
scene, our consultative approach  
will get you there.

Powered by personalized zones, accountability and an instructor who will push riders to be their best, the Z Bikes 

were designed for studios that focus on unifying their members with color. The configurable console allows for your 

instructor to design the class around FTP, Heart Rate, or Cadence for an experience that is never the same twice.

SCHWINN Z BIKES
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Z CONSOLE
DISPLAY TYPE Color LCD

NFC TAP TO PAIR Yes

BLUETOOTH DATA TRACKING Yes

USB CONNECTIVITY CSV file ride data out / software updates in

800/900 MHZ RECEIVER Yes

BLUETOOTH BROADCASTING 
AND RECEIVING

Yes

ANT+ PROFILE FE-C, FIT, PWR, HR

POWER SUPPLY On-board generator

DEVICE CHARGING CAPABILITY Yes

POWER MEASUREMENT 4iiii® powermeter

POWER ACCURACY >99%

GEARS / RESISTANCE LEVELS 25

OPENHUBTM CONSOLE CONNECTIVITY

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION:
• Bluetooth
• ANT+
• NFC

DEVICES THAT CONNECT:
• 4iiii Powermeter – BLE, ANT+
• Zone Console – BLE, ANT+, NFC (NPE)

TECHNOLOGY EXPERTS:
4iiii Powermeter

• Personal cycling apps – BLE
• App-based group displays – BLE

Zone Console
• Cardio tracking apps – BLE
• WASP based group displays – ANT+
• Personal watches – NFC

Zs 9-7510-QINTP0

Smooth Poly V

Za 9-7520-QINTP0

Authentic, toothed carbon belt

BELT FEEL
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FEATURES 

PRODUCT WEIGHT 130 lbs (59 kg)

SHIPPING WEIGHT 152 lbs (69 kg)

PRODUCT FOOTPRINT (LXW) 42.5 in x 20.6 in (1076.5 mm x 525 mm)

MAX PRODUCT LENGTH 56 in (1420 mm)

SHIPPING DIMENSIONS (LXWXH) 44.5 in x 10.6 in x 38 in (1130 mm x 270 mm x 960 mm)

FRAME MATERIAL Aluminum

FRAME FINISH Powder-coated  

FRAME COLOR Quantum Silver

DRIVE SYSTEM/DRIVE TRAIN 
Smooth Poly V Zs 9-7510-QINTP0
Authentic, toothed carbon belt Za 9-7520-QINTP0

RESISTANCE SYSTEM 6 Magnet Non-Contact Magnetic Resistance 

Q-FACTOR 168 mm

HANDLE BAR Universal

SADDLE AC Saddle 

FORE/AFT ADJUSTMENT SYSTEM Lever micro-adjustment 

HEIGHT ADJUSTMENT SYSTEM Pop-Pin

FLYWHEEL Aluminum, thin profile

PEDALS Morse Taper Double Link - SPD and athletic shoe cage

USER HEIGHT RANGE 4'11 to 6'8 (150 cm to 203 cm) 

MAX USER WEIGHT 300 lb (136 kg) 

 COMPATIBLE CONSOLES

ZONE CONSOLE Included

COMPATIBLE ACCESSORIES AND UPGRADES

PEDALS
Triple Link KEO-compatible, Morse Taper 718-5869

Triple Link Delta-compatible, Morse Taper 740-8689

BIKE NUMBERING TAGS 740-9639

DUMBBELL HOLDERS 700-0504-XX

PHONE HOLDER 740-9596-KT

POWERMETER CRANK Included

Dumbbells not included 73



Core Health & Fitness is more than gym equipment, we offer innovative solutions for all your facility needs. 
This is why we’ve brought together five of the most recognizable fitness brands to ensure our customers can 
offer their members authentic fitness experiences. Whether working with us directly or through our partners 
and distributors worldwide, we provide the highest quality equipment backed by a service and support team 
that will always go the extra mile to get you what you need, when you need it. Partner with us and see how our 
Core Values motivate our every decision. 

©2021 Core Health & Fitness LLC. All rights reserved. Star Trac, the Star Trac logo and StairMaster are registered trademarks of Core Health & Fitness, LLC. Schwinn and Nautilus are registered trademarks of Nautilus Inc. 
used under license to Core Health & Fitness LLC. Throwdown is a registered trademark of Throwdown Industries, LLC.

CUSTOMIZATION OPTIONS

FRAME COLORS

Black Grey 83, Zinc Yellow 32, Wrinkle Black 26, Ultramarine Blue 73, Traffic Grey 
57, Speckled Red 82, Silver 13, Quantum Silver 79, Purple 49, Powerhouse Granite 
62, Peel White 61, Pearl Night Blue 80, Pastel Orange 77, Moss Green 56, Black 60, 
Karminrot 30, Eagle White 25, Candy Red 27, Candy Blue 65

BRANDING (DECALS) Head tube, down tube, forks, seat tube, base tube, chain guard 

PEDALS
Morse Taper Double Link, Morse Taper Schwinn Triple Link Delta-compatible, Morse 
Taper Schwinn Triple Link Keo-compatible

SADDLES AC, SC, Road, Comfort

LED LIGHTS Included in Z Console: Blue, Cyan, Green, Orange, Purple, Red, Yellow

Standard Morse Taper  
Double Link™ pedals

Morse Taper Triple Link™  
Delta-compatible pedals

Morse Taper Triple Link™  
Keo-compatible pedals

Comfort Saddle

Road Saddle
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46.5”

At FITBENCH® we believe in 
superior quality fitness tools 
re-invented to make training 
more efficient. Leading the 
industry with its neatly 
designed structure, the 
FITBENCH STUDIO is a smaller 
version of the FITBENCH ONE 
offering a lower step height, 
narrower benchtop, and even 
more storage capabilities.  The 
FITBENCH STUDIO allows for 
safe and efficient transitions, 
and it includes all of the 
fitness tools to crush any high 
intensity workout.

FITBENCH STUDIO
ACCESORIES’
 WARRANTY

Extra storage slot down middle of the
FITBENCH STUDIO for accessories

Unit weight 200 lb bench + 152 lb weights
(90 kg bench + 70 kg weights)

15” (38 cm)

46.5” (118 cm)

15.5” (39 cm)

12 gauge cold-rolled steel

11

•

•

•

•

Width

Length

Height

Construction

Anchor points for FITBANDS®

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

15
.5

”

FITBENCH CUSTOMIZATION

Engaging third wheel for portability
Soft-closing, inclining top

Super durable, polyurethane
foam-injected top

8 positions

FITBANDS® Snap-proof with nylon cover
(light, medium, & heavy) 6 months

1 year

1 commercial kettlebell 18 lbs (8 kg) 1 year

1 commercial slam ball 12 lbs (5 kg) 6 months

Cell phone compartment

4 commercial grade and custom-
designed FITBENCH® hexagon dumbbells

10, 15, 20, & 25 lb
(4, 7, 10, & 12 kg)

10 years -FITBENCH limited warranty

• -White numbers on dumbbells
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FITBENCH  | W1236 Industrial Drive Ixonia, WI 53036 |  800-294-0536  |
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Customer:

ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER Term Options: 36 48 60

Randy 

872 W 52 Bypass Purchase Price: $107,015.82 $107,015.82 $107,015.82

Pilot Mountain, NC 27041 Sales Tax: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ringram@pilotmountainnc.org Down Payment: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(336) 368-2012 Finance Amount: $107,015.82 $107,015.82 $107,015.82

Monthly Payment: $3,327.48 $2,574.67 $2,124.24

Dealer:

Fitnessmith Equipment: Fitness $107,015.82

John Pitt

3610 Quantum Blvd SubTotal: $107,015.82

Boynton Beach, Fl 33426 Add Sales Tax: $0.00

704-661-6543 Less Down Payment:

jpitt@fitnessmith.com Total: $107,015.82

Apply online https://terracefinance.com/apply/

                    Terrace Finance Corp is not a lender. We help customers find financing through our curated multi lender network.

                        TERRACE FINANCE 2580 Anthem Village Drive, Suite B | Henderson, NV | 89052

                   Email John Papadopoulos at johnp@terracefinance.com or call 954-636-8571 for details.

Contact : 561-289-8738

johnp@terracefinance.com

Lease Purchase

4/21/2023

Prepared by: John Papadopoulos
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Customer:

ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER Term Options: 36 48 60

Randy 

872 W 52 Bypass Purchase Price: $249,220.82 $249,220.82 $249,220.82

Pilot Mountain, NC 27041 Sales Tax: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ringram@pilotmountainnc.org Down Payment: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(336) 368-2012 Finance Amount: $249,220.82 $249,220.82 $249,220.82

Monthly Payment: $7,749.14 $5,995.97 $4,947.01

Dealer:

Fitnessmith Equipment: Fitness $249,220.82

John Pitt

3610 Quantum Blvd SubTotal: $249,220.82

Boynton Beach, Fl 33426 Add Sales Tax: $0.00

704-661-6543 Less Down Payment:

jpitt@fitnessmith.com Total: $249,220.82

Apply online https://terracefinance.com/apply/

                    Terrace Finance Corp is not a lender. We help customers find financing through our curated multi lender network.

                        TERRACE FINANCE 2580 Anthem Village Drive, Suite B | Henderson, NV | 89052

                   Email John Papadopoulos at johnp@terracefinance.com or call 954-636-8571 for details.

Contact : 561-289-8738

johnp@terracefinance.com

Lease Purchase

4/21/2023

Prepared by: John Papadopoulos
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Customer:

ARMFIELD CIVIC CENTER Term Options: 36 48 60

Randy Ingram

872 W 52 Bypass Purchase Price: $188,014.70 $188,014.70 $188,014.70

Pilot Mountain, NC 27041 Sales Tax: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ringram@pilotmountainnc.org Down Payment: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(336) 368-2012 Finance Amount: $188,014.70 $188,014.70 $188,014.70

Monthly Payment: $5,846.02 $4,523.41 $3,732.07

Dealer:

Fitnessmith Equipment: Fitness $188,014.70

John Pitt

3610 Quantum Blvd SubTotal: $188,014.70

Boynton Beach, Fl 33426 Add Sales Tax: $0.00

704-661-6543 Less Down Payment:

jpitt@fitnessmith.com Total: $188,014.70

Apply online https://terracefinance.com/apply/

                    Terrace Finance Corp is not a lender. We help customers find financing through our curated multi lender network.

                        TERRACE FINANCE 2580 Anthem Village Drive, Suite B | Henderson, NV | 89052

                   Email John Papadopoulos at johnp@terracefinance.com or call 954-636-8571 for details.

Contact : 561-289-8738

johnp@terracefinance.com

Lease Purchase

3/31/2023

Prepared by: John Papadopoulos

79



 

 

 We would like to have our May worksession on Wednesday, May 17.  The purpose of this meeting will 

be to discuss the FY 2024 budget.  I would imagine that we will require at least one additional meeting 

to finish our budget discussions.  

 We have issued our financial statements for FY 2022.  I have had a conversation with the auditor about 

how we can insure that they are completed in a more timely manner going forward. I have included a 

copy of the statements in your packet, but our general fund balance is up over last year.   

 Just as a reminder I will be out of the office the last week of this month.  

 

 

  

Pilot Mountain Town Hall (Phone) – 336.368.2247 

124 West Main St. www.pilotmountainnc.org 

Pilot Mountain, NC 27041  

  

MEMORANDUM 
TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Mayor and Board of Commissioners 

Michael Boaz, Town Manager/Finance Officer 

May 5, 2023 

May 2023 Manager’s Report 
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PROJECT UPDATES 
1. Depot Street Stream Restoration Project:  Project is under construction. Construction has moved to 

the 3rd section and should be done by the end of April or first of May.     

2. Street Paving Project:  Paving is ongoing.   

3. Streetscape Project:  Duke Energy has provided the details on Option B.  WR is continuing to 

evaluate that option.      

4. WWTP & Pump Station Project:  Clarifier equipment has been installed and is scheduled for startup 

the week of May 15.   

5. 2022 Collection System Project:  The PER for this project has been delivered to the State.  Design 

has begun.  

6. 2022 Distribution System Project:  The PER for this project has been submitted.  

7. WWTP Rehab Phase 2:  The PER has been delivered.  McGill will be providing a contract for 

design services shortly.  
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Prepared by the Town of Pilot Mountain’s Financial Staff 
 

Michael Boaz, Town Manager/Finance Officer 
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Members of the Board of Commissioners  
And Citizens of Pilot Mountain,  
 
It is our privilege to present to you the Town of Pilot Mountain’s (the Town’s) Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR).  This CAFR represents the official report of the Town’s operations and 
financial position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 and details the status of Town finances to 
residents, elected officials, investment bankers, underwriters, rating agencies, and all other 
interested parties.   
 
The Local Government Commission of the North Carolina State Treasurer’s Office requires all 
general-purpose local governments to file with their office by November 30 of each year a complete 
set of financial statements presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards by a firm of licensed 
certified public accountants.  The CAFR allows us to comply with that regulation.  
 
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town of Pilot 
Mountain.  Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the 
information presented in this report.  To provide a reasonable basis for making these 
representations, management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 
designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient 
information for the preparation of the Town’s financial statements in accordance with GAAP.  The 
Town’s internal control framework has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatements.  As management, 
we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable 
in all material respects.   
 
The financial statements contained herein have been audited by Bernard Robinson & Company, a 
firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022 are free of material misstatements.  The independent audit involved examining on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the 
accounting principles used; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The 
independent audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 concluded that there was reasonable basis 
for rendering an unmodified opinion of the Town’s financial statements and that they are fairly 
presented in conformity with GAAP.   
 
The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this 
report.  GAAP requires that the management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis 
to accompany the basic financial statements in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).   

Pilot	Mountain	Town	Hall	 (Phone)	–	336.368.2247	
124	West	Main	Street	 (Fax)	–	336.368.9532	
Pilot	Mountain,	NC	27041	 www.pilotmountainnc.org	

88



 

 

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction 
with it.  The MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.   
 
Town	Profile 
 
Pilot Mountain is located in the foothills of North Carolina and in the southern section of Surry County, 
approximately 25 miles north of Winston-Salem and 15 miles south of Mt. Airy.  The Town is situated 
at the base of its namesake, Pilot Mountain.  The area was settled long ago by Native Americans who 
used Pilot Mountain as a navigational guide.  Non-native settlers came to the area well over two 
hundred years ago and the Town was first incorporated by the General Assembly in 1889.   
 
Pilot Mountain prides itself in providing its current population of 1,422 citizens with convenient and 
reliable town services while maintaining its small town, friendly atmosphere.  The full range of 
services include police, garbage & recycling collection, street maintenance, water production & 
distribution, sewer collection and treatment, zoning, and yard waste collections.   
 
Demographic	Characteristics	
	
The US Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, has recorded the Town’s population as 
follows:  
 

1990 2000 2010 2020 2030 estimate 
1,151 1,281 1,477 1,649 1,775 

 
The North Carolina Office of Management and Budget has estimated the population of the Town to 
be 1,440 as of July 2022.   
 
The Town has suffered from a lack of growth over the last 8 years, mainly as a result of the Great 
Recession.  The Town has started to recover with the first new single-family residences in several 
years currently under construction, 14 town homes completed within the last year, and several 
developers expressing interest in potential apartment complex developments.  The commercial 
sector has also slowly recovered with several new stores opening in our downtown and several 
others in some phase of development.  The Town Board and the residents of the Town have placed a 
particular emphasis on downtown re-development over the past year and the staff believes that this 
trend will continue.   
 
Governmental	Structure	
	
The Town of Pilot Mountain operates under the Council/Manager form of government.  Policymaking 
and legislative authority are vested in the governing Board of Commissioners.  The Board is made up 
of a mayor and four Board members that serve staggered four-year terms.  The Town Board is 
responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointment 
committees, and hiring the Town Manager and Town Attorney.  The Town Manager operates as the 
chief executive officer and is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the Town 
Board and for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government.  
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Services	Provided	by	the	Town	of	Pilot	Mountain	
	
Administration:	
 Town Management    Town Clerk 
 Planning & Zoning    Code Enforcement 
 Utility Billing & Collections   Personnel Administration 
 Budget & Finance 
 
Police: 
 Administration    Patrol 
 Criminal Investigations   Auxiliary Force 
 Community Policing    Community Programs 
 Crime Prevention 
	

Public	Works:	
	
 Garbage & Recycling Collection  White Goods Collections 
 Leaf & Limb Collection    Street & Sidewalk Maintenance 
 Right of Way Mowing    Street Lighting 
 Storm Drainage    Snow/Ice Removal 
 Water & Sewer Line Maintenance  Water Meter Reading 
 Water & Sewer Taps    Water Treatment 
 Sewer Treatment 
 
 
Budget	Process	
	
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town’s financial planning and fiscal control.  All 
departments are required to submit requests to the Town Manager, who serves as the Budget Officer 
per State law, on or before the last day of April each year.  The Manager then uses these requests as 
the starting point for developing a proposed budget to be submitted to the Town Board by June 1.  
The Board is required to hold at least one public hearing on the proposed budget and must adopt a 
final budget no later than June 30.  The Budget Ordinance, as adopted by the Town Board, creates a 
legal limit on spending authorizations.  For the Town of Pilot Mountain, the FY 2021-2022 budget 
was adopted to include the General Fund and Water/Sewer Fund.  Multi-year project ordinances are 
adopted for all Capital Project funds.  For internal accounting purposes, budgetary control is 
maintained by line item.   
 
Factors	Affecting	Pilot	Mountain’s	Financial	Condition	
	
Pilot Mountain’s economy is still recovering from massive manufacturing job losses over the past 10-
15 years that was primarily attributed to the textile industry.  The unemployment rate for all of Surry 
County in August of 2019 was 4.3%, which was roughly the same as August 2018.  However, the 
poverty rate in Pilot Mountain is well over 20% and so there is a significant portion of the population 
that is either unemployed and not looking for work or is under employed.  The average wages in the 
County have increased over the last several years and the unemployment rate has remained at near 
historic lows.  These are all signs that the County’s economy is improving.   
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The economic improvement is a slow process however, but the Town is making efforts to ensure that 
this growth happens in a diversified way that makes the economy stronger and less susceptible to 
downturns in any one economic sector in the future.  The Town has made efforts to encourage the 
redevelopment of downtown, including specialized incentive programs for owners that remodel their 
downtown properties.  The Town has incentive policies in place for both retail and industrial growth 
and hopes that these policies will balance the growth in both sectors.   
 
In addition to these efforts, the Town is a center for tourism growth in Surry County.  In 2018, over 
750,000 people visited Pilot Mountain State Park.  In addition to the Park, there are many visitors to 
the wineries in our area and to other outdoor recreation venues.  Tourism is a strong part of the Surry 
County and Pilot Mountain economy and the Town is working to take advantage of this surge in 
tourism spending.   
 
The Town believes that all of these factors combine for a positive outlook on the Town’s financial 
condition in the future.  As residential construction continues to grow and as more and more visitors 
flock to our area to engage in outdoor recreation and take advantage of the many wineries in our area 
the retail sector will continue to grow, and this will lead to further growth in other sectors of the 
economy.   
 
Awards	and	Acknowledgements	
	
The Town believes that our current CAFR meets the standards for the Government Finance Officers’ 
Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting award, and we will be 
submitting it to the GFOA for consideration.  This will be the first year that the Town has submitted 
for this award.   
 
Conclusion	
	
The economy in the Winston-Salem area continues to grow on pace with North Carolina.  This should 
continue to benefit the Town and lead to continued growth in all sectors of the economy.  While we 
expect continued growth, the Town realizes that it must prepare for the potential impacts in our 
departmental service demands and balance what could be significant impacts on the Town’s finances.  
We must continue to work to keep our expenses as low as possible and find ways to leverage our 
available resources to continue to invest in our community.   
 
I would like to express my great appreciation to Town Clerk, Holly Utt, for all her work in compiling 
much of the information within this report and her work in monitoring the Town’s budget and 
general finances.  The Board of Commissioners also deserves tremendous accolades for its work in 
overseeing the Town’s finances and ensuring that all Town operations, policies, and procedures are 
completed with the ultimate levels of transparency and financial accountability.   
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
James Michael Boaz 
Town Manager/Finance Officer 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council  
Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina  

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina (the “Town”), as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the discretely presented 
component units, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Pilot Mountain, 
North Carolina as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We 
are required to be independent of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina, and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Pilot Mountain, North 
Carolina’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina’s internal control.  Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 12; the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System - 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (including Contributions) on page 57 and the Law 
Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance - Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability on page 
58 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a required part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic or historical context. 
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We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements of Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina.  The combining and 
individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules, as listed on the table of contents, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.   The 
combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, based 
on our audit and the procedures performed as described above, the combining and individual fund statements, 
budgetary schedules, and other schedules, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide and 
assurance on them 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 28, 2023 on 
our consideration of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
and other matters.  The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.   

  
Greensboro, North Carolina 
April 28, 2023 
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As management of the Town of Pilot Mountain, we offer readers of the Town of Pilot Mountain's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Pilot Mountain for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in the Town's financial statements, which follow this narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town of Pilot Mountain exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $12,230,567 (net position).   

 The government’s total net position increased by $2,865,278.  

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Pilot Mountain’s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $1,325,680 with a net change of $624.705 in fund balance.  
Approximately 36 percent of this total amount, or $482,240, is non-spendable or restricted. 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $236,532, or 10 
percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.  

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Pilot Mountain, North 
Carolina's basic financial statements.  The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see 
Figure 1).  The basic financial statements present two different views of the Town through the use of government-
wide statements and fund financial statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains 
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the Town 
of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina. 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 
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Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-Wide Financial 
Statements.  They provide both short and long-term information about the Town's financial status. 

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 11) are Fund Financial Statements.  These statements focus on the 
activities of the individual parts of the Town's government.  These statements provide more detail than the 
government-wide statements.  There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds 
statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund 
statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes.  The notes to the financial statements explain in 
detail some of the data contained in those statements.  After the notes, supplemental information is provided to 
show details about the Town's individual funds.  Budgetary information required by the North Carolina General 
Statutes can also be found in this part of the statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the Town's 
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.  The government-wide statements 
provide short and long-term information about the Town's financial status as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the Town's net position and how it has changed.  Net position is the 
difference between the Town's total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources.  Measuring net position is one way to gauge the Town's financial condition. 

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) business-type 
activities; and 3) component units.  The governmental activities include most of the Town's basic services such as 
public safety, public works and general administration.  Property taxes and State and federal grant funds finance 
most of these activities.  The business-type activities are those that the Town's charges customers to provide.  
These include the water and sewer services offered by the Town of Pilot Mountain.  The final category is the 
component units.  The Town has two component units, the Pilot Mountain ABC Board and The Pilot Mountain 
Tourism Development Authority.  Although legally separate from the Town, the ABC Board is important to the 
Town.  The Town exercises control over the ABC Board by appointing its members and the Board is required to 
distribute its profits to the Town.  The Tourism Development Authority is also legally separate from the Town.  
However, the Town exercises control over the Tourism Development Authority by appointing its members. 

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.  

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed look at the Town's most significant activities.  
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives.  The Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina, like all other governmental 
entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with 
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town's budget ordinance.  All of the funds 
of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
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Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Most of the Town's basic services are accounted for in 
governmental funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and 
what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year.  Governmental funds are 
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting that provides a short-term spending 
focus.  As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps 
him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the Town's programs.  The 
relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements. 

The Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the 
General Statutes.  The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the Town, 
the management of the Town, and the decisions of the Commissioners about which services to provide and how 
to pay for them.  It also authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period 
activities.  The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the Town complied 
with the budget ordinance and whether or not the Town succeeded in providing the services as planned when the 
budget was adopted.  The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented 
using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document.  The statement shows four 
columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the Board; 2) the final budget as amended by the Board; 3) the 
actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or 
variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. 

Proprietary Fund – The  Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina has a proprietary fund.  Enterprise Funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  The Town uses the enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer activity.  This fund is the same 
as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities.  

Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the 
financial statements begin on page 25 of this report.  

Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes 
certain required supplementary information concerning the Town's progress in funding its obligation to provide 
pension benefits to its employees.  Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 58 of 
this report. 

Interdependence with Other Entities – The Town depends on financial resources flowing from, or associated with, 
both the federal government and the State of North Carolina.  Because of this dependency, the Town is subject to 
changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to federal and State laws and 
federal and State appropriations.  It is also subject to changes in investment earnings and asset values associated 
with U.S. Treasury Securities because of actions by foreign government and other holders of publicly held U.S. 
Treasury Securities.  
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina's Net Position 

Figure 2 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Assets:

Current assets 1,391,080$    791,004$       668,763$            353,416$       2,059,843$    1,144,420$    

Capital assets 2,408,184      2,297,471      12,099,157         7,906,972      14,507,341    10,204,443    

Non-current assets -                 -                 -                      -                 -                 -                 

Total assets 3,799,264      3,088,475      12,767,920         8,260,388      16,567,184    11,348,863    

Deferred outflows of resources 274,083         220,203         35,848                40,961           309,931         261,164         

Liabilities:

Current liabilit ies 135,946         167,888         296,019              326,385         431,965         494,273         

Long-term liabilit ies 517,880         624,360         3,429,681           1,066,003      3,947,561      1,690,363      

Other non current liabilit ies -                 -                 -                      -                 -                 -                 

Total liabilit ies 653,826         792,248         3,725,700           1,392,388      4,379,526      2,184,636      

Deferred inflows of resources 234,151         57,771           32,871                2,331             267,022         60,102           

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 2,124,128      2,084,954      8,590,273           7,557,307      10,714,401    9,642,261      

Restricted 482,240         664,508         -                      -                 482,240         664,508         

Unrestricted 579,002         (290,803)        454,924              (650,677)        1,033,926      (941,480)        

Total net position 3,185,370$    2,458,659$    9,045,197$         6,906,630$    12,230,567$  9,365,289$    

Governmental Activities

Business-Type

TotalsActivities

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. 
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the 2022 Audit of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina 
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $12,230,567 as of June 30, 2022.  The Town's net position 
increased by $2,865,278 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  However, the largest portion (88%) reflects the 
Town's investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment).  The Town of Pilot 
Mountain, North Carolina uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are 
not available for future spending.  Although the Town of Pilot Mountain's net investment in capital assets is 
reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other 
sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  An additional portion of the Town of 
Pilot Mountain, North Carolina's net position, $482,240 represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of $1,033,926 is unrestricted. 

Several particular aspects of the Town's financial operations influenced the total unrestricted governmental net 
position: 

 Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a tax collection percentage of 
99.2%.  The statewide average in fiscal year 22 was 99.4%. 

 Continued growth in sales tax collections. 
102



 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2022 

 

Page 8 

 Continued efforts by the staff to control expenses. 
 Efforts to take care of deferred maintenance and delayed capital expenditures from previous fiscal years 

caused the expenses to increase this fiscal year. 
 

Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina's Changes in Net Position 

Figure 3  

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services 418,582$       444,250$       1,105,632$         1,000,173$    1,524,214$    1,444,423$    

Operating grants

  and contributions 1,048,218      41,301           -                      -                 1,048,218      41,301           

Capital grants and

  contributions 225,762         2,148             2,651,839           988,075         2,877,601      990,223         

General revenues:

Property taxes 987,723         905,018         -                      -                 987,723         905,018         

Other taxes 716,335         648,889         -                      -                 716,335         648,889         

Gain on disposal of capital assets 29,500           26,999           29,500                -                 59,000           26,999           

Total revenues 3,426,120      2,068,605      3,786,971           1,988,248      7,213,091      4,056,853      

Expenses:

General government 339,369         302,564         -                      -                 339,369         302,564         

Public safety 941,206         949,928         -                      -                 941,206         949,928         

T ransportation 524,249         157,565         -                      -                 524,249         157,565         

Economic development 203,809         162,146         -                      -                 203,809         162,146         

Environmental protection 561,000         274,902         -                      -                 561,000         274,902         

Cultural and recreation 127,062         99,390           -                      -                 127,062         99,390           

Interest on long-term debt 2,714             6,958             -                      -                 2,714             6,958             

Water and sewer -                 -                 1,648,404           1,167,262      1,648,404      1,167,262      

Total expenses 2,699,409      1,953,453      1,648,404           1,167,262      4,347,813      3,120,715      

Increase in net position 

  before transfers 726,711         115,152         2,138,567           820,986         2,865,278      936,138         

T ransfers -                 -                 -                      -                 -                 -                 

Increase in net position 726,711         115,152         2,138,567           820,986         2,865,278      936,138         

Net position, beginning 2,458,659      2,343,507      6,906,630           6,085,644      9,365,289      8,429,151      

Net position, ending 3,185,370$    2,458,659$    9,045,197$         6,906,630$    12,230,567$  9,365,289$    

Governmental Activities

Business-Type

Activities Totals
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Governmental Activities – Governmental activities increased the Town's net position by $726,711, accounting for 
632% of the total growth in the net position of the Town.  The key elements of this increase are as follows: 

 Increased collection of ad valorem taxes.  In FY 2021, the Town collected $905,018 in ad 
valorem taxes while in FY 2022, this total rose to $987,723, an increase of $82,705. 

 An increase in local options sales taxes of $67,446 from FY 2021 to FY 2022. 
 Intergovernmental funds for capital projects.. 

Business-Type Activities – Business-type activities increased the Town of Pilot Mountain's net position by 
$2,138,567, accounting for 260% of the total growth in the government’s net position..  The key elements of this 
increase are as follows: 

 The Town is working on a number of capital improvement projects in the Water/Sewer fund that 
added to its net position. 

Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Town of Pilot Mountain uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds – The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing 
requirements.  

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Pilot Mountain.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the Town of Pilot Mountain’s fund balance available in the General Fund was $236,532, while the total fund 
balance reached $718,772.  The Town currently has an available balance of 10% of general fund expenditures, 
and total fund balance represents 31% of the same amount. 

At June 30, 2022, the governmental funds of the Town of Pilot Mountain reported a combined fund balance of 
$1,325,680 with a net increase in fund balance of $627,705.  Included in this change in fund balance is an increase 
in the fund balance for the General Fund and a net decrease in the fund balance for the Capital Projects Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights – During the fiscal year, the Town revised the budget on several occasions.  
Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that 
are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to 
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as federal and State grants; and 3) increases in 
appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. 
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Proprietary Fund – The Town of Pilot Mountain's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide statements but in more detail.  Unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer Fund at 
the end of the fiscal year amounted to $454,924.  The total increase in net position for the fund was $2,138,567.  
The change in net position in the Water and Sewer Fund is primarily the result of the construction of improvements 
to the Water/Sewer system. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets – The Town of Pilot Mountain's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2022, totals $14,507,341 (net of accumulated depreciation).  These assets include land, 
buildings, sewer lines, equipment, and vehicles. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following:  

 The Town spent $398,455 for construction in progress for capital projects during the fiscal year. 
 The Town spent $4,512,261 on water and sewer fund capital projects during the fiscal year. 

 
Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina's Capital Assets 

Figure 4 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Land 336,174$       336,174$       168,864$            168,864$       505,038$       505,038$       

Building and systems 1,275,578      1,328,411      5,269,438 4,816,262      6,545,016      6,144,673      

Machinery and equipment 172,821         23,183           4,214                  12,798           177,035         35,981           

Infrastructure 79,521           84,128           -                      -                 79,521           84,128           

Vehicles and motorized

  equipment 185,423         155,973         25,415                24,395           210,838         180,368         

Construction in progress 358,667         369,602         6,631,226           2,884,653      6,989,893      3,254,255      

Total 2,408,184$    2,297,471$    12,099,157$       7,906,972$    14,507,341$  10,204,443$  

Business-Type Activities TotalsGovernmental Activities

 

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the basic financial statements. 

Long-Term Debt – As of June 30, 2022, the Town had total debt outstanding of $4,131,137.  Of this amount, 
$124,430 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the Town, $64,085 is secured by a building, and $235,686 
is secured by equipment.  The remainder of the Town's debt is secured solely by specified revenue sources. 
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Outstanding Debt 

Figure 5 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Loan agreement -$               -$               54,430$              81,644$         54,430$         81,644$         

General obligation bonds -                 -                 70,000                84,000           70,000           84,000           

Water line project note payable -                 -                 1,028,168           649,914         1,028,168      649,914         

Water line project note payable -                 -                 2,231,283           98,346           2,231,283      98,346           

Promissory note 64,085           84,197           -                      -                 64,085           84,197           

Equipment loan payable 106,000         -                 -                      -                 106,000         -                 

Water meter project -                 -                 109,288              160,449         109,288         160,449         

Vehicle loan payable -                 -                 15,715                23,572           15,715           23,572           

Police vehicle loan payable 45,048           59,397           -                      -                 45,048           59,397           

Police vehicle loans payable 68,923           68,923           -                      -                 68,923           68,923           

Compensated absences 12,703           41,551           81                       9,919             12,784           51,470           

Total pension liability (LEO) 157,085         148,499         -                      -                 157,085         148,499         

Net pension liability (LGERS) 146,116         311,188         22,212                68,310           168,328         379,498         

Total 599,960$       713,755$       3,531,177$         1,176,154$    4,131,137$    1,889,909$    

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

Town of Pilot Mountain's Outstanding Debt 

The Town of Pilot Mountain's total debt increased by $2,617,191 (138%) during the past fiscal year. 

North Carolina’s general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue 
to 8% of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries.  The legal debt 
margin for the Town of Pilot Mountain is $7,019,556. 

Additional information regarding the Town of Pilot Mountain's long-term debt can be found in Note 3 of this 
report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the Town. 

The impacts on the Town’s economy due to the COVID-19 pandemic were not as severe as originally expected.  
The Town had originally budgeted for a significant decrease in sales taxes when in fact, sales tax collections were 
up year over year.  The occupancy tax numbers returned to near pre-pandemic levels.  The Town was able to make 
investments in capital equipment and bonuses to personnel during FY 2022.  The Town expects the growth in the 
sales tax numbers to continue during FY 2023, albeit at a slower rate.   
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Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Governmental Activities: 

 The Board budgeted an increase of $83,995 in expected profit distributions from the Pilot Mountain ABC 
Store. 

 The Board budgeted an increase of 12.77% in the local options sales tax revenue for FY 2023. 
 The Town anticipates an increase of approximately $9,688 in ad valorem tax revenues due to a general 

reevaluation of property in Surry County. 

Business-type Activities: 

 The Board enacted a rate increase of 12% to water and sewer rates.  This rate increase was 
recommended as a part of the Town’s recently completed CIP for the Water/Sewer system. 

 The Town will continue to make investments in large capital projects during FY 2023 
Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town's finances for those with an interest in this area.  
Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be 
directed to Michael Boaz, Town Manager/Finance Officer or Holly Utt, Town Clerk, Town of Pilot Mountain, 
124 West Main Street, Box 1, Pilot Mountain, NC 27041.  One can also call (336) 368-2248, visit our website at 
www.pilotmountainnc.org or send an email to mboaz@pilotmountainnc.org or hutt@pilotmountainnc.org. 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 1
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Pilot Mountain
Primary Government Tourism

Governmental Business-Type Pilot Mountain Development
Activities Activities Total ABC Board Authority

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 925,758$         416,697$            1,342,455$       370,080$            59,757$         
Taxes receivables, net 30,650             -                    30,650             -                     -               
Accounts receivable, net 2,529              175,588 178,117           -                     -               
Due from other governments 267,107           125,194 392,301           -                     -               
Due from Component Units (2,213)             -                    (2,213)             -                     2,213            
Internal balances 58,804             (58,804)              -                 -                     -               
Inventory -                 -                    -                 494,619              -               
Prepaid items -                 -                    -                 2,534                  -               
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 108,445           10,088               118,533           -                     -               

Total current assets 1,391,080        668,763             2,059,843        867,233              61,970          

Non-current assets:
Capital assets:

Land, non-depreciable improvements, 
  and construction in progress 694,841           6,800,090 7,494,931        -                     -               
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 1,713,343        5,299,067 7,012,410        30,648                -               

Total capital assets 2,408,184        12,099,157         14,507,341       30,648                -               

Rights of use assets, net of amortization -                 -                    -                 71,008                -               

Security deposit -                 -                    -                 5,000                  -               

Total non-current assets 2,408,184        12,099,157         14,507,341       35,648                -               

Total assets 3,799,264        12,767,920         16,567,184       973,889              61,970          

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension deferrals 274,083           35,848 309,931           19,907                -               

Total deferred outflow of resources 274,083           35,848               309,931           19,907                -               

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 53,866             155,161 209,027           345,797              4,447
Current portion of long-term liabilities 82,080             101,496 183,576           27,134                -               
Payable from restricted assets -                 39,362               39,362             -                     -               

Total current liabilities 135,946           296,019             431,965           372,931              4,447            

Long-term liabilities:
Due in more than one year 517,880           3,429,681 3,947,561        55,569                -               

Total long-term liabilities 517,880           3,429,681           3,947,561        55,569                -               

Total liabilities 653,826           3,725,700           4,379,526        428,500              4,447            

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension deferrals 234,151           32,871 267,022           12,212                -               

Total deferred inflow of resources 234,151           32,871               267,022           12,212                -               

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 2,124,128        8,590,273           10,714,401       30,648                -               
Restricted for:

Working capital -                 -                    -                 79,831                -               
Stabilization by State Statute 374,613           -                    374,613           -                     -               
Streets-Powell Bill 107,627           -                    107,627           -                     -               

Unrestricted 579,002           454,924             1,033,926        442,605              57,523
Total net position 3,185,370$       9,045,197$         12,230,567$     553,084$            57,523$         
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 2
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Program Revenues Primary Government Pilot Mountain

Operating Capital Pilot Tourism
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Mountain Development

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total ABC Board Authority
Functions/Programs
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government 339,369$     113,275$     -$               -$               (226,094)$           -$                (226,094)$       -$               -$               
Public safety 941,206       10,006         -                 -                 (931,200)             -                  (931,200)         -                 -                 
Transportation 524,249       -               1,048,218      602                524,571               -                  524,571          -                 -                 
Economic development 203,809       208,268       -                 -                 4,459                   -                  4,459              -                 -                 
Environmental protection 561,000       87,033         -                 225,160         (248,807)             -                  (248,807)         -                 -                 
Cultural and recreation 127,062       -               -                 -                 (127,062)             -                  (127,062)         -                 -                 
Interest on long-term debt 2,714           -               -                 -                 (2,714)                 -                  (2,714)             -                 -                 

Total governmental activities 2,699,409    418,582       1,048,218      225,762         (1,006,847)          -                  (1,006,847)      -                 -                 

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 1,648,404    1,105,632    -                 2,651,839      -                      2,109,067       2,109,067       -                 -                 

Total business-type activities 1,648,404    1,105,632    -                 2,651,839      -                      2,109,067       2,109,067       -                 -                 
Total primary government 4,347,813$  1,524,214$  1,048,218$    2,877,601$    (1,006,847)          2,109,067       1,102,220       -                 -                 

Component units:
ABC Board -$             -$             -$               -$               -                      -                  -                  125,365         -                 
Tourism Development Authority 28,476 37,824 -                 -                 -                      -                  -                  -                 9,348             

Total component units 28,476$       37,824$       -$               -$               -                      -                  -                  125,365         9,348             

General Revenues:
  Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose 987,723               -                  987,723          -                 -                 
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 715,467               -                  715,467          -                 -                 
Unrestricted investment earnings 868                      -                  868                 -                 -                 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 29,500                 29,500            59,000            -                 -                 

Total general revenues and transfers 1,733,558            29,500            1,763,058       -                 -                 

Change in net position 726,711               2,138,567       2,865,278       125,365         9,348             

Net position, beginning 2,458,659 6,906,630 9,365,289 427,719         48,175
Net position - ending 3,185,370$          9,045,197$     12,230,567$   553,084$       57,523$         
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 3
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

Capital Project 
Fund Total Total 
Street Non-Major Governmental

General Fund Resurfacing Funds Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 318,291$       607,467$       -$               925,758$       
Restricted cash 107,627 -                 818                108,445         
Receivables, net:

Taxes 30,650 -                 -                 30,650           
Other 2,529 -                 -                 2,529             

Due from other governments 267,010 97                  -                 267,107         
Due from Component Unit -                 -                 -                 -                 
Due from other funds 58,804 -                 -                 58,804           

Total assets 784,911$       607,564$       818$              1,393,293$    

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 52,392$         -$            1,474$           53,866$         
Due to component unit 2,213             -                 -                 2,213             

Total liabilities 54,605           -                 1,474             56,079           

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Property taxes receivable 11,534 -                 -                 11,534           

11,534           -                 -                 11,534           
Fund Balances

Restricted for:
Stabilization by State Statue 374,613 -                 -                 374,613         
Streets 107,627 -                 -                 107,627         

Assigned:
Capital project funds -                 607,564 (656)               606,908         

Unassigned 236,532 -                 -                 236,532         
Total fund balances 718,772         607,564         (656)               1,325,680      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances 784,911$       607,564$       818$              1,393,293$    

Major Funds

 

111



 
 
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
Page 16 

 

TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 4
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 1,325,680$    

Gross capital assets at historical cost 4,257,291$      
Less accumulated depreciation 1,849,107        2,408,184      

Earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources
  in fund statements 11,534           

Compensated absences (12,703)            
Long-term debt (178,056)          
Total pensions liability (LEO) (157,085)          
Net pension liability (LGRS) (146,116)          (493,960)        

Outflows of recourses 274,083           
Inflows of recourses (234,151)          39,932           

Net position of governmental activities 3,291,370$    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

Deferred resources related to pensions are not reported in the funds:

Long-term liabilities used in governmental activities are not financial 

(Exhibit 1) are different because:

  resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:

  uses and therefore are not reported in the funds:
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 5
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Capital Project 
Fund Total Total 
Street Non-Major Governmental

General Fund Resurfacing Funds Funds
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes 987,726$       -$               -$               987,726$       

Unrestricted intergovernmental 715,467 1,000,000 602                1,716,069      
Restricted intergovernmental 267,606 -                 225,160         492,766         
Permits and fees 2,765 -                 -                 2,765             
Investment earnings 868 -                 -                 868                
Miscellaneous 196,429 -                 -                 196,429         

Total revenues 2,170,861      1,000,000      225,762         3,396,623      

Expenditures
Current:

General government 443,770 -                 -                 443,770         
Public safety 1,027,787 -                 -                 1,027,787      
Transportation 136,715 398,455         -                 535,170         
Economic development 203,809 -                 -                 203,809         
Environmental protection 375,584 -                 189,342         564,926         
Culture and recreation 59,781 -                 35,000           94,781           

Debt service:
Principal 34,461           -                 -                 34,461           
Interest and other charges 2,714 -                 -                 2,714             

Total expenditures 2,284,621      398,455         224,342         2,907,418      

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (113,760)        601,545         1,420             489,205         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Installment purchase obligations issued 106,000 -                 -                 106,000         
Sale of capital assets 29,500 -                 -                 29,500           

Total other financing sources (uses) 135,500         -                 -                 135,500         

Net change in fund balances 21,740           601,545         1,420             624,705         

Fund balances, beginning 697,032 6,019             (2,076)            700,975         

Fund balances (deficit), ending 718,772$       607,564$       (656)$             1,325,680$    

Major Funds
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 6
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
  Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
  different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 624,705$       

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in 
  the Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated over 
  their estimated useful live and reported as depreciation expense.  This 
  is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
  in the current period. 

Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized 245,670         
Depreciation expense for governmental activities (134,957)        110,713         

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included
  on the Statement of Activities 98,832           

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current 
  financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues (3)                   

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources 
  to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of 
  long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of 
  governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on 
  net position. This amount is the net effect of these differences
  in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

New long-term debt issued (106,000)     
Principal payments on long-term debt 34,461           (71,539)          

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
  the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 
  as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences 28,850  
Pension expenses (64,847)          (35,997)          

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 726,711$       
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 7
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Annual Budget and Actual
General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2022

General Fund
Variance with
Final Budget - 

Final Actual Positive
Original Budget Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes 924,201$      968,760$      987,726$      18,966$        
Unrestricted intergovernmental 717,289        717,289        715,467 (1,822)           
Restricted intergovernmental 203,050        203,050        267,606 64,556          
Permits and fees 2,600            2,600            2,765 165               
Investment earnings 100               100               868 768               
Miscellaneous 109,668        219,200        196,429 (22,771)         

Total revenues 1,956,908     2,110,999     2,170,861     59,862          

Expenditures
Current:

General government 304,999        456,558        443,770 12,788          
Public safety 962,141        1,005,641     1,027,787 (22,146)         
Transportation 118,428        136,960        136,715 245               
Economic development 199,640        199,640        203,809 (4,169)           
Environmental protection 368,060        368,060        375,584 (7,524)           
Cultural and recreation 59,781          59,781          59,781 -                

Debt service:
Principal retirement 38,391          38,391          34,461          3,930            
Interest and other charges -                -                2,714 (2,714)           

Total expenditures 2,051,440     2,265,031     2,284,621     (19,590)         

Revenues over (under) expenditures (94,532)         (154,032)       (113,760)       40,272          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Installment purchase obligations issued 76,000          106,000        106,000 -                
Transfers from other fund 18,532          18,532          -                (18,532)         
Sale of capital assets -                29,500          29,500 -                

Total other financing sources (uses) 94,532          154,032        135,500        (18,532)         

Net changes in fund balances -$              -$              21,740          21,740$        

Fund balances, beginning 697,032        
Fund balances, ending 718,772$      
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 8
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2022

Major 
Enterprise Fund

Water and
Sewer Fund

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and equivalents 416,697$           
Account receivables, net 175,588
Due from other governments 125,194
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 10,088               

Total current assets 727,567             

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land and other non-depreciable assets 6,800,090
Other capital asset, net of depreciation 5,299,067

Total noncurrent assets 12,099,157        

Total assets 12,826,724        

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension deferrals 35,848

Total deferred outflows of resources 35,848               

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 150,226
Accrued interest payable 4,935
Current portion of long-term liabilities 101,496
Due to other funds 58,804
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - customer deposits 39,362               

Total current liabilities 354,823             

Long-term liabilities:
Due in more than one year 3,429,681

Total liabilities 3,784,504          

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension deferrals 32,871

Total deferred inflows of resources 32,871

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 8,590,273          
Unrestricted 454,924             

Total net position 9,045,197$        
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 9
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Major
Enterprise

Fund
Water and

Sewer Fund
Operating revenues:

Water and sewer charges 1,019,258$   
Other operating revenues 86,374

Total operating revenues 1,105,632     

Operating expenses:
Sewer department 246,640
Water administration 131,865
Sewer treatment 401,345
Line maintenance 446,058
Depreciation 361,722

Total operating expenses 1,587,630     

Operating loss (481,998)       

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest and other charges (60,774)         
Loss on Sale of Capital Assets 29,500

Total non-operating expenses (31,274)         

Net loss before contributions and transfers (513,272)       

Capital contributions 2,651,839     

Change in net position 2,138,567     

Total net position, beginning 6,906,630
Total net position, ending 9,045,197$   
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 10
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Major Enterprise
Fund

Water and
Sewer Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 1,287,430$     
Cash paid for goods and services (1,321,887)      
Cash paid on behalf of employees for services 12,339            

Net cash used in operating activities (22,118)           

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interfund activity (159,598)         

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (159,598)         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,512,261)      
Gain on disposal of capital assets 29,500            
Proceeds from state loans 2,511,191       
Principal paid on long-term liabilities (100,232)         
Interest paid on long-term liabilities (60,774)           
Capital contributions 2,651,839       

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 519,263          

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 337,547          

Balances, beginning 89,238            
Balances, ending 426,785$        
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 10
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Operating loss (481,998)$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 320,076          
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 2,114              
Due from other governments 179,684          
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions 5,113              

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (20,251)           
Customers deposits (1,460)             
Compensated absences (9,838)             
Net pension liability (46,098)           
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions 30,540            

Total adjustments 459,880          

Net cash used in operating activities (22,118)$         
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina (the "Town") and its discretely presented 
component units conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable 
to governments.  The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

Reporting Entity 

The Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected mayor and 
a four-member council.  As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present 
the Town and its component units, legally separate entities for which the Town is financially accountable.  The 
discretely presented component units presented below are reported in separate columns in the Town's financial 
statements in order to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Town. 

Pilot Mountain ABC Board 

The members of the ABC Board's governing board are appointed by the Town.  In addition, the ABC Board is 
required by State statute to distribute its surpluses to the General Fund of the Town.  The ABC Board, which has 
a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it were a proprietary fund (discrete presentation).  Complete financial 
statements for the ABC Board may be obtained from the entity's administrative offices at Pilot Mountain ABC 
Board, P.O. Box 1478, Pilot Mountain, NC 27041. 

Pilot Mountain Tourism Development Authority 

The members of the Tourism Development Authority's governing board are appointed by the Town.  In addition, 
the Town of Pilot Mountain transfers all of the occupancy tax collected to the Tourism Development Authority to 
be used to promote tourism.  The Tourism Development Authority, which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as 
if it were a proprietary fund (discrete presentation).  A separate report was not issued for the Tourism Development 
Authority. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Statements:  The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information 
about the primary government and its component units.  These statements include the financial activities of the 
overall government.  Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.  These 
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town.  Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.  
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different 
business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's governmental activities.  Direct expenses 
are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a 
particular function.  Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the 
statement of activities.  Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services 
offered by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, 
are presented as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for fiduciary funds even though they are excluded from the government-
wide financial statements.   
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements:  The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's funds, including 
fiduciary funds.  Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary and fiduciary are 
presented.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each 
displayed in a separate column.  All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as 
non-major funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated 
with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal values.  Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies result from non-exchange transactions.  Other 
non-operating revenues are ancillary activities such as investment earnings. 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund – This fund is the general operating fund of the Town.  The General Fund accounts for all financial 
resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.  The primary revenue sources are ad 
valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses.  The primary expenditures are for administration, 
public works, street maintenance and construction, and sanitation services.  

Street Resurfacing Capital Project Fund – This fund is used to account for resurfacing the Town’s maintained 
streets. 

The Town reports the following non-major governmental funds: 

Landfill Rehabilitation Project Capital Project Fund – This fund is used to account for the rehabilitation expenses 
of the Town’s landfill. 

Streetscape Capital Project Fund – This fund is used to account for planned upgrade to the streetscape on Main 
and Depot Street. 

ARPA Fund – This fund is used to account for the use of ARPA funds received from the County. 

The Town reports the following major enterprise fund: 

Water and Sewer Fund – This fund is used to account for the Town’s water and sewer operations.  Water and sewer 
capital project funds have been consolidated into the Water and Sewer Fund for financial reporting purposes.  The 
budgetary comparisons for the water and sewer capital project funds have been included in the supplemental 
information. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the year using 
the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide, proprietary fund, and 
fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The 
government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place.  Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or 
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and 
donations.  On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes 
are levied.  Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements 
have been satisfied. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special 
assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the Town’s enterprise funds 
are charges to customers for sales and services.  The Town also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap 
fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system.  Operating expenses 
for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recognized 
when measurable and available.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for 
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are 
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.  Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year end, except for property 
taxes.  Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not susceptible to accrual.  
At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially past due and are not considered 
to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.  Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law 
altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North 
Carolina.  Effective with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting 
the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts.  Property 
taxes are due when vehicles are registered.  The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are 
received.  Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for limited registration 
plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources.   

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the beer and wine tax, collected and held by the State 
at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue.  Sales taxes are considered a shared revenue for the 
Town of Pilot Mountain because the tax is levied by Surry County and then remitted to and distributed by the State.  
Most intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not to accrual because generally they are not 
measurable until received in cash.  All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes are reported as general 
revenues rather than program revenues.  
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues.  Thus, when program expenses are incurred, 
there is both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program.  It is the Town’s policy to 
first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then 
by general revenues. 

Budgetary Data 

The Town's budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes.  An annual budget is adopted for 
the General and Enterprise Fund.  All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end.  Project ordinances are 
adopted for the Landfill Rehabilitation Project, Water/Sewer Interconnection/Regionalization Study, Sunset Sewer 
Project, Water/Sewer AIA Project, Wastewater Treatment Plan/Pump Station Rehab Project, Water and Sewer 
Infrastructure funds, and Simmons Water Line Project.  The Enterprise Fund projects are consolidated with their 
respective operating fund for reporting purposes.  All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted 
funds and at the project level for the multi-year funds.  All amendments must be approved by the governing board 
and the board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the Town and its component units are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured 
as required by State law [G.S. 159-31].  The Town and its component units may designate, as an official depository, 
any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina.  Also, the Town and its 
component units may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market 
accounts, and certificates of deposit. 

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Town and its component units to invest in obligations of the United States 
or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of 
North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain 
non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances and the 
North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).  The Town's and component units' investments are generally 
reported at fair value.  The NCCMT Government Portfolio, a SEC- registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, 
is measured at fair value.  Because the NCCMT Government has a weighted average maturity of less than 90 days, 
they are presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment 
income and considers all cash and investments to be cash and cash equivalents.  The ABC Board and the Tourism 
Development Authority consider all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Restricted Assets 

Customer deposits held by the Town before any services are supplied are restricted to the service for which the 
deposit was collected.  Powell Bill funds are also classified as restricted cash because it can be expended only for 
the purposes outlined in G.S. 136-41.1 through 136-41.4. 

Town of Pilot Mountain Restricted Cash

Governmental Activities:
General Fund - Streets 108,445$    

Total Governmental Activities 108,445      

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer Fund - Customer deposits 10,088        

Total Business-Type Activities 10,088        

Total Restricted Cash 118,533$    
 

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the Town levies ad valorem taxes on property 
other than motor vehicles on July 1st, the beginning of the fiscal year.  The taxes are due on September 1st (lien 
date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6th.  These taxes are based on the assessed 
values as of January 1, 2021.  As allowed by State law, the Town has established a schedule of discounts that apply 
to taxes which are paid prior to the due date.  In the Town's General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported 
net of such discounts. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful 
accounts.  This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.   

Inventory and Prepaid Items 

The inventories of the ABC Board are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or net realizable value.  The 
inventories of the ABC Board consist of goods held for sale.  The cost of these inventories is expensed when 
consumed rather than when purchased.   

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items 
in both government-wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items are used. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a certain cost 
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.  Minimum capitalization costs are set at $5,000.  Donated 
capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  
Donated capital assets received after June 30, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value.  All other purchased or 
constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost.  The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 Asset Class                                                       Estimated Useful Lives 

 Buildings and systems 20 to 50 years 

 Infrastructure 30 years 

 Plant and distribution systems 40 years 

 Equipment 3 to 10 years 

 Furniture and maintenance equipment 3 to 20 years 

 Vehicles 3 to 20 years 

Property and equipment of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows: 

 Asset Class                                                       Estimated Useful Lives 

 Equipment 5 to 10 years 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption 
of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then.  
The Town has an item that meets this criterion which is the pension deferrals for the 2022 fiscal year.  In addition 
to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  
This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.  The Town has two items that 
meet the criterion for this category – property taxes receivable and pension deferrals. 

Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective 
interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount.  Bond issuance 
costs, except for prepaid insurance costs, are expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred.  Prepaid 
insurance costs are expensed over the life of the debt. 

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are 
reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, 
are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty days earned vacation leave.  Any 
unused vacation at the end of each calendar year in excess of the thirty days is converted to sick leave.  For the 
Town's government-wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary 
related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.  The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using 
accumulated compensated time.  The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has 
been designated as a current liability in the government-wide financial statements. 

The Town's sick leave policies provide for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave.  Sick leave does not 
vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length 
of service for retirement benefit purposes.  Since the Town does not have any obligation for the accumulated sick 
leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made. 

Upon initial eligibility, ABC Board employees earn 96 vacation hours per year and after 10 years of eligible 
service, 144 vacation hours per year.  Unused vacation at the end of each calendar year may not be carried over to 
the next year. 

ABC Board employees can accumulate an unlimited amount of sick leave.  Sick leave may be used in the 
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes.  Since the ABC Board has no obligation for 
accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made. 

Net Position 

Net Position - Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net 
investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents constraints on resources 
that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, 
or imposed by law through State statute. 

Fund Balances 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of three classifications designed to 
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.   

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally 
imposed by creditors or imposed by law.  

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of government 
from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance.  This is one of several statutes enacted by 
the North Carolina State Legislature in the 1930’s that were designed to improve and maintain the 
fiscal health of local government units.  Restricted by State statute (RSS) is calculated at the end of 
each fiscal year for all annually budgeted funds.  The calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) provides a formula 
for determining what portion of fund balance is available for appropriation.  The amount of fund 
balance not available for appropriation is what is known as “restricted by State statute”.  Appropriated 
fund balance in any fund shall not exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, 
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts, as those figures stand at the close of 
the fiscal year next preceding the budget.  Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon 
which a restriction is “imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.” RSS 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

is reduced by inventories and prepaids as they are classified as nonspendable.  Outstanding 
Encumbrances are included within RSS.  RSS is included as a component of Restricted Net position 
and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance sheet.   

Restricted for Streets - Powell Bill portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for street 
construction and maintenance expenditures.  This amount represents the balance of the total unexpended 
Powell Bill funds.   

Assigned fund balance – portion of fund balance that the Town intends to use for specific purposes: 

Assigned for capital projects – portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Board for construction 
of various capital projects. 

Assigned for subsequent year’s expenditures – portion of fund balance that is appropriated by the Board in the 
next year’s budget that is not already classified in restricted.   

Unassigned Fund Balance – the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to 
specific purposes or other funds. 

The Town has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources.  The 
Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, Federal funds, State funds, local non-
Town funds, and Town funds.  For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from 
restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly, 
unassigned fund balance.  The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest 
of the Town. 

The Town has not adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which instructs management to 
conduct the business of the Town in such a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater than 
40% of budgeted expenditures. 

Defined Benefit Cost-Sharing Plans 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) and additions to/deductions from LGERS' fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LGERS.  For this purpose, plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.  The Town of Pilot Mountain’s 
employer contributions are recognized when due and the Town of Pilot Mountain has a legal requirement to provide 
the contributions.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of 
LGERS.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
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NOTE 2 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Assets 

Deposits 

All the deposits of the Town and its component units are either insured or collateralized by using one of two 
methods.  Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level 
are collateralized with securities held by the Town's or its component units’ agents in the units’ names.  Under the 
Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the 
State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity 
for the Town and its component units, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's and component units’ 
agents in their names.  The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-
interest-bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits.  Depositories using the 
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.  
The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town, its component units, or the escrow agent.  
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the Town and its component units 
under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under collateralization. This risk may increase in periods of high 
cash flows.  However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each 
depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.  The Town has no formal policy regarding 
custodial credit risk for deposits but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization 
for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance.  The Town complies with the 
provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured.  
The ABC Board and the Tourism Development Authority have no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for 
deposits. 

At June 30, 2022, the Town’s deposits had a carrying amount of $957,008 and a bank balance of $987,884.  Of the 
bank balance, $275,031 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder would be covered by 
collateral held under the pooling method.  The carrying amount of deposits for the ABC Board and Tourism 
Development Authority were $356,746 and $59,707, while the bank balances were $367,965 and $60,908.  The 
ABC Board’s bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder would be 
covered by collateral held under the pooling method.  All of the bank balance for the Tourism Development 
Authority was covered by federal depository insurance.  At June 30, 2022, petty cash for the Town was $662, ABC 
Board was $13,334 and Tourism Development Authority was $50. 

Investments 

At June 30, 2022, the Town had $503,318 invested with the North Carolina Capital Management Trust’s 
Government Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. 

All investments are measured using the market approach:  using prices and other relevant information generated 
by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets.  Level of fair value hierarchy:  
Level 1 debt securities are valued using directly observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets. 

Interest Rate Risk:  The Town has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk.  As a means of limiting 
its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Town’s internal investment policy limits the 
Town’s investment portfolio to maturities of less than 12 months.
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NOTE 2 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

Credit Risk:  The Town has no formal policy regarding credit risk but has internal management procedures that 
limits the Town’s investment to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the purchase of securities to the highest 
possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are rated.  The Town’s investment in the NC Capital 
Management Trust Government Portfolio carries a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and AAAM-mf 
by Moody’s Investor’s Service as of June 30, 2022. 

Custodial Credit Risk:  For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in 
possession of an outside party.  The Town has no formal policy, but management procedures are that the Town 
shall utilize a third-party custodial agent for book entry transactions, all of which shall be held in the Town’s name 
to limit custodial credit risk. 

Concentration of Credit Risk:  The Town’s Board places no limit on the amount that the Town may invest in any 
one issuer.  All of the Town’s investments are in the NC Capital Management Trust Government Portfolio.   
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NOTE 2 – DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

Capital Assets 

Primary Government 

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being
  depreciated:

Land 336,174$       -$             -$             336,174$       
Construction in progress 369,602         151,692       162,627       358,667

Total capital assets not 
  being depreciated 705,776         151,692       162,627       694,841         

Capital assets being
  depreciated:

Buildings and systems 2,554,042      -               -               2,554,042
Machinery and equipment 295,827         162,627       41,645         416,809
Vehicles and motorized 
  equipment 359,421         93,978         -               453,399
Infrastructure 138,200         -               -               138,200

Total capital assets
  being depreciated 3,347,490      256,605       41,645         3,562,450      

Less accumulated
  depreciation for:

Buildings and systems 1,225,631      52,833         -               1,278,464
Machinery and equipment 272,644         12,989         41,645         243,988
Vehicles and motorized 
  equipment 203,448         64,528         -               267,976
Infrastructure 54,072           4,607           -               58,679

Total accumulated
  depreciation 1,755,795      134,957       41,645         1,849,107      

Total capital assets being
  depreciated, net 1,591,695      1,713,343      
Government activity capital
  assets, net 2,297,471$    2,408,184$    
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NOTE 2 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

General Government 38,543$       
Public Safety 49,727         
Transportation 9,536           
Pilot Center 32,281         
Environmental Protection 4,870           

Total depreciation expense 134,957$     
 

Capital asset activity for the Business-Type Activities was as follows: 

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer Fund:
Capital assets not being
  depreciated:

Land 168,864$       -$             -$             168,864$       
Construction in process 2,884,653      4,535,596    789,023       6,631,226      

Total capital assets not 
  being depreciated 3,053,517      4,535,596    789,023       6,800,090      

Capital assets being
  depreciated:

Buildings and systems 14,616,921    789,023       -               15,405,944    
Machinery and equipment 247,685         -               41,645         206,040         
Vehicles and motorized 
  equipment 79,979           18,310         -               98,289           

Total capital assets
  being depreciated 14,944,585    807,333       41,645         15,710,273    

Less accumulated 
  depreciation for:

Buildings and systems 9,800,659      335,847       -               10,136,506    
Machinery and equipment 234,887         8,585           41,646         201,826         
Vehicles and motorized 
  equipment 55,584           17,290         -               72,874           

Total accumulated
  depreciation 10,091,130    361,722       41,646         10,411,206    

Total capital assets being
  depreciated, net 4,853,455      5,299,067      

Business-type activity
capital assets, net 7,906,972$    12,099,157$  
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NOTE 2 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Activity for the ABC Board for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Capital assets being 
  depreciated:

Furniture and equipment 119,604$       15,649$       -$             135,253$       
Total capital assets 
  being depreciated 119,604         15,649         -               135,253         

Less accumulated
  depreciation for:

Furniture and equipment 97,864           6,741           -               104,605         
Total accumulated
  depreciation 97,864           6,741           -               104,605         

Government activity capital
  assets, net 21,740$         30,648$         

 

B. Liabilities 

Pension Plan and Postemployment Obligations 

a. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System 

Plan Description: Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina is a participating employer in the statewide Local 
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.  LGERS membership is comprised of general employees 
and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental entities.  Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 
128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  
Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed 
by the Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the 
State Treasurer and the State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members.  The Local Governmental 
Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State 
of North Carolina.  The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
LGERS.  That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov. 

Benefits Provided.  LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits.  Retirement benefits are determined as 
1.85% of the member's average final compensation times the member's years of creditable service.  A member's 
average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member's four highest consecutive years of 
compensation.  Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of 
creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  
Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or 
at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters).
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Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 
days of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 
years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or have 
completed five years of service and have reached age 60.  Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly 
Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions.  The plan does not provide for 
automatic post-retirement benefit increases.  Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five years of 
creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  LEO plan members are eligible 
to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an officer.  Survivor benefits 
are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their 
last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age or have 
completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50 or have completed five years of creditable service 
as a LEO and have reached age 55 or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line 
of duty.  Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of 
the member's contributions. 

Contributions.  Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only by 
the North Carolina General Assembly.  Town of Pilot Mountain employees are required to contribute 6% of their 
compensation.  Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of 
Trustees.  The Town of Pilot Mountain's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022, 
was 12.04% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 11.35% for general employees and firefighters, 
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the 
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year.  Contributions to the pension plan from the Town of Pilot 
Mountain were $98,832 for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Refunds of Contributions - Town employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of LGERS, 
may file an application for a refund of their contributions.  By state law, refunds to members with at least five years 
of service include 4% interest.  State law requires a 60-day waiting period after service termination before the 
refund may be paid.  The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual's right to employer contributions, 
or any other benefit provided by LGERS. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a liability of $168,696 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021.  The total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2020.  The total pension liability 
was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021 utilizing update procedures incorporating the 
actuarial assumptions.  The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town’s 
long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by 
the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2021, the Town’s 
proportion was 0.011%, which was an increase of 0.00038% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.   
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense of $80,030.  At June 30, 2022, the Town 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 53,668$             -$                   
Changes of assumptions 105,984             -                     
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
  on pension plan investments -                     241,015             
Changes in proportion and differences between Town
  contributions and proportionate share of contributions 13,774               8,633                 
Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 98,832               -                     

272,258$           249,648$           
 

$98,832 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension liability in year ended 
June 30, 2022.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30:
2023 20,040$             
2024 (6,029)                
2025 (16,481)              
2026 (73,752)              
2027 -                     

(76,222)$             

Actuarial Assumptions:  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 3.0%
Salary increase 3.50% to 8.10%, including inflation 

  and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 6.50%, net of pension plan investment

   expense, including inflation  

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law enforcement 
officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The current mortality rates are based on published tables 
and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population.  The healthy mortality rates also 
contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 
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The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included 
in the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current 
and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical 
performance of investment strategies.  Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. 
Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors 
and over multiple year horizons.  Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of 
the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections.  Other asset categories and strategies' return 
projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis.  These projections are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 
2020 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed income 29.0% 1.4%
Global equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation protection 6.0% 4.0%

100.0%
 

The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2021 asset, 
liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS.  The long-
term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures.  The real rates of 
return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.0%.  
All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 

Discount rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.5%.  The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, 
actuarially determined.  Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 
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Sensitivity of the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate:  The 
following presents the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 
6.50%, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.50%) or one percentage point higher 
(7.50%) than the current rate: 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)

Towns' proportionate share of the 
  net pension liability (asset) 654,862$       168,696$       (231,391)$      

 

Pension plan fiduciary net position:  Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. 

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance 

Plan Description 

The Town of Pilot Mountain administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation Allowance), a single 
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town’s qualified sworn law 
enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service or have attained 
55 years of age and have completed five or more years of creditable service.  The Separation Allowance is equal 
to 0.85% of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each 
year of creditable service.  The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement 
allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly.  Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority 
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.   

All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance.  At December 31, 
2020, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:  

Retirees receiving benefits 1                 
Active plan members 8                 

9                 
 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting:  The Town has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis.  Pension 
expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the following criteria which are outlined 
in GASB Statement 73.   
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The entry age normal actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 2020 valuation.  The total pension 
liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases 3.25% to 7.75%, including inflation 

  and productivity factor
Discount rate 2.25%

 
The discount rate is based on the yield of the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index as of 
December 31, 2021. 

Mortality rates are based on the RP-2000 Mortality tables with adjustments for morality improvements based 
on Scale AA. 

Contributions 

The Town is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen 
to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations 
made in the General Fund operating budget.  The Town’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established 
and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.  There were no contributions made by 
employees.  Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through investment earnings.  The 
Town paid $17,264 as benefits came due for the reporting period.   

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a total pension liability of $157,085.  The total pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2021 based on a December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation.  The total pension liability 
was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021 utilizing update procedures incorporating 
the actuarial assumptions.  For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense of 
($7,997).  

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 22,027$             15,037$             
Changes of assumptions 15,646               2,337                 

37,673$             17,374$             
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30:
2023 (924)$                 
2024 3,375                 
2025 8,400                 
2026 6,911                 
2027 1,619                 

Thereafter 918                    
20,299$             

 

Sensitivity of the Town’s total pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the 
Town’s total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 2.25%, as well as what the Town’s total 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.25%) 
or 1-percentage-point higher (3.25%) than the current rate: 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(1.25%) (2.25%) (3.25%)

Town's proportionate share of the
  net pension liability (asset) 165,710$       157,085$       149,092$       

 

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability 
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance 

Beginning balance 148,499$    
Service cost 12,519        
Interest on the total pension liability 2,699          
Differences between expected and actual experience 
  measurement of the total pension liability 13,321        
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (2,689)         
Benefit payments (17,264)       
Ending balance of the total pension liability 157,085$    

 

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The current 
mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. 
population.  The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014. 
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Total Expense, Liabilities and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Following is information related to the proportionate share and pensions expenses for all pensions plans: 

LGERS LEOSSA Total

80,030$    (7,997)$     72,033$    
168,696    157,085    325,781    

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 0.01100% n/a

Deferred of Outflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 53,668      22,027      75,695      
Changes of assumptions 105,984    15,646      121,630    
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions

and proportionate share of contributions 13,774      -           13,774      
Benefit payments and administrative costs paid subsequent to

the measurement date 98,832      -           98,832      

Deferred of Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience -            15,037      15,037      
Changes of assumptions -            2,337        2,337        
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

plan investments 241,015    -           241,015    
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions
  and proportionate share of contributions 8,633        -           8,633        

Pension Expense
Pension Liability

 

c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers  

Plan Description:  The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (“Plan”), a defined 
contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees.  The Plan 
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers and employees not engaged in law enforcement employed 
by the Town.  Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 
North Carolina General Assembly.  The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is 
included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.  The State's 
CAFR includes pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that 
includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers.  That report may be obtained 
by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, 
or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Funding Policy:  Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an amount equal to 
5.00% of each officer's and employee’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately.  Also, the law 
enforcement officers and employees may make voluntary contributions to the plan. 

The Town made contributions of $22,233 for the reporting year.  No amount were forfeited. 
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a. Pilot Mountain ABC Board Retirement Plan 

Plan Description. The ABC Board is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental Employees' 
Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
State of North Carolina.  LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement 
officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental entities.  Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority 
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  Management of the plan is 
vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members - nine appointed by the Governor, one 
appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and 
State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members.  The Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 
is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.  The State's 
CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS.  That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov. 

Benefits Provided.  LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits.  Retirement benefits are determined as 
1.85% of the member's average final compensation times the member's years of creditable service.  A member's 
average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member's four highest consecutive years of 
compensation. 

Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at 
age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are 
eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with 
five years of creditable service.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die 
while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of 
creditable service regardless of age or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible 
beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's 
contributions.  The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.  Increases are 
contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five years 
of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  LEO plan members are 
eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an officer.  
Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in active service or within 
180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless 
of age or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50 or have completed five years of 
creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55 or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO 
if killed in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate Benefit for 
life or a return of the member's contributions. 

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only by 
the North Carolina General Assembly.  The ABC Board employees are required to contribute 6% of their 
compensation.  Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of 
Trustees.  The ABC Board's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022, was 
11.35% for general employees, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year.  Contributions to 
the pension plan from the ABC Board were $9,918 for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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Refunds of Contributions.  Board employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of LGERS, 
may file an application for a refund of their contributions.  By state law, refunds to members with at least five 
years of service include 4% interest.  State law requires a 60-day waiting period after service termination before 
the refund may be paid.  The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual's right to employer 
contributions, or any other benefit provided by LGERS. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2022, the Board reported a liability of $8,281 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  
The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2021.  The total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2020.  The total pension liability was 
then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021 utilizing update procedures incorporating the 
actuarial assumptions.  The Board's proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the Board's 
long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by 
the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2021, the Board's 
proportion was 0.00054%, which was an increase of 0.00002% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Board recognized pension expense of $7,389.  At June 30, 2022, the Board 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 2,635$               -$                   
Changes of assumptions 5,203                 -                     
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
  on pension plan investments -                     11,832               
Changes in proportion and differences between
  employer contributions and proportionate 
  share of contributions 2,151                 380                    
Employer contributions subsequent to the
  measurement date 9,918                 -                     

19,907$             12,212$             
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$9,918 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Board contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension asset in the year ended 
June 30, 2023.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30:
2023 1,596$               
2024 230                    
2025 (428)                   
2026 (3,621)                
2027 -                     

(2,223)$              
 

Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 3.0%
Salary increase 3.50% to 8.10%, including inflation 

  and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 6.50%, net of pension plan investment

   expense, including inflation  

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law enforcement 
officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The current mortality rates are based on published tables and 
based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population.  The healthy mortality rates also contain a 
provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in 
the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns, and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current 
and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical 
performance of investment strategies.  Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. 
Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and 
over multiple year horizons.  Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of the equity 
risk premium and the fixed income return projections.  Other asset categories and strategies' return projections 
reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis.  These projections are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation.   
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 
2020 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed income 29.0% 1.4%
Global equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation protection 6.0% 4.0%

100.0%
 

The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2020 asset 
liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS.  The long-
term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures.  The real rates of 
return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%.  
All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%.  The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially 
determined.  Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Board's proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate.  The 
following presents the Board's proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 
6.50%, as well as what the Board's proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.50%) or one percentage point higher 
(7.5%) than the current rate: 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)

ABC Board's proportionate share of the
  net pension liability (asset) 32,148$         8,281$           11,359$         
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Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

The Town had one deferred outflow of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources are comprised of the following: 

Statement of
Net Position

Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year 98,832$         
Differences between expected and actual experience 75,695           
Changes in assumptions 121,630         
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 13,774           

Total 309,931$       

 

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following: 

Statement of General Fund
Net Position Balance Sheet

Tax Receivables -$               11,534$         
Differences between expected and actual

experience 15,037           -                 
Changes in assumptions 2,337             -                 
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on plan investments 241,015         -                 
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 8,633             -                 

Total 267,022$       11,534$         

 

Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The Town participates in three self-funded risk-
financing pools administered by the North Carolina League of Municipalities.  Through these pools, the Town 
obtains general liability and auto liability coverage of $1 million per occurrence, property coverage up to the total 
insured values of the property policy, workers' compensation coverage up to statutory limits, and employee health 
coverage.  The liability and property exposures are reinsured through commercial carriers for claims in excess of 
retentions as selected by the Board of Trustees each year.  Excess insurance coverage is purchased by the Board 
of Trustees to protect against large workers' compensation claims that exceed certain dollar cost levels.  Medical 
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NOTE 2 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

certain dollar cost levels. Specific information on the limits of the reinsurance, excess and stop loss policies stop 
loss insurance is purchased by the Board of Trustees to protect against large medical claims that exceed purchased 
by the Board of Trustees can be obtained by contacting the Risk Management Services Department of the NC 
League of Municipalities.  The pools are audited annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financial 
statements are available to the Town upon request. 

The Town carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.  There have been no significant reductions in 
insurance coverage from the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal 
years. 

The Town does not carry flood insurance as none of the Town's property is within flood zones. 

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the Town's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the 
Town's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond.  The finance officer is individually 
bonded for $50,000.  The remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for 
$30,000. 

The ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The ABC Board has commercial property, 
general liability, auto liability, workmen's compensation and employee health coverage.  The board also has liquor 
legal liability. 

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage for the ABC Board from coverage in the prior 
year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

In accordance with G.S. l 8B-700(i), each ABC Board member and employees designated as the general manager 
and finance officer are bonded in the amount of $50,000, secured by a corporate surety. 

The finance officer of the Tourism Development Authority is bonded in the amount of $50,000, secured by a 
corporate surety. 

Claims, Judgments and Contingent Liabilities 

As of June 30, 2022, the Town was aware of several unasserted possible claims or assessments.  In the opinion of 
the Town's management, the ultimate effect of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Town's 
financial position. 
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Commitments 

The Town has entered into a contract for solid waste collection expiring June 2022 for approximately $60,000 per 
year. 

The ABC Board has entered into an agreement to lease a building for its facility at 630 S. Key Street, Suite C, Pilot 
Mounting, North Carolina.  The lease agreement qualifies as other than short term leases under GASB 87 and, 
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future lease payments as of July 1, 2021 for $99,411.  As 
a result of the lease, the Board has recorded accumulated amortization of $28,403 on the right to use asset and a 
net book value of $71,008 as June 30, 2022. 

The agreement to lease the building requires 30 monthly payments ranging from $2,533 to $2,688.  The lease 
liability is measured at a discount rate of 5%, which is the Board’s incremental borrowing rate.   

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as at June 
30, 2022, are as follows: 

Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30

2023 27,134$       3,721$         
2024 29,420         2,364          
2025 17,868         893             

74,422$       6,978$         
 

The ABC Board is responsible for utilities and insurance.  The payment of the rentals is guaranteed by the Town 
of Pilot Mountain. 

Long-Term Obligations 

a. Loan Agreement 

The Town has pledged future water and sewer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $544,284 in 
direct placement water and sewer system revenue bonds issued in June 2004.  Proceeds from the bonds provided 
financing for the construction of water line extensions and water plant renovations.  The bonds are secured solely 
by water and sewer revenues, net of specified operating expenses and are payable, including interest at 2.57%, 
through 2024.  Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require substantially all water 
and sewer net revenues.  In the event of a default, the Town agrees to pay to the purchaser, on demand, all 
outstanding principal and interest owed under the related agreement. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest

Year Ending June 30

2023 27,214$       1,398$         

2024 27,216         700             
54,430$       2,098$         
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b. General Obligation Bonds 

The Town's direct placement general obligation bonds issued to finance the construction of facilities utilized in the 
operations of the water and sewer system and which are being retired by its resources are reported as long-term 
debt in the Water and Sewer Fund.  All general obligation bonds are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and 
taxing power of the Town.  Principal and interest requirements are appropriated when due.  The bonds bear interest 
at 5.00% per annum.  In the event of a default, the Town agrees to pay to the purchaser, on demand, all outstanding 
principal and interest owed under the related agreement. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest

Year Ending June 30

2023 14,000$       3,500$         

2024 14,000         2,800          

2025 14,000         2,100          

2026 14,000         1,400          

2027 14,000         700             
70,000$       10,500$       

 

c. Promissory Note 

On March 23, 2009, the Town entered into an interlocal agreement with Surry County, North Carolina for the 
creation of a workforce development center. Surry County purchased the building to house the project for $540,040 
and named the Town as the owner on the deed.  Surry County has gifted one half of the building to the Town and 
the Town has signed a promissory note for the remaining half at $270,020.  The promissory note calls for interest 
at 3%.  Payments of $11,243, which includes interest, are due each October 1 and April 1 through April 1, 2025.  
The promissory note is secured by a Deed of Trust on the building.  The Town has agreed to assume certain costs 
related to the project such as site assessment, renovations, and improvements.  Upon sale of the property or any 
portion thereof, the sales proceeds will accrue to the County and Town equally. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest

Year Ending June 30

2023 20,720$       1,768$         

2024 21,345         1,141          

2025 22,020         496             
64,085$       3,405$         

 

On January 18, 2013, the Town of Pilot Mountain recorded a declaration of Pilot Center Condominium, which 
encumbered the property.  In conjunction with the creation of the Condominium, there also was incorporated under 
the laws of the State of North Carolina an association known as the Pilot Center Condominium Association.  
Subsequent to that date on January 30, 2013, the Town of Pilot Mountain sold a portion of the property. 
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d. Note Payable 

On November 2, 2016, the Town borrowed $55,000 from a bank to purchase a vehicle.  The direct placement note 
payable requires annual payments of $7,857 plus interest of 2.28% through November 2023.  The note is secured 
by the vehicle. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for note payable obligations ae as follows: 

Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30

2023 7,857$         363$           
2024 7,858          182             

15,715$       545$           
 

e. Note Payable 

On December 3, 2019, the Town borrowed $73,425 from a bank to purchase two police vehicles and related 
vehicles.  The direct placement note payable requires annual payments of $15,709 which includes interest at 5.5% 
through 2025.  The note is secured by vehicles. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30

2023 14,677$       1,032$         
2024 15,014         696             
2025 15,357         352             

45,048$       2,080$         

 

f. Note Payable 

On June 1, 2021, the Town borrowed $68,923 from a bank to purchase two police vehicles.  The direct placement 
note payables required annual payments of $14,403 which includes interest at 1.57% through 2026.  The note is 
secured by the vehicles. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for note payable obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30

2023 13,382$       1,020$         
2024 13,581         822             
2025 13,782         621             
2026 13,986         417             
2027 14,192         210             

68,923$       3,090$         
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g. Note Payable 

On January 24, 2022, the Town borrowed $106,00 from a bank to purchase three police vehicles.  The direct 
placement note payables required annual payments of $22,125 which includes interest at 1.44% through 2027.  The 
note is secured by the vehicles. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for note payable obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30

2023 20,598$       1,526$         
2024 20,895         1,230          
2025 21,196         929             
2026 21,501         624             
2027 21,810         314             

106,000$     4,623$         

 

h. Water Meter Note Payable 

On December 15, 2016, the Town borrowed $350,000 from a financing organization to improve water meters.  The 
direct placement note payable requires annual payments of $54,792 which includes interest at 2.8% through 
January 2024.  The note is secured by property. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term obligations are as follows: 

Principal Interest

Year Ending June 30

2023 52,344$       2,448$         

2024 56,944         1,238          
109,288$     3,686$         

 

i. Water Projects Notes Payable 

On May 22, 2020, the Town signed a temporary promissory note with the North Carolina Department of 
Environmental Quality for $3,395,000 for a water and sanitary sewer project.  The direct placement note payable 
will require semi-annual payments on or before May 1 and November 1 of each year.  The first payment is due not 
earlier than six months nor later than twelve months after the scheduled date of completion of the project.  The 
project is still ongoing as of the report date.  The balance at June 30, 2022 was $2,231,283. 

On December 16, 2021, the Town signed a temporary promissory note with the North Carolina Department of 
Environmental Quality for $2,145,000 for a water and sanitary sewer project.  The direct placement note payable 
will require semi-annual payments on or before May 1 and November 1 of each year.  The first payment is due not 
earlier than six months nor later than twelve months after the scheduled date of completion of the project.  The 
project is still ongoing as of the report date.  The note will be split between the Town, the City of Mount Airy and 
Surry County.  The balance at June 30, 2022 was $,1,028,168. 
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j. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Compensated absences for governmental activities have typically been liquidated in the General Fund. 

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Increases Decreases Balance Portion

Governmental Activities:

Direct placement

Promissory note 84,197$            -$                 20,112$            64,085$            20,720$            

Police vehicle loan payable 59,397              -                   14,349              45,048              14,677              

Police vehicle loan payable -                   106,000            -                   106,000            20,598              

Police vehicle loan payable 68,923              -                   -                   68,923              13,382              

Compensated absences 41,551              -                   28,848              12,703              12,703              

Total pension liability (LEO) 148,499            28,539              19,953              157,085            -                   

Net pension liability (LGERS) 311,188            -                   165,072            146,116            -                   

Total governmental activity

long-term liabilities 713,755$          134,539$          248,334$          599,960$          82,080$            

Business-Type Activities:

General obligation bonds 84,000$            -$                 14,000$            70,000$            14,000$            

Loan agreement 81,644              -                   27,214              54,430              27,214              

Vehicle loan payable 23,572              -                   7,857                15,715              7,857                

Water meter project 160,449            -                   51,161              109,288            52,344              

Water project loan payable 649,914            378,254            -                   1,028,168         -                   

Water project loan payable 98,346              2,132,937         -                   2,231,283         -                   

Compensated absences 9,919                -                   9,838                81                     81                     

Net pension liability (LGERS) 68,310              -                   46,098              22,212              -                   

Total business-type activity

   long-term liabilities 1,176,154$       2,511,191$       156,168$          3,531,177$       101,496$          
 

Interfund Balances and Activity 

Balances due to/from other funds at June 20, 2022, consist of the following: 

Due from Water and Sewer Fund to
  General Fund for cash advances 58,804$           

 

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) 
payments between funds are made.  Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of 
consolidation. 

 

 

151



TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

 
Page 55 

 

 
NOTE 2 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

The interfund balances consist of advances made from the General Fund to several capital project funds of the 
Water and Sewer Fund to cover the upfront engineering costs associated with these projects.  These engineering 
costs and the construction cost to be incurred under these capital project funds will be funded by grants and loans 
that have been approved by the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ).  These grants 
and loans cannot be drawn down by the Town until the related construction contracts for these projects have been 
signed.  As soon as these contracts are signed, the Town will request reimbursement from NCDEQ, and the 
advances will be repaid to the General Fund. 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Governmental Business-Type
Capital assets 2,408,184$      12,099,157$  

Less: long-term debt 284,056           3,508,884      
Net investment in capital assets 2,124,128$      8,590,273$    

 

Fund Balances 

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General Fund 
balance that is available for appropriation: 

Total fund balance - General Fund 718,772$         
Less:

Stabilization by State Statute 374,613           
Streets - Powell Bill 107,627           

Remaining Fund Balance 236,532$         
 

 
The Town has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which instructs management to 
conduct the business of the Town in such a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater than 
40% of budgeted expenditures. 

NOTE 3 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS 

The Town, in conjunction with twelve counties and sixty other municipalities established the Piedmont Triad 
Regional Council.  The participating governments established the Council to coordinate various funding received 
from federal and State agencies.  Each participating government appoints one member to the Council's governing 
board.  The Town paid membership fees of $550 to the Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
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NOTE 4 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of these grants are required, 
and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements.  Such audits 
could result in the refund of grant monies to the granter agencies. Management believes that any required refunds 
will be immaterial.  No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant 
monies. 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 11
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Local Government Employees' Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information
Last Nine Fiscal Years

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

0.01100% 0.01062% 0.01196% 0.01143% 0.00869% 0.00867% 0.01213% 0.01217% 0.01180%

168,696$       379,498$       326,618$       271,159$       132,759$       184,006$       54,439$         (71,772)$        142,235$       

Covered payroll 768,592         786,408         796,146         729,844         666,276         631,972         722,998         732,684         716,954         

Proportionate share of net pension 
liability (asset) as a percentage of its
covered payroll 21.95% 48.26% 41.02% 37.15% 19.93% 29.12% 7.53% -9.80% 19.84%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability** 91.63% 91.63% 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 99.07% 102.64% 94.35% 96.45%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.
** This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.

Contributions

Contractually required contribution 98,832$         80,757$         73,291$         47,769$         31,742$         50,736$         43,857$         52,139$         52,433$         

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 98,832           80,757           73,291           47,769           31,742           50,736           43,857           52,139           52,433           

Contributions deficiency (excess) -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               

Covered payroll 842,937$       768,592$       786,408$       796,146$       729,844$       666,276$       631,972$       722,998$       732,684$       

Contributions as a percentage of'
covered payroll 0.00% 10.51% 9.32% 6.00% 4.35% 7.61% 6.94% 7.21% 7.16%

Proportion of the net pension

liability (asset) ($)

liability (asset) (%)

Proportion of the net pension 

 
 
Note:  This information was not available prior to fiscal year 2014.  This will become a 10-year schedule.
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 12
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability
Required Supplementary Information
Last Six Fiscal Years

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Beginning balance 148,499$    117,630$    149,332$   250,078$   202,902$   206,573$   
Service cost 12,519        5,896          6,861         6,600         6,645         8,294         
Interest on the total pension liability 2,699          3,545          5,267         7,647         7,520         7,086         
Differences between expected and actual experience 
  in the measurement of the total pension liability 13,321        16,412        (36,651)      (95,883)      39,139       -             
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (2,689)         22,785        2,074         (2,961)        10,021       (2,902)        
Benefit payments (17,264)       (17,769)       (9,253)        (16,149)      (16,149)      (16,149)      
Ending balance of the total pension liability 157,085$    148,499$    117,630$   149,332$   250,078$   202,902$   

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Schedule of Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Total pension liability 157,085$    148,499$    117,630$   149,332$   250,078$   202,902$   
Covered payroll 397,357      289,398      337,983     327,564     279,200     313,814     
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 39.53% 51.31% 34.80% 45.59% 89.57% 64.66%

Notes to the Schedules:

The Town of Pilot Mountain has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 73 to pay related benefits.  
 
This information was not available prior to fiscal year 2017.  This will become a 10-year schedule. 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 1
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Page 1 of 4

General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes:
Taxes 982,267$      
Interest 5,459

Total 968,760$      987,726        18,966$        

Unrestricted intergovernmental:
Local option sales taxes 601,016
Utilities sales tax 107,433
Beer and wine tax 5,972
Court fees and charges 376
Controlled Substance Tax 670

Total 717,289        715,467        (1,822)           

Restricted intergovernmental:
Powell Bill allocation 48,218
ABC revenue for law enforcement 10,006
ABC store profit sharing 208,268
Solid waste disposal tax 1,114

Total 203,050        267,606        64,556          

Permits and fees:
Inspection and zoning 2,765

Total 2,600            2,765            165               

Miscellaneous:
Cemetery income 28,450
Rental income 15,175
Sanitation fees 85,919
Miscellaneous 66,885

Total 219,200        196,429        (22,771)         

Investment earnings 100               868 768               

Total Revenues 2,110,999     2,170,861     59,862          

Expenditures:
General government:

Governing body:
Salaries and employee benefits 18,206
Other operating expenditures 55,011

Total 73,217          

(Continued)
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 1
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Page 2 of 4
General Fund (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures (Continued):

General government (Continued):
Administration:

Salaries and employee benefits 225,742$      
Professional services 25,601
Supplies 45,020
Travel and training 6,938
Postage 1,272
Utilities 5,360
Maintenance and repairs 17,604
Contracted services 2,942
Insurance and bonds 8,070
Dues and subscriptions 4,179
Miscellaneous 9,515
Capital Outlay 18,310

Total 370,553        

Total general government 456,558        443,770        12,788          

Public Safety:
Police department:

Salaries and employee benefits 725,349
Supplies 50,881
Uniforms 2,864
Automotive supplies 40,551
Travel and training 4,020
Telephone, postage and printing 11,449
Utilities 5,008
Maintenance and repairs 23,958
Contracted services 27,385
Insurance and bonds 22,177
Dues and subscription 1,085
Contribution to rescue 12,000
Miscellaneous 5,594
Capital outlay 95,466

Total 1,027,787     

Total public safety 1,005,641     1,027,787     (22,146)         

(Continued)
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 1
Page 3 of 4

General Fund (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures (Continued):

Transportation:
Public works:

Salaries and employee benefits 5,732$          
Supplies 9,959
Training and travel 118
Utilities 37,327
Maintenance and repairs 29,751
Contracted services 13,263
Insurance 7,000
Rents 10,707
Miscellaneous 2,401
Capital outlay 20,457

Total transportation 136,960        136,715        245               

Economic development:
Salaries and employee benefits 80,641
Insurance 2,570
Contracted services 22,100
Professional services 22,928
Special events 26,329
Miscellaneous 49,241

Total economic development 199,640        203,809        (4,169)           

Environmental protection:
Sanitation:

Salaries and employee benefits 167,392
Supplies 2,381
Utilities 3,240
Maintenance and repairs 15,696
Insurance 4,940
Contracted services 173,616
Miscellaneous 8,319

Total sanitation 375,584        

(Continued)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 1
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Page 4 of 4
General Fund (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Expenditures (Continued):

Total environmental protection 368,060$      375,584$      (7,524)$         

Cultural and recreation:
Library:

Contributions 35,000
Maintenance and repairs 162

Pilot Center:
Utilities 15,573
Maintenance and repairs 1,581
Insurance 3,340
Contracted services 4,125

Total cultural and recreation 59,781          59,781          -                

Debt service:
Principal 34,461          
Interest and other charges 2,714

Total debt service 38,391          37,175          1,216            

Total expenditures 2,265,031     2,284,621     (19,590)         

Revenue over (under) expenditures (154,032)       (113,760)       40,272          

Other financing sources (uses):
Installment purchase obligations issued 106,000        106,000 -                
Transfers from other fund 18,532          -                (18,532)         
Sale of capital assets 29,500          29,500 -                

Total other financing sources (uses) 154,032        135,500        (18,532)         

Net change in fund balance -$              21,740          21,740$        

Fund balances, beginning 697,032        

Fund balances, ending 718,772$      
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 2
Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

Total 
Nonmajor

Landfill Governmental
Rehabilitation Streetscape ARPA Funds

Assets
Restricted cash -$               -$               818$              818$              
Due from Other Governments -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total assets -$               -$               818$              818$              

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities -$               1,474$           -$               1,474$           

Total liabilities -                 1,474             -                 1,474             

Fund Balances
Assigned:

Capital project funds -                 (1,474)            818                (656)               
Total fund balances -                 (1,474)            818                (656)               

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
  and fund balances -$               -$               818$              818$              

Capital Project Funds
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 3
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Total 
Nonmajor

Landfill Governmental
Rehabilitation Streetscape ARPA Funds

Revenues
Unrestricted intergovernmental 602$              -$               -$               602$              
Restricted intergovernmental -                 -                 225,160         225,160         

Total revenues 602                -                 225,160         225,762         

Expenditures
Current:

Capital outlay
Environmental protection -                 -                 189,342 189,342         
Culture and recreation -                 -                 35,000 35,000           

Total expenditures -                 -                 224,342         224,342         

Excess of revenues over expenditures 602                -                 818                1,420             

Net change in fund balances 602                -                 818                1,420             

Fund balances, beginning (602)               (1,474)            -                 (2,076)            

Fund balances, ending -$               (1,474)$          818$              (656)$             

Capital Project Funds
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 4
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Landfill Rehabilitation Project
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:

Division of Waste Management 

  grant 143,554$      162,964$      602$            163,566$      20,012$       

Total revenues 143,554        162,964        602              163,566        20,012         

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 143,554 163,371        -              163,371        19,817         

Total expenditures 143,554        163,371        -              163,371        19,817         

Net change in fund balance -$             (407)$           602              195$            195$           

Fund balances, beginning (602)             

Fund balances, ending -$             
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 5
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Streetscape Project
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Unrestricted intergovernmental:

Department of Commerce grant 50,000$        50,000$        -$             50,000$        -$             

Total revenues 50,000          50,000          -              50,000          -              

Expenditures:

Professional services 79,350 59,950          -              59,950          (19,400)        

Planning -              20,874          -              20,874          20,874          

Total expenditures 79,350          80,824          -              80,824          1,474           

Excess of revenues

  under expenditures (29,350)        (30,824)        -              (30,824)        (1,474)          

Other financing sources:

Transfers from other funds:

General fund 29,350          29,350          -              29,350          -              

Total other financing sources 29,350          29,350          -              29,350          -              

Net change in fund balance -$             (1,474)$        -              (1,474)$        (1,474)$        

Fund balances, beginning (1,474)          

Fund balances, ending (1,474)$        
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 6
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Street Resurfacing Project
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Unrestricted intergovernmental:

Department of Commerce grant -$             -$             1,000,000$    1,000,000$    1,000,000$    

Total revenues -              -              1,000,000     1,000,000     1,000,000     

Expenditures:

Architectural and engineering 10,000          28,734          -              28,734          18,734          

Construction 128,000        104,247        398,455 502,702        374,702        

Total expenditures 138,000        132,981        398,455        531,436        393,436        

Other financing sources:

Transfers from other funds:

General fund 138,000        139,000        -              139,000        1,000           

Total other financing sources 138,000        139,000        -              139,000        1,000           

Net change in fund balance -$             6,019$          601,545        607,564$      607,564$      

Fund balances, beginning 6,019           

Fund balances, ending 607,564$      
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 7
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - ARPA
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental
ARPA 410,000$      -$             225,160$      225,160$      (184,840)$     

Total revenues 410,000        -              225,160        225,160        (184,840)       

Expenditures:
Environmental protection 340,000        -              189,342        189,342        (150,658)       
Culture and recreation 70,000          -              35,000 35,000          (35,000)        

Total expenditures 410,000        -              224,342        224,342        (185,658)       

Net change in fund balance -$             -$             818              818$            818$            

Fund balances, beginning -              

Fund balances, ending 818$            
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 8
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Page 1 of 3
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Water and Sewer Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Water sales 571,490$      586,357$            14,867$        

Sewer charges 405,440        411,855 6,415            

Water and sewer taps -                23,160 23,160          

Other operating revenues 52,820          86,374 33,554          

Total operating revenues 1,029,750     1,107,746           77,996          

Total revenues 1,029,750     1,107,746           77,996          

Expenditures:
Sewer department:

Professional services 12,772
Utilities 68,414
Maintenance and repairs 32,883
Chemicals 11,366
Supplies 9,959
Contracted services 101,458
Insurance and bonds 3,340
Miscellaneous 6,448

Total sewer department 246,640              

Water administration:
Salaries and benefits 63,234
Professional services 52,002
Utilities 133
Supplies 4,579
Insurance and bonds 4,340
Miscellaneous 15,523

Total water administration 139,811              

(Continued)

168



 

 
Page 70 

 

TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 8
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Page 2 of 3
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Water and Sewer Fund (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Sewer treatment:

Salaries and employee benefits 30,818$              
Professional services 6,091
Utilities 39,457
Maintenance and repairs 9,582
Chemicals 12,844
Supplies 1,786
Contracted services 64,770
Insurance and bonds 5,790
Miscellaneous 77,449

Total sewer treatment 248,587              

Line maintenance:
Salaries and employee benefits 73,421
Professional services 16,492
Utilities 1,092
Maintenance and repairs 151,933
Supplies 39,050
Contracted services 16,876
Insurance and bonds 5,140
Miscellaneous 151,372

Total line maintenance 455,376              

Debt service:
Interest and other charges 60,774
Principal retirement 100,232              

Total debt service 161,006              

Capital outlay:
Capital outlay 18,310                

Total capital outlay 18,310                

Total expenditures 1,191,750     1,269,730           (77,980)         

Revenues over expenditures (162,000)       (161,984)             16                 

(Continued)
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 8
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Page 3 of 3
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Water and Sewer Fund (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Other financing sources:

Sale of capital assets 29,500$        29,500$              -$              
Transfers from other funds 132,500        18,000                (114,500)       

Total other financing sources 162,000        47,500                (114,500)       

Revenues and other sources under expenditures 
and other uses -$              (114,484)             (114,484)$     

Reconciliation from budgetary basis 
  (modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:
Principal retirement 100,232              
Depreciation (361,722)             
Capital outlay 4,553,906           
Capital project funds expenditures (4,691,373)          
Transfers from capital project funds (18,000)               
Capital project funds state grants 2,651,839           
Capital project funds loan proceeds 2,511,191           
Issuance of debt (2,511,191)          
Decreases in receivables (2,114)                 
Decrease in accrued vacation pay 9,838                  
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources - pensions (5,113)                 
Increase in deferred inflows of resources - pensions (30,540)               
Decrease in net pension liability 46,098                

Total reconciling items 2,253,051           

Change in net position 2,138,567$         
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 9
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Water/Sewer Interconnection/
  Regionalization Study
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance
Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:

State grants 2,000,000$    510,876$      1,439,124$    1,950,000$    (50,000)$      

Total revenues 2,000,000     510,876        1,439,124     1,950,000     (50,000)       

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 4,078,000 606,617        3,699,987     4,306,604     (228,604)      

Total expenditures 4,078,000     606,617        3,699,987     4,306,604     (228,604)      

Other financing sources:

Transfers from other funds:

Capital reserve fund 78,000          13,000          -              13,000          (65,000)       

Loan Proceeds Received 2,000,000     98,346          2,132,937     2,231,283     231,283       

Total other financing sources 2,078,000     111,346        2,132,937     2,244,283     166,283       

Revenues over (under) expenditures -$             15,605$        (127,926)$     (112,321)$     (112,321)$    
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 10
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Sunset Sewer
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:

State grants 1,264,392$   1,011,211$   16,958$       1,028,169$   (236,223)$    

Total revenues 1,264,392    1,011,211    16,958         1,028,169    (236,223)      

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 2,573,038    1,665,072    502,951       2,168,023    405,015       

Total expenditures 2,573,038    1,665,072    502,951       2,168,023    405,015       

Other financing sources:

Transfers (to) from other funds:

Water and sewer fund 44,254         (10)             -             (10)             (44,264)       

Loan Proceeds Received 1,264,392    649,914       378,254       1,028,168    (236,224)      

Total other financing sources 1,308,646    649,904       378,254       1,028,158    (280,488)      

Other financing sources 

  under expenditures -$            (3,957)$       (107,739)$    (111,696)$    (111,696)$    
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 11
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Water/Sewer AIA Project
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:

State grants 300,000$     290,962$     36,317$       327,279$     27,279$       

Total revenues 300,000       290,962       36,317         327,279       27,279         

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 305,000       292,028       22,251         314,279       (9,279)         

Total expenditures 305,000       292,028       22,251         314,279       (9,279)         

Other financing sources:

Transfers (to) from other funds:

Water and sewer fund 5,000          5,000          (18,000)       (13,000)       (18,000)       

Total other financing sources 5,000          5,000          (18,000)       (13,000)       (18,000)       

Other financing sources over 

  (under) expenditures -$            3,934$         (3,934)$       -$            -$            
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 12
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Wastewater Trmt. Plant/Pump Station Rehab Project
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:

State grants 1,350,000$       122,445$         33,361$           155,806$         (1,194,194)$     

Total revenues 1,350,000        122,445           33,361             155,806           (1,194,194)       

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 1,374,500        123,325           33,274             156,599           1,217,901        

Total expenditures 1,374,500        123,325           33,274             156,599           1,217,901        

Other financing sources:

Transfers from other funds:

Water and sewer fund 24,500             -                 -                 -                 (24,500)           

Total other financing sources 24,500             -                 -                 -                 (24,500)           

Other financing sources over 

  (under) expenditures -$                (880)$              87$                 (793)$              (793)$              
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 13
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Simmons Water Line Project
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:

State grants 379,795$     36,259$       330,204$     366,463$     (13,332)$      

Total revenues 379,795       36,259         330,204       366,463       (13,332)       

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 379,795       155,582       319,163       474,745       (94,950)       

Total expenditures 379,795       155,582       319,163       474,745       (94,950)       

Other financing sources over 

  (under) expenditures -$            (119,323)$    11,041$       (108,282)$    (108,282)$    
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 14
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Capital Projects Fund - Streambank Project
From Inception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Actual Variance

Project Prior Current Total to Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
Revenues:

Restricted intergovernmental:

State grants 1,100,000$   -$            795,875$     795,875$     (304,125)$    

Total revenues 1,100,000    -             795,875       795,875       (304,125)      

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 1,100,000    -             145,875       145,875       954,125       

Total expenditures 1,100,000    -             145,875       145,875       954,125       

Other financing sources

  over expenditures -$            -$            650,000$     650,000$     650,000$     
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Statement 15
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) - Pilot Mountain Tourism Development Authority
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues 40,100$         37,824$         (2,276)$          

Expenditures:
Economic development 40,100           28,476 11,624           

Revenues over expenditures -$               9,348$           9,348$           
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 1
General Fund
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2022

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections, Balance 

Fiscal Year June 30, 2021 Additions and Credits June 30, 2022

2021-2022 -$              968,814$      961,063$      7,751$          
2020-2021 11,130          -                4,912            6,218            
2019-2020 6,870            -                977               5,893            
2018-2019 6,215            -                1,156            5,059            
2017-2018 2,413            -                1,683            730               
2016-2017 1,409            -                (58)                1,467            
2015-2016 935               -                (22)                957               
2014-2015 803               -                303               500               
2013-2014 1,029            -                (16)                1,045            
2012-2013 1,044            -                14                 1,030            
2011-2012 1,460            -                1,460            -                

Total 33,308$        968,814$      971,472$      30,650          

Less:  allowance for uncollectible accounts:
General Fund -                

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net 30,650$        

Reconcilement with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes - general fund 987,726$      
Reconciling items:

Interest collected (1,199)           
Miscellaneous adjustments (15,055)         

Total collections and credits 971,472$      
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA Schedule 2
Analysis of Current Year Tax Levy
Town - Wide Levy
June 30, 2022

Property
Excluding

Property Registered Registered
Valuation Amount Motor Motor

(in Thousand) Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original levy:

Property taxes at current 
   year rate 149,084,912$ 0.5700 849,784$      849,784$      -$              
Motor vehicles 15,994,733     0.5700 91,170          -                91,170          
Penalties -                  0.5700 1,199            1,199            -                

Discoveries:
Current year taxes 2,356,600       0.5700 27,376          27,376          -                

Releases (4,923,000) 0.5700 (715)              (715) -                

Total property value 162,513,245$ 

Net levy 968,814        877,644        91,170          

Unpaid (by taxpayer) taxes at June 30, 2022 7,751            7,751            -                

Current year's taxes collected 961,063$      869,893$      91,170$        

Current levy collection percentage 99.20% 99.12% 100.00%

Total Levy

Town-wide
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 

Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council  
Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina  
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial statement audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements 
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund, and the aggregated 
remaining fund information of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina (the “Town”) as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Town's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 28, 2023.  
Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Town of Pilot 
Mountain ABC Board, as described in our report on the Town of Pilot Mountain’s financial statements.  
This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal controls over financial 
reports or compliance and other matters that are reported separately by those auditors.  The financial 
statements of the Town of Pilot Mountain ABC Board were not audited in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements, we considered the Town’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the basic financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s basic financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 

Greensboro, North Carolina  
April 28, 2023 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for  
the Major State Program; on Internal Control  

Over Compliance; With OMB Uniform Guidance 
 and State Single Audit Implementation Act 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council  
Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina  
 
Report on Compliance for The Major State Program 

Opinion on The Major State Program 

We have audited the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina, compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could 
have a direct and material effect on the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina’s major State program 
for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina’s major State program 
is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.  

In our opinion, the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina complied, in all material respects, with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
its major State program for the year ended June 30, 2022.  

Basis for Opinion on The Major State Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and 
the State Single Audit Implementation Act.  Our responsibilities under those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion on compliance for the major State program.  Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina 's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements 
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Town 
of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina State program.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina’s compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.  The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is 
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made 
by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina’s 
compliance with the requirements of the major State program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina 's 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circum- stances. 

 Obtain an understanding of Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina 's internal control over 
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina 's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.  

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a State program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a State program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section and above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance.  Given these 
limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 

 
Greensboro, North Carolina  
April 28, 2023 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Catalog of
Federal

Domestic State
Assistance Pass-through Federal State
Number Grantor's No. Expenditures Expenditures

Federal Awards:

U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed Through Surry County:

Coronavirus State and Local Recovery Fund     21.027 224,342$       -$             
Total Federal Awards 224,342         -               

State Awards:
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality Division

of Water Infrastructure:
Connect NC Bond "Tax Exempt" Program H-SRP-D-17-0142 -                3,816,683    

N.C. Office of State Budget and Management:
Operations Appropriations Act 11372 -                325,000       

N.C. Department of Transportation:
Powell Bill 11212 -                38,958         

Total State Awards -                4,180,641    

Total Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 224,342$       4,180,641$  

Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program Title
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of revenues and expenditures of federal and state awards (the
"Schedule") includes the federal and state grant activity of Town of Pilot Mountain, North
Carolina under programs of the federal and state government for the year ended June 30, 2022.
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Town of Pilot Mountain, North
Carolina, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or
cash flows of Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina.

Revenues and expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such revenues and expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement.

Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost
rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

(i) Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

(ii)
(a) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X  no
(b) Significant deficiency(ies)? yes X  none reported

(iii) Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X  no

State Awards

(i) Internal control over major programs:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X  no
(b) Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X  none reported

(ii) Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
 for major state programs: Unmodified

(iii) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
 reported in accordance with the State Single Audit
Implementation Act yes X  no

(iv) Identification of major programs:

Program Name

NC Connect Bonds

A. Deficiencies in Internal Control

None reported

B. Compliance Findings

None reported

Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported

Internal control over financial reporting:

Section II - Findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards:

Section III - Findings and questioned costs relating to the major state programs which are required
to be reported in accordance with the State Single Audit Implementation Act:
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2022

None  
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Statistical Section 
Table of Contents 

 
This part of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplemental information says about the Town's overall health. 

Contents   

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Town's financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the Town's ability to 
generate its income taxes and electric revenues.  

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town's current 
levels of outstanding debt and the Town's ability to issue additional debt in the future.  

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the Town's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over 
time and with other governments.  

Operating Information 

These schedules contain information about the Town's operations and resources to help the reader 
understand how the Town's financial information relates to the services the Town provides and the 
activities it performs.  

Sources 

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Reports for the relevant year. 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Net Position by Component        
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets 2,021,994$  1,929,611$  1,914,776$  1,879,692$  1,900,642$  1,859,935$  2,086,531$  2,171,281$  2,084,954$   2,124,128$        
Restricted 186,164       270,402       280,387       286,989       271,660       534,922       912,156       577,732       664,508        482,240             
Unrestricted 167,774       214,467       332,176       547,764       380,967       8,524           (438,654)      (405,506)      (290,803)       579,002             

Total governmental activities net assets 2,375,932$  2,414,480$  2,527,339$  2,714,445$  2,553,269$  2,403,381$  2,560,033$  2,343,507$  2,458,659$   3,185,370$        

Business-type activities
Net investment in capital assets 6,111,527$  5,967,434$  5,827,035$  5,684,435$  5,509,980$  5,443,232$  5,763,923$  5,943,033$  7,557,307$   8,590,273$        
Unrestricted 117,284       22,477         (9,995)          160,684       273,963       213,650       (166,047)      142,611       (650,677)       454,924             

Total business-type activities net assets 6,228,811$  5,989,911$  5,817,040$  5,845,119$  5,783,943$  5,656,882$  5,597,876$  6,085,644$  6,906,630$   9,045,197$        

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets 8,133,521$  7,897,045$  7,741,811$  7,564,127$  7,410,622$  7,303,167$  7,850,454$  8,114,314$  9,642,261$   10,714,401$      
Restricted 186,164       270,402       280,387       286,989       271,660       534,922       912,156       577,732       664,508        482,240             
Unrestricted 285,058       236,944       322,181       708,448       654,930       222,174       (604,701)      (262,895)      (941,480)       1,033,926          

Total Primary Government 8,604,743$  8,404,391$  8,344,379$  8,559,564$  8,337,212$  8,060,263$  8,157,909$  8,429,151$  9,365,289$   12,230,567$      
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Changes in Net Position                         
Last Ten Fiscal Years                         
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Expenses
Governmental activities

General Government 832,685$          381,424$          321,533$          422,306$          372,078$          338,736$          104,580$          449,724$          302,564$          339,369$          
Public Safety 653,828            668,266            626,299            582,852            591,812            746,399            739,034            802,780            949,928            941,206            
Transportation 385,097            220,711            68,340              164,143            177,483            195,029            353,503            139,549            157,565            524,249            
Economic Development 31,697              32,188              39,580              14,632              42,861              126,601            126,601            282,186            162,146            203,809            
Environmental Protection 70,602              80,813              188,569            186,786            208,938            241,654            349,685            247,280            274,902            561,000            
Culture and Recreation 108,822            98,063              122,724            89,033              131,808            106,307            108,279            93,425              99,390              127,062            
Interest on Long Term Debt 6,988                7,258                6,643                302                   1,765                14,958              6,130                3,219                6,958                2,714                

Total governmental activities expenses 2,089,719         1,488,723         1,373,688         1,460,054         1,526,745         1,769,684         1,787,812         2,018,163         1,953,453         2,699,409         

Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer 836,773            940,407            924,692            991,428            994,305            910,301            1,174,325         1,127,019         1,167,262         1,648,404         

Total business-type activities expense 836,773            940,407            924,692            991,428            994,305            910,301            1,174,325         1,127,019         1,167,262         1,648,404         

Total Primary Government 2,926,492$       2,429,130$       2,298,380$       2,451,482$       2,521,050$       2,679,985$       2,962,137$       3,145,182$       3,120,715$       4,347,813$       

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General Government -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 111,421$          163,926$          174,252$          140,059$          113,275$          
Public Safety -                   1,666                -                   14,297              4,500                2,091                2,091                3,514                6,182                10,006              
Economic Development -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   218,059            208,268            
Environmental Protection -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   70,694              70,694              76,058              79,950              87,033              

Operating grants and contributions 476,846            46,304              49,624              45,507              44,764              43,900              43,900              43,583              41,301              1,048,218         
Capital grants and contributions 373,777            16,299              -                   -                   -                   142,208            157,304            18,608              2,148                225,762            

Total governmental activities program 

  revenues 850,623            64,269              49,624              59,804              49,264              370,314            437,915            316,015            487,699            1,692,562         

Business-type activities:
Charges for services

Water and Sewer 654,054            706,157            717,668            811,284            854,528            851,123            907,038            921,559            1,000,173         1,105,632         
Operating grants and contributions -                   -                   26,481              138,180            37,000              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital grants and contributions -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   93,000              197,450            693,228            988,075            2,651,839         

Total business-type activities program 

  revenues 654,054            706,157            744,149            949,464            891,528            944,123            1,104,488         1,614,787         1,988,248         3,757,471         

Total Governmental activities program 

  revenues 1,504,677$       770,426$          793,773$          1,009,268$       940,792$          1,314,437$       1,542,403$       1,930,802$       2,475,947$       5,450,033$       
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Changes in Net Position (Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years                         
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Net (Expense) Revenue
Governmental activities (1,239,096)$  (1,424,454)$  (1,324,064)$  (1,400,250)$  (1,477,481)$  (1,399,370)$  (1,349,897)$  (1,702,148)$  (1,465,754)$  (1,006,847)$  
Business-type activities (182,719)       (234,250)       (180,543)       (41,964)         (102,777)       33,822           (69,837)         487,768         820,986         2,109,067      

Total Primary Government Expense (1,421,815)$  (1,658,704)$  (1,504,607)$  (1,442,214)$  (1,580,258)$  (1,365,548)$  (1,419,734)$  (1,214,380)$  (644,768)$     1,102,220$    

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:

Taxes  871,046$       868,266$       850,426$       811,741$       819,384$       845,608$       851,937$       813,607$       905,018$       987,723$       
Grants and unrestricted contributions 461,624         456,610         510,625         545,111         545,974         608,133         608,930         614,686         648,883         715,467         
Gain (loss) on sale of property (74,105)         3,720             (1,097)           -                 16,693           -                 -                 6,752             26,999           29,500           
Investment earnings 1,299             919                913                672                2,333             6,988             6,988             577                6                    868                
Miscellaneous  119,841         114,087         141,264         224,617         138,494         3,694             3,694             -                 -                 -                 
Insurance recovery -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Forgiveness of debt -                 -                 -                 34,121           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Transfers in (out) 74,695           19,400           -                 (29,106)         -                 (150,500)       -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total governmental activities 1,454,400      1,463,002      1,502,131      1,587,156      1,522,878      1,313,923      1,471,549      1,435,622      1,580,906      1,733,558      

Business-type activities:
Gain on sale of property -                 -                 -                 -                 32,710           10,831           10,831           -                 -                 29,500           
Investment earnings -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Miscellaneous 15,147           14,750           32,466           40,937           8,891             55,915           -                 -                 -                 -                 
Transfers in (out) (74,695)         (19,400)         -                 29,106           -                 64,611           -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total business-type activities (59,548)         (4,650)           32,466           70,043           41,601           131,357         10,831           -                 -                 29,500           

Total Primary Government 1,394,852$    1,458,352$    1,534,597$    1,657,199$    1,564,479$    1,445,280$    1,482,380$    1,435,622$    1,580,906$    1,763,058$    

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities 29,946$         138,938$       101,881$       109,675$       123,508$       (85,447)$       121,652$       (266,526)$     115,152$       726,711$       
Business-type activities (293,798)       (185,193)       (9,498)           (32,734)         75,423           165,179         (59,006)         487,768         820,986         2,138,567      

Total Primary Government (263,852)$     (46,255)$       92,383$         76,941$         198,931$       79,732$         62,646$         221,242$       936,138$       2,865,278$    
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years                                 
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

General Fund
Restricted 121,695$    271,682$    282,223$    286,989$    271,660$    534,922$    912,156$    577,732$    664,508$    482,240$    
Assigned -              33,070        -              -              -              -              20,000        20,000        -              -              
Unassigned 209,364      214,913      388,963      547,764      380,967      312,193      (202,288)     (59,794)       32,524        236,532      

Total general fund 331,059$    519,665$    671,186$    834,753$    652,627$    847,115$    729,868$    537,938$    697,032$    718,772$    

All Other Governmental Funds
Restricted 8,137$        25,372$      -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
Assigned -              -              -              -              -              -              45,177        11,123        3,943          606,908      
Unassigned, reported in:

Special revenue fund -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Capital projects fund 56,332        (26,652)       (1,636)         (1,636)         136,220      (195)            (2,268)         -              -              -              
Debt service fund -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Permanent fund -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Total all other governmental funds 64,469$      (1,280)$       (1,636)$       (1,636)$       136,220$    (195)$          42,909$      11,123$      3,943$        606,908$    
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes 839,579$       835,000$       831,858$       822,903$       837,857$       826,304$       848,280$       813,607$       905,018$       987,726$       
Other taxes and licenses 33,815           33,064           26,956           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 461,624         456,610         510,625         545,111         545,974         553,524         632,342         632,319         651,031         1,716,069      
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 509,808         80,158           71,387           62,208           52,597           84,589           215,936         99,220           266,664         492,766         
Permits and Fees 3,870             4,645             5,310             2,205             3,490             4,560             2,980             2,155             4,150             2,765             
Investment Earnings 1,299             919                913                672                2,333             8,204             6,988             577                6                    868                
Other Revenues 80,891           76,378           108,998         213,786         131,669         140,126         230,587         240,180         216,490         196,429         

Total revenue 1,930,886      1,486,774      1,556,047      1,646,885      1,573,920      1,617,307      1,937,113      1,788,058      2,043,359      3,396,623      

Expenditures
Current

General government 806,837         368,222         322,995         394,091         349,613         348,923         353,197         530,230         366,909         443,770         
Public safety 661,593         664,731         642,926         601,442         670,165         662,024         728,501         776,740         915,063         1,027,787      
Transportation 379,527         241,809         89,626           192,492         182,547         149,262         333,364         185,351         148,740         535,170         
Pilot Center -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Economic Development 31,697           32,188           39,581           14,632           42,861           83,296           143,469         279,291         160,833         203,809         
Environmental Protection 70,602           80,813           187,919         225,582         204,167         286,438         337,890         222,340         252,197         564,926         
Cultural and Recreation 259,211         73,193           89,130           55,795           98,568           103,323         68,915           60,187           67,056           94,781           
Debt service:

Principal retirement 15,384           21,114           25,584           9,561             20,628           34,656           43,484           35,151           69,611           34,461           
Interest and Fees 7,103             7,376             6,765             302                1,766             6,149             6,130             3,219             6,958             2,714             
Total expenditures 2,231,954      1,489,446      1,404,526      1,493,897      1,570,315      1,674,071      2,014,950      2,092,509      1,987,367      2,907,418      

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures (301,068)        (2,672)            151,521         152,988         3,605             (56,764)          (77,837)          (304,451)        55,992           489,205         

Other Financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 209,560         143,720         -                 5,253             16,693           8,600             3,694             7,310             26,999           29,500           
Transfers In 74,695           19,400           200,000         -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Transfers Out -                 -                 -                 (30,742)          -                 (34,611)          (150,500)        (17,850)          -                 -                 
Proceeds from Debt -                 28,158           -                 86,221           -                 24,491           -                 -                 68,923           106,000         
Insurance Recovery -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total other financing sources (uses) 284,255         191,278         200,000         60,732           16,693           (1,520)            (146,806)        (10,540)          95,922           135,500         

Net change in fund balances (16,813)$        188,606$       351,521$       213,720$       20,298$         (58,284)$        (224,643)$      (314,991)$      151,914$       624,705$       

Debt service as a percentage of
  noncapital expenditures 1.01% 1.91% 2.30% 0.66% 1.43% 2.53% 2.89% 2.00% 4.07% 1.40%

Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Real Property
Personal 
Property Public Service Total Tax Rate Levy

2013 120,276,354$     13,489,563$     1,627,876$       135,393,793$     0.58               785,284$          
2014 115,174,844       14,860,818       2,065,037         132,100,699       0.56               739,764            
2015 117,224,040       16,494,865       2,060,000         135,778,905       0.57               773,940            
2016 115,405,940       13,764,334       2,375,245         131,545,519       0.57               749,809            
2017 108,769,516       14,159,852       2,595,804         125,525,172       0.57               715,493            
2018 110,900,449       15,401,119       2,764,516         129,066,084       0.57               735,677            
2019 116,863,340       18,139,804       3,679,970         138,683,114       0.57               790,494            
2020 129,367,966       20,413,138       3,809,246         153,590,350       0.57               875,465            
2021 116,796,568       36,583,298       3,906,107         157,285,973       0.57               902,767            
2022 138,374,519       26,647,536       4,384,932         169,406,987       0.57               967,876            

Note:  Property in the Town of Pilot Mountain is assessed by the Surry County Tax Office.  
The most recent revaluation occurred in 2016.  Tax exempt property is not assessed by 
Surry County for tax purposes.  Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value and are the 
weighted average of all the individual direct rates applied. 

Assessed Value of Taxable Property               
Last Ten Fiscal Years                                      
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

Last Ten Fiscal years

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
Name of Government 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

County of Surry  $       0.582  $       0.582 0.582$       0.582$       0.582$       0.582$       0.582$       0.582$       0.582$       0.552$       
Town of Pilot Mountain           0.560           0.560 0.570         0.570         0.570         0.570         0.570         0.570         0.570         0.570         
Pilot Knob Fire District -             -             -             0.040         0.040         0.040         0.040         0.040         0.040         0.040         
Total Direct and Overlapping Rates 1.142$       1.142$       1.152$       1.192$       1.192$       1.192$       1.192$       1.192$       1.192$       1.162$       

Property Tax Rates-Direct and All Overlapping Governments

Per $100 of Assessed Valuation
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Taxable Percentage of Taxable Percentage of
Assessed Total Taxable Assessed Total Taxable

Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value

Jimmy R Lynch & Sons 6,994,828$       1 21.66% 3,884,327$       1 16.71%
Glenwood Pilot Mountain Co LLC 2,775,250         2 8.59% 2,518,370         2 10.84%
Duke Energy 2,584,754         3 8.00% - 0.00%
Chilton Moir Edward 2,549,420         4 7.89% 2,477,230         3 10.66%
Needham Holdings LLC 2,111,880         5 6.54% 1,709,310         7 7.36%
Altus Group US INC 2,199,410         6 6.81% - 0.00%
Key Street of Pilot LLC 1,960,560         7 6.07% 1,646,710         9 7.09%
Time Warner Cable Southeast 1,660,330         8 5.14% - 0.00%
Barbee Harold Ted 1,510,620         9 4.68% 1,646,710         8 7.09%
Pinnacle Hill Limited Partners 1,452,520         10 4.50% 1,631,310         9 7.02%
Pilot Mountain Partners LLC 4,083,900         11 12.65% 2,313,840         4 9.96%
North Key Street LLC 1,172,220         12 3.63% 2,074,840         5 8.93%
Pramukh C Hospitality LLC 1,236,210         13 3.83% 1,773,610         6 7.63%
Intex Corporation 1,562,780         10 6.72%

Total 32,291,902$     100.00% 23,239,037$     100.00%

Source:  Municipal Tax Assessor

2022 2013

Current Year and Nine Years Ago
Principal Property Taxpayer
TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

Amount
Percentage 

of Levy Amount
Percentage 

of Levy

2013 828,178$       816,038$       98.53% 12,100$         828,138$       100.00%
2014 830,273         816,206         98.31% 12,982           829,188         99.87%
2015 836,316         825,175         98.67% 9,913             835,088         99.85%
2016 829,075         820,043         98.91% 7,904             827,947         99.86%
2017 821,551         814,204         99.11% 4,335             818,539         99.63%
2018 815,180         805,916         98.86% 4,067             809,983         99.36%
2019 852,300         844,808         99.12% -                 844,808         99.12%
2020 875,465         858,908         98.11% -                 858,908         98.11%
2021 902,767         892,065         98.81% -                 892,065         98.81%
2022 968,814         961,063         99.20% -                 961,063         99.20%

Source: Town Records

Collections 
in 

Subsequent 

Total Collections to Date

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal years

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30

Taxes Levied 
for the Fiscal 

Year

Collected within the Fiscal 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

Governmental 
Activities

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30
Installment 
Purchases

General 
Obligation 

Bonds
Installment 
Purchases

Total Primary 
Government

Percentage of 
Personal 
Income Per Capita

Population   
(Est.)

Assessed Value 
of Taxable 
Property

2013 225,210$          182,000$          526,083$          933,293$          3.01% 625.53$            1,492 135,393,793$      
2014 209,362            172,000            442,187            823,549            2.72% 546.85              1,506 132,100,699        
2015 193,034            161,000            358,290            712,324            2.30% 472.99              1,506 135,778,905        
2016 279,255            150,000            370,479            799,734            2.55% 532.80              1,501 131,545,519        
2017 228,552            138,000            665,168            1,031,720         3.28% 685.53              1,505 125,525,172        
2018 218,417            125,000            571,095            914,512            2.73% 607.25              1,506 129,066,140        
2019 174,933            112,000            470,304            757,237            2.06% 503.15              1,505 138,683,158        
2020 213,206            98,000              368,766            679,972            1.60% 451.51              1,506 135,423,716        
2021 212,517            84,000              1,013,925         1,310,442         3.25% 872.46              1,502 138,301,547        
2022 284,056            70,000              179,433            533,489            1.05% 354.48              1,505 149,084,912        

Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business-Type Activities

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30 Principal Interest

Total Debt 
Service 

Expenditures

Total General 
Government 
Expenditures

Percentage 
of Debt 

Service to 
Total General 
Government 
Expenditures

2013 10,000$         9,600$           19,600$         2,089,719$    0.94%
2014 10,000           9,100             19,100           1,488,723      1.28%
2015 11,000           8,600             19,600           1,373,688      1.43%
2016 11,000           8,050             19,050           1,460,054      1.30%
2017 12,000           7,500             19,500           1,526,745      1.28%
2018 13,000           6,250             19,250           1,674,071      1.15%
2019 14,000           5,600             19,600           2,014,950      0.97%
2020 14,000           4,900             18,900           2,092,509      0.90%
2021 14,000           4,200             18,200           1,987,367      0.92%
2022 14,000           3,500             17,500           2,907,418      0.60%

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures For
General Bonded Debt to General Government Expenditures
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)
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Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding

Estimated 
Percentage 

Applicable 
a

Estimated Share 
of Overlapping 

Debt

Direct
Town of Pilot Mountain

Installment Debt 215,133$               100.000% 215,133$               

Underlying
Surry County

General Obligation Bods 495,000                 2.394% 11,850                   

Total direct and overlapping debt 226,983$               

Sources:  Town of Pilot Mountain and County of Surry, North Carolina CAFR, Year Ended June 30, 2022

a - Percent applicable to the Town of Pilot Mountain calculated using assessed valuation of Town 
divided by assessed valuation of the County. 

TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Computation of Direct and Underlying Debt
General Obligation Bonds
June 30, 2022
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Assessed Value of Property 135,393,793$     132,100,699$     135,778,905$     131,545,519$     125,525,172$     129,066,140$     138,683,158$     135,423,716$     138,301,547$     149,084,912$     

Debt limit, 8% of assessed value 10,831,503         10,568,056         10,862,312         10,523,642         10,042,014         10,325,291         11,094,653         10,833,897         11,064,124         11,926,793         

Total net debt applicable to limit 933,293              823,549              712,324              799,734              1,031,720           914,512              757,237              606,547              1,310,442           533,489              

Legal debt margin available 9,898,210$         9,744,507$         10,149,988$       9,723,908$         9,010,294$         9,410,779$         10,337,416$       10,227,350$       9,753,682$         11,393,304$       

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 8.62% 7.79% 6.56% 7.60% 10.27% 8.86% 6.83% 5.60% 11.84% 4.47%

Source:  Town of Pilot Mountain

Note:   NC General Statute 159-55 limits the Town's outstanding debt to 8% of the appraised value of property subject to taxation. 
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Principal Employers

Employer Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total 

Municipal 
Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total 

Municipal 
Employment

Surry County Schools 1,320          1 4.55% 1,239          1 3.45%
Wayne Poultry Company 1,000          2 3.44% 866             2 2.41%
Northern Hospital of Surry County 850             3 2.93% 745             4 2.07%
Hugh Chatham Memorial Hospital 700             4 2.41% 407             8 1.13%
County of Surry 500             5 1.72% 859             3 2.39%
Surry Community College 500             6 1.72% 418             6 1.16%
Wal-Mart 400             7 1.38% 410             7 1.14%
Vitro/PGW 360             8 1.24% -              - 0.00%
Hanes Brands, Inc 250             9 0.86% 427             5 1.19%
Floyd Pike Electrical Contractors 250             10 0.86% 342             10 0.95%
Renfro Corporation 200             11 0.69% 351             9 0.98%

6,330          21.81% 6,064          16.87%

2022 2013

Source: Surry County Economic Development Partnership. Numbers are for Surry County and not Pilot Mountain specifically.  Data is 
not available below the County level

Current Year and Nine Years Ago
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

Year Population 
a

Per Capita 

Personal Income
 c

Unemployment 

Rate
 d

Median Age
Public School 

Enrollment

2013 1,506                     20,118                   11.90% 39.9 377
2014 1,506                     20,570                   8.90% 39.8 382
2015 1,501                     20,910                   6.30% 39.8 385
2016 1,505                     20,910                   5.90% 39.8 386
2017 1,506                     22,238                   4.90% 38.5 390
2018 1,505                     22,238                   4.30% 38.5 395
2019 1,505                     24,464                   3.90% 39.4 411
2020 1,506                     25,532                   4.20% 45.5 423
2021 1,649                     24,464                   11.30% 45.4 435
2022 1,440                     35,306                   3.50% 47.0 450

Source: 
a
 Population information provided by US Census Bureau American Fact Finder

c 
Per capita personal income data from the US Census Bureau American Community Survey

d 
Unemployment data provided by the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis, as of June of each year. 

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Function/Program

Administration
Manager 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 
Finance Officer -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Town Clerk 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 
Customer Service Representative 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 -                 

Downtown Development
Main Street Coordinator -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 0.5                 0.5                 0.5                 0.5                 0.8                 
Events Coordinator -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 0.5                 
Code Enforcement -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 0.3                 

Police
Chief 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 
Captain 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 
Lieutenant 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Detective 1.0                 
Sergeant 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 
Officer 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 4.0                 
Dispatch 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 

Pubic Works
Director 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 
Supervisor 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 -                 -                 -                 
Maintenance Worker 3.0                 3.0                 3.0                 3.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 2.0                 

Water Treatment Plant
ORC 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 -                 -                 -                 
Plant Maintenance Tech 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 1.0                 -                 

Wastewater Treatment Plant
Plant Operator 0.5                 0.5                 0.5                 0.5                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total 21.5               21.5               21.5               21.5               18.0               18.5               18.5               16.5               16.5               16.5               

Source: District Personnel Records

Full-time Equivalent Town Government Employees by Function/Program
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Function/Program

Administration
Zoning Permits                    23                    26 28                  50                  41                  44                  59                  57                  62                  -                 
Tax Rate  $             0.58  $             0.56 0.57$              $             0.57  $             0.57  $             0.57  $             0.57 0.57$              $             0.57  $             0.57 

Police
Criminal Activities               5,517               3,490 3,986                           5,048               4,321                  622               3,875 3,268                           3,354               3,614 
Total Activities             57,024             77,249 71,779                       75,588             50,245             11,197             69,869 66,966                       67,852             67,942 
Patrol Miles Driven             78,236             77,562 75,123                       69,718             77,458             71,258             91,000 75,000                       82,000             81,799 

Public Works
Street Signs Installed -                 7                    6                    3                    3                    30                  25                  20                  5                    5                    
Meters Read 12,010           12,010           12,010           12,096           12,096           12,096           12,372           12,372           12,372           12,372           
New Water/Sewer Taps 2                    5                    3                    5                    7                    19                  5                    2                    5                    8                    

Water Treatment
Gallons Treated 88.375           48.875           24.375           49.250           64.750           55.875           102.234         78.860           101.030         102.070         
Permit Violations -                 -                 -                 -                 1                    1                    1                    1                    -                 -                 

Wastewater Treatment
Gallons Treated 70.7               39.1               19.5               39.4               51.8               44.7               72.6               72.8               69.1               68.1               
Permit Violations 2                    1                    -                 3                    -                 1                    1                    1                    -                 -                 

Finance
Vendor Checks Written 7,566             7,395             7,430             5,641             7,580             9,213             1,150             1,150             1,120             -                 
Payroll Checks Processed 559                559                559                559                468                481                481                429                442                546                
Taxes Collected 98.53% 98.31% 98.67% 98.91% 99.11% 99.12% 99.05% 97.93% 98.69% 0.00%

Downtown Development
Façade Grants Issued -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 2                    3                    6                    5                    3                    
Events 7                    7                    7                    8                    8                    10                  10                  7                    3                    15                  
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TOWN OF PILOT MOUNTAIN, NORTH CAROLINA

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Function/Program

Police
Stations                      1                      1 1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    
Patrol Units                      7                      7 7                                         6                      6                      7                      7 10                                     10                    10 

Public Works
Streets (miles)                    19                    19 19                                     19                    19                    19                    19 19                                     19                    19 
Traffic Signals                    -                      -   -                                    -                      -                      -                      -   -                                    -                      -   

Water
Transmission lines (miles)                    18                    18 18                                     18                    18                    18                    18 18                                     18                    18 
Fire Hydrants                  193                  193                  193                  193                  193                  193                  193                  193                  193                  193 
Storage Capacity 1,800,000      1,700,000             1,700,000 1,700,000      1,700,000      1,700,000      1,700,000      1,200,000      1,200,000      1,200,000      

Wastewater Treatment
Collection Lines 18                  18                  18                  18                  18                  18                  18                  18                  18                  18                  
Pump Stations 19                  19                  19                  19                  19                  19                  19                  19                  19                  19                  
Treatment Plants 1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    1                    

Capital Asset Statistics by Function

210



1501 Highwoods Blvd., Ste. 300 (27410)
P.O. Box 19608 | Greensboro, NC 27419
P:  336-294-4494  •  F:  336-294-4495

brccpa.com

 

 

 
 
April 28, 2023 
 
 
To the Honorable Town Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council  
Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina 
 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Pilot Mountain, North 
Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2022.  Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our 
audit.  We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 10, 2022.  
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to 
our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The 
significant accounting policies used by the Town of Pilot Mountain, North Carolina (the “Town”) are 
described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted, and the 
application of existing policies was not changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  We 
noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack 
of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them 
may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the Town’s 
financial statements were: 
 

Management’s estimate of the Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance and 
Other Postemployment Benefits for Healthcare Benefits liabilities is based on the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit 
costs between the employer and plan members.   
 
Management’s estimate of useful lives on capital assets of the Town are based on the Town’s 
history of normal use of such assets.   
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Page 2 
 
 

 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the Town’s liabilities associated with 
these plans in determining that they were reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.   
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during 
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management.  Management has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the 
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, 
either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated April 28, 2023. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors.  
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 
responses were not a condition to our retention. 
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Other Matters 
 
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made 
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, 
and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Town Council and management of the Town of 
Pilot Mountain, North Carolina and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
BERNARD ROBINSON & COMPANY, L.L.P. 
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STATUS: CLOSED
JOB-2023-001301 4/4/2023OTHER DPW MOW & TRIM CEMETERY 4/3/2023 1MOW CEMETERY

JOB-2023-001322 4/4/2023FACILITIES MOWINGDPW MOW TOWN HALL 4/4/2023 0TOWN HALL

JOB-2023-001333 4/4/2023FACILITIES MOWINGDPW MOW LIBRARY 4/4/2023 0LIBRARY

JOB-2023-001344 4/4/2023FACILITIES MOWINGDPW MOW @ PILOT CENTER 4/4/2023 0PILOT CENTER

JOB-2023-001315 4/4/2023OTHER DPW PICK UP BRUSH & DEBRIS 4/4/2023 0CEMETERY

JOB-2023-001386 4/5/2023INSPECTION CREEKDPW WATER IS BLACK - BOTH STREAMS ARE CLEAR 4/5/2023 0HWY 52 BYPASS - 
PILOT AIR

JOB-2023-001377 4/5/2023GARBAGE/RECYCLIN
G 

DPW DELIVER GARBAGE CART 4/5/2023 0404 CRESTWOOD DR

JOB-2023-001398 4/6/2023FACILITIES MOWINGDPW MOW WATER PLANT 4/5/2023 1WATER PLANT

JOB-2023-001369 4/5/2023OTHER DPW TURN WATER ON FOR NEW SERVICE.  METER 
#1700026918

4/5/2023 0404 CRESTWOOD DR

JOB-2023-0014410 4/6/2023GARBAGE/RECYCLIN
G 

DPW REMOVE DEAD SQUIRREL 4/6/2023 0W MAIN @ ESHS

JOB-2023-0014311 4/6/2023GARBAGE/RECYCLIN
G TRASH

DPW EMPTY TRASH/RECYCLE CANS AND DOG WASTE 
STATIONS

4/6/2023 0MAIN STREET

JOB-2023-0014812 4/12/2023OTHER DPW TURN WATER ON AT MONUMENT 4/12/2023 0N KEY ST - 
MONUMENT

JOB-2023-0015013 4/13/2023 DPW TURN OFF FOR NON-PAYMENT.  METER 
#1700027632

4/12/2023 1217 N ACADEMY ST

JOB-2023-0014714 4/12/2023OTHER DPW TURN WATER ON FOR IRRIGATION.  METER 
#1700026862

4/12/2023 0106 N KEY ST

JOB-2023-0014615 4/17/2023GARBAGE/RECYCLIN
G 

DPW BULK ITEM PICK UP 4/10 - 4/14 4/12/2023 5VARIOUS LOCATIONS

JOB-2023-0014516 4/12/2023 DPW WATER METER IS LEAKING 4/12/2023 0404 S KEY ST

JOB-2023-0015217 4/13/2023OTHER DPW TURN WATER OFF FOR REPAIRS.  METER 
#1700026960

4/13/2023 0162 STONE DR

JOB-2023-0015318 4/18/2023STORM WATER DPW STANDING WATER NEAR A DRAIN? 4/14/2023 4813 SUNSET DR

JOB-2023-0015719 4/19/2023OTHER DPW PLEASE MAKE SURE THE DISC GOLF COURSE IS 
GETTING MOWED. THE TOWN IS RESPONSIBLE 
FOR MAINTAINING IT TOO. PLEASE MAKE THIS A 
PRIORITY BEFORE THE WEEKEND. THERE WILL 
BE A  DISC GOLF TOURNAMENT HOSTED THERE 
THIS WEEKEND.  SURRY DISC GOLF ASSOCIATION 
PRESIDENT: ADAM SANTUCCI 336-293-3612 - 
MENTIONED THAT IT HAD NOT BEEN GOTTEN 
AND ASKED FOR SOMEONE FROM PW TO CALL 
HIM- THERE ARE A COUPLE OF AREAS THAT HE 
WANTS TO MAKE SURE ARE GOTTEN.

4/17/2023 2

JOB-2023-0015620 4/13/2023OTHER DPW MOW TOWN HALL 4/17/2023 -4TOWN HALL

JOB-2023-0015521 4/18/2023OTHER DPW MOW & TRIM CEMETERY, TRIM SHRUBS 4/17/2023 1CEMETERY

Applications For the Date Range 04/01/2023 Thru 04/30/2023

General Services Work Order Applications

Reference # Requesting Dept.# Job Type Description Date IssuedDate Entered Days OpenLocation

Page 1 of 3Friday, May 5, 2023 10:09:01 AM
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JOB-2023-0016022 4/21/2023OTHER DPW CONTACT ANNA ABOUT PUTTING OUT 5 GALLON 
BUCKETS FOR THE STORYWALK THIS WEEKEND.  
SHE NEEDS THIS DONE TOMORROW OR 
THURSDAY.

4/18/2023 3LIBRARY

JOB-2023-0015923 4/19/2023OTHER DPW MARK PLOT H211 MARY E. DEARMIN 4/18/2023 1CEMETERY SECTION 
H

JOB-2023-0016124 4/21/2023OTHER DPW DIG HOLE FOR MAILBOX OR MARK WHERE 
WATER LINE IS AND PROPERTY OWNER CAN DO 
IT.

4/18/2023 3422 E MAIN ST

JOB-2023-0016325 4/21/2023OTHER DPW FLUSH END OF LINE 4/19/2023 2S KINGSTON ST

JOB-2023-0016226 4/20/2023OTHER DPW FLUSH LINE 4/19/2023 1HWY 268 E

JOB-2023-0017127 4/20/2023OTHER DPW MOW:  TOWN HALL, LIBRARY, PILOT CENTER, 
WATER PLANT (4/17-4/20/23)

4/20/2023 0VARIOUS LOCATIONS

JOB-2023-0017328 4/20/2023GARBAGE/RECYCLIN
G 

DPW EMPTY GARBAGE CART THAT WM MISSED 4/20/2023 0111 W MAIN ST

JOB-2023-0017429 4/21/2023OTHER DPW MOW TOWN LOT BEHIND SIDEWALK ON DEPOT 
STREET.

4/20/2023 1DEPOT STREET

JOB-2023-0017230 4/21/2023OTHER DPW FOR FRIDAY 4/21 - MARK PLOT J233  NO 
HEADSTONE

4/20/2023 1CEMETERY SECTION 
J

JOB-2023-0016731 4/20/2023SEWER DPW POSSIBLE SEWER BACK UP 4/20/2023 0110 JOYCE DR

JOB-2023-0016832 4/25/2023 DPW RE-READS FOR MAY BILLING 4/20/2023 5VARIOUS LOCATIONS

JOB-2023-0016933 4/25/2023OTHER DPW ON TUESDAY, APRIL 25TH AT 10AM.  MEET WITH 
DUKE ENERGY TECHNICIAN FOR PLACEMENT OF 
STREETLIGHT.

4/20/2023 5137 MOUNTAIN VIEW 
DR

JOB-2023-0017034 4/26/2023HOLIDAY DOWNTOWN PLACE BARRICADES AND EVENT CANS.  OTHER - 
MISC EVENT PREP

4/20/2023 6MAIN STREET

JOB-2023-0016535 4/20/2023 DPW MOW FIELDS AND OTHER AREAS AT ARMFIELD. 4/20/2023 0CIVIC CENTER

JOB-2023-0016436 4/20/2023 DPW EMPTY TRASH, RECYCLE AND DOG WASTE 
CONTAINER

4/20/2023 0MAIN STREET

JOB-2023-0017537 5/3/2023OTHER DPW POWER BOXES DROPPED ON MAIN ST BEFORE 
MAY 6TH CRUISE IN

4/21/2023 12

JOB-2023-0017638 4/25/2023HOLIDAY DPW TAKE FURNITURE FROM ARMFIELD CENTER 
BACK TO MT. AIRY.

4/25/2023 0

JOB-2023-0017839 5/3/2023OTHER DPW FRIDAY, APRIL 28TH TURN ON FOR NEW SERVICE.  
METER #1700027592

4/26/2023 7409 S STEPHENS ST

TOTAL CLOSED APPLICATIONS39

STATUS: IN PROGRESS
JOB-2023-001771 PUMP STATION DPW REPAIR PUMP STATION AT LOWER CRESTWOOD 4/25/2023 0CRESTWOOD DR

TOTAL IN PROGRESS APPLICATIONS1

STATUS: NEW
JOB-2023-001351 OTHER DPW TURN WATER OFF FOR FINAL.  METER #1700027164 4/4/2023 0300 LYNCHBURG RD 

UNIT 1
JOB-2023-001412 OTHER DPW TURN WATER OFF FOR FINAL.  METER #1700027509 4/5/2023 0300 LYNCHBURG RD 

UNIT 8

Applications For the Date Range 04/01/2023 Thru 04/30/2023

General Services Work Order Applications

Reference # Requesting Dept.# Job Type Description Date IssuedDate Entered Days OpenLocation

Page 2 of 3Friday, May 5, 2023 10:09:01 AM
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JOB-2023-001403 INSPECTION METER 
BOX

DPW CUSTOMER SAYS THAT METER BOX IS TOO HIGH 
AND WANTS SOMEONE TO CHECK

4/5/2023 0326 GOLF COURSE RD

JOB-2023-001424 SEWER DPW SEWER LINE INSPECTION 4/6/2023 0DEPOT ST

JOB-2023-001495 OTHER DPW WATER TAP AND SET METER. CALL JOHNNY 
MARION FOR PLACEMENT AND ESTIMATED TIME 
WORK CAN BE DONE.  336-944-7810

4/12/2023 01844 OLD US 52 S

JOB-2023-001516 OTHER DPW METER BOX IS TOO LOW 4/13/2023 0522 BUTLER ST

JOB-2023-001547 OTHER DPW TRASH- PLEASE MOVE TRASH FROM TOWN HALL 
DOWN TO THE PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING 
INCLUDING THE FLOWER POT

4/17/2023 0

JOB-2023-001588 OTHER DPW TURN WATER OFF FOR FINAL.  METER #1700027307 4/18/2023 0113 E MAIN ST

JOB-2023-001669 OTHER DPW SPEAKER WIRE IS HANGING TOO LOW 4/20/2023 0126 W MAIN ST

TOTAL NEW APPLICATIONS9

TOTAL APPLICATIONS THIS REPORT PERIOD49

Applications For the Date Range 04/01/2023 Thru 04/30/2023

General Services Work Order Applications

Reference # Requesting Dept.# Job Type Description Date IssuedDate Entered Days OpenLocation

Page 3 of 3Friday, May 5, 2023 10:09:01 AM
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0 CRESTWOOD DR

CONCERNED THAT LOT WAS HALF-WAY CLEARED AND NOT CLEANED UP. LOW HANGING LINES HELD UP BY 
TREES. OTHER CONCERNS WERE POT HOLES ON CRESTWOOD DRIVE

04/17/20231 NEWRAC-2023-00013

18

0 NELSON ST

HI.....I CALLED EARLIER THIS WEEK BECAUSE MY YARD WASTE HAD NOT BEEN PICKED UP ON THE SPECIFIED 
DAY THAT THE CALENDAR SAID. I WAS TOLD THAT THEY WOULD EMAIL THE PEOPLE WHO PICKED UP THE 
YARD WASTE AND IT WOULD BE PICKED UP RIGHT AWAY. AS OF TODAY NOTHING HAS BEEN PICKED UP YET. 
THE ONLY REASON I AM COMPLAINING IS BECAUSE MY LANDLORD IS UPSET THAT IT IS IN YARD BY THE 
STREET AND IN THE WAY OF HIS GUYS THAT MOW THE LAWN. WE PAY FOR THIS SERVICE. PLEASE MAKE 
SURE IT IS PICKED UP ON THE DAY THAT THE CALENDAR SAYS....OR AT LEAST LET PEOPLE KNOW IF IT WILL 
BE A DIFFERENT DAY. I LIVE ON NELSON STREET IN PILOT MT. THERE ARE THREE DIFFERENT PEOPLE ON 
OUR STREET ALL WAITING ON YARD WASTE PICKUP. THANK YOU!

04/22/20232

TRASH/LITTER

NEWRAC-2023-00014

13

111 NELSON ST

HI. I LIVE ON NELSON STREET HERE IN PILOT MT. MYSELF AND SEVERAL OF MY NEIGHBORS HAVE CALLED 
AND EMAILED BECAUSE OUR YARD WASTE HAS NOT BEEN PICKED UP ON THE LAST TWO DATES THAT IT WAS 
SUPPOSED TO BE PICKED UP ON THE CALENDAR. I PERSONALLY HAVE GOTTEN A COMPLAINT FROM MY 
LANDLORD BECAUSE THE YARD WASTE INTERFERES WITH THE LAWN MAINTENANCE CREWS. WE PAY FOR 
THIS SERVICE EVERY MONTH. CAN SOMEONE PLEASE MAKE SURE THAT WHOEVER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR 
PICKING UP THE YARD WASTE DOES SO IN A TIMELY MANNER. SEVERAL PEOPLE ON NELSON STREET NEED 
THIS SERVICE IMMEDIATELY! THANK YOU

04/30/20233

YARD WASTE

NEWRAC-2023-00015

5

Description of Concern

Concern Address

Date Entered

Concern Report

Concern Type

Status

Date Closed

Days to Resolve

Reference #

Friday, May 5, 2023 10:09:56 AM3 Total
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STATUS: APPROVED
Z-2023-00181 04/05/2023RESIDENTIAL - ACCESSORY 

STRUCTURE
ANDERSEN KARSTEN & BRENDA326 GOLF COURSE RD 04/05/2023

Z-2023-00192 04/06/2023NON-RESIDENTIAL - REMODEL/UP-
FIT

AVERI PROPERTIES LLC320 OLD WESTFIELD RD 04/06/2023

Z-2023-00213 04/12/2023SIGN CIRCLE K STORES INC805 S KEY STREET 04/12/2023

Z-2023-00204 04/12/2023NON-RESIDENTIAL - ADDITION S D JESSUP CONSTRUCTION INC332 SHELLYBROOK DRIVE 04/12/2023

Z-2023-00235 04/13/2023RESIDENTIAL - NEW 
CONSTRUCTION

HOLDER JOSH435 GOLF COURSE RD 04/13/2023

Z-2023-00226 04/13/2023NON-RESIDENTIAL - ADDITION NAIN RODRIQUEZ & ALICIA 
OJEDA

202 HAMLIN DRIVE 04/13/2023

Z-2023-00257 04/27/2023RESIDENTIAL - ADDITION HEDGE FARM LLC172 NOIRAM DRIVE 03/22/2023

TOTAL APPROVED APPLICATIONS7

STATUS: UNDER REVIEW
Z-2023-00241 04/14/2023NON-RESIDENTIAL - ADDITION MADRIGAL ELEUTERIO M511 E 52 BYPASS

TOTAL UNDER REVIEW APPLICATIONS1

TOTAL APPLICATIONS THIS REPORT PERIOD8

Applications For the Date Range 04/01/2023 Thru 04/30/2023

Zoning Permit Applications

Date EnteredReference # Application Type# Property Address Owner NameBlock Lot Date Issued

Page 1 of 1Friday, May 5, 2023 10:10:34 AM
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Port	Count Station	Count Total	Revenue	($) Energy	(kWh) GHG	Savings	(kg) Gasoline	Saved	(Gal) Unique	Driver
	Chargepoint
Response	SLA

Session	Count

65100.00%91274241,009012

85.17%

13.75%
1.08%

Port	Utilization:	24	Hours

Blocked	% Charging	% Idle%
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Town	of	Pilot	Mountain,	NC	-	Monthly	Report	-	March	2023

Assure	Station	Metrics	Monthly	Reporting

Average	Session	Duration	(Hours)

Average	Session	Charge	Time	(Hours)

Average	Session	Energy	(kWh)

Average	Session	Revenue	($)

Occupied	Hours

Charging	Hours

Service	Tickets 0.0

204.6

220.7

0.00

15.52

3.15

3.40

Company	Id
136351

Organization	Name
All

Port	Level
All

Month	End	Date
3/31/2023
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Town	of	Pilot	Mountain,	NC	-	Quarterly	Report	-	2023	Q1

Assure	Station	Metrics	Quarterly	Reporting Company	Id
136351

Organization	Name
All

Port	Level
All

Quarter	Year
3/31/2023

86.93%

12.15%
0.92%

Port	Utilization:	24	Hours

Blocked	% Charging	% Idle%

Average	Session	Duration	(Hours)

Average	Session	Charge	Time	(Hours)

Average	Session	Energy	(kWh)

Average	Session	Revenue	($)

Occupied	Hours

Charging	Hours

	Service	Tickets 0.0

524.8

564.4

0.00

15.61

3.09

3.32

Service	Entitlement	Status	Breakdown	of	Assure	Stations

Expired 0-30	Days 1-6	Months 6-12	Months 1+	Year

Assure 10000

SW 10000

■	You	dispensed	more	energy	than	61.86	%	of	other	Assure	customers.

■	You	collected	more	fees	than	0.00	%	of	other	Assure	customers.

■	You	fueled	more	unique	drivers	than	51.98	%	of	other	Assure	customers.

■	Your	24	hour	charging	utilization	was	higher	than	65.92	%	of	other	Assure
customers.

Total	Revenue	($) Energy	(kWh) GHG	Savings	(kg) Gasoline	Saved	(Gal) Unique	Driver
Chargepoint	Response

SLA
Session	Count

170100.00%153331,1152,6540
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Station	Name
Total	Energy

(kWh)
Total	Sessions Total	Fees	($)

Gasoline
Saved	(Gal)

GHG	Savings
(kg)

Charging
Hours

Occupied
Hours

Uptime	(%)

PM	TOWN	HALL	PM	TOWN	HALL 100.00%5645251,115333$	0.001702,654
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Assure	Station	Metrics	Reporting
Appendix

Port	U�liza�on	Chart:	This	is	a	view	of	sta
on	u
liza
on	during	common	business	hours.
								You	can	use	this	informa
on	to	determine	if	updates	need	to	be	made	to	pricing	/	access	policies	or	if	sta
ons	should	be	added.

Session	Start	Distribu�on	Chart:	This	is	a	view	(by	day)	of	what	
mes	drivers	start	sessions.
								You	can	use	this	informa
on	to	fine	tune	
me	of	day	pricing	policy	rules.

Sta�on	/	Port	Count:	In	order	to	be	counted,	a	sta
on	must	have	the	"Assure"	en
tlement	applied.
								This	is	the	number	of	sta
ons	/	ports	that	currently	have	the	"Assure"	en
tlement.

Total	Revenue:	This	is	the	sum	of	session	fees	generated	by	your	"Assure"	sta
ons	minus	the	ChargePoint	service	fee	(10%).
								This	is	based	on	session	dates	(not	transac
on	date	which	may	differ).	Your	Flex	Billing	reports	should	be	used	for	financial	repor
ng.

Energy	(kWh):	All	energy	dispensed	through	your	"Assure"	sta
ons.
								This	data	point	can	be	useful	in	reconciling	sta
on	energy	against	energy	bills.

GHG	Savings	(kg):	All	the	green	house	gasses	(95%	CO2)	that	would	have	been	released	had	the	miles	provided	by	your	sta
ons	come	from	gasoline.
								This	data	point	can	be	useful	in	sustainability	repor
ng.

Unique	Drivers:	The	number	of	unique	drivers	that	used	your	sta
ons	this	month	(a	driver	would	be	counted	only	once	even	if	they	used	different	RFID	cards).
								An	understanding	of	the	number	of	unique	drivers	visi
ng	may	be	useful	in	crea
ng	sta
on	messaging	/	video	ads.

Gasoline	(Gal)	Saved:	All	the	gasoline	that	would	have	been	burned	had	the	miles	provided	by	your	sta
ons	come	from	gasoline.
								This	data	point	can	be	useful	in	sustainability	repor
ng.

ChargePoint	Response	SL:	Percentage	of	
ckets	to	which	ChargePoint	responded	within	Service	Level	(1	business	day).
								ChargePoint	holds	itself	accountable	to	our	Service	Level	commitment.

Up�me:	Percentage	of	
me	that	your	ports	were	capable	of	dispensing	power.
								ChargePoint	is	commi7ed	to	keeping	your	ports	dispensing	power	98%	of	the	
me	or	be7er.

Sessions:	Total	session	count.
								An	understanding	of	the	number	of	
mes	your	sta
ons	authorize	a	session	can	be	useful	crea
ng	sta
on	messaging	/	video	ads.

Average	Session	Dura�on:	Average	amount	of	
me	drivers	occupy	your	sta
ons.
								This	data	point	can	be	useful	in	fine	tuning	length	of	stay	pricing	policy	rules.

Average	Charging	Time:	Average	amount	of	
me	per	session	energy	is	flowing.
								This	data	point	can	be	useful	in	fine	tuning	length	of	stay	pricing	policy	rules.

Average	Session	Energy:	Average	amount	of	energy	dispensed.
								This	data	point	can	be	useful	in	fine	tuning	price	per	kW	pricing	policy	rules.

Average	Session	Revenue:	Average	session	fee	-	10%.
								This	data	point	can	be	useful	in	fine	tuning	minimum	&	maximum	values	for	pricing	policy	rules.

Total	Hours	Occupied:	Sum	of	all	session	dura
ons.
								This	is	used	in	part	to	determine	u
liza
on.

Total	Hours	Charging:	Sum	of	all	session	charging	dura
ons.
								This	is	used	in	part	to	determine	u
liza
on.

New	Service	Tickets:	Count	of	trouble	
ckets	tracking	issues	with	a	"Assure"	sta
on	created	this	month.
								This	will	help	in	keeping	track	of	sta
on	fault	issues	raised	with	ChargePoint	Support.
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